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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEH/E

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of New Concepts Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | hereby present the audited annual
results to the shareholders and prospective investors of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”).

The current Year was full of challenges: the social events and
blockage of traffic in the first-half of the Year; the public health
emergency, COVID-19, resulting in shutdowns and suspension of
production in the PRC, global travel restrictions etc. substantially
affected the business activities; uncertainties over China — United
States trade dispute as well as the economic slowdown in Hong
Kong created a challenging business environment for each of the
Group’s business segment.

Despite the difficulties encountered, we are conservatively optimistic
that our construction business would be gradually recovered as a
result of the long-term housing development and land policy in
Hong Kong.

BAIRR

AABRERAEEBER) AR A A (AR
AR EREMBAR([AEENES([E
F)e(ESEg)]) WAEEREREER
BEEEHREE202093A318 LFE ([AF
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRWE

The volume of kitchen wastes treated in our kitchen waste
treatments plunged due to city lockdown, shut-down of restaurants
and school resulting from the quarantine arrangements and was
subsequently resumed to normal operations subject to the
compliance with the local government’'s requirements for
resumption. Indeed, a number of major cities in China implemented
certain regulations to stipulate residents’ requirement to sort
domestic waste. The outbreak of COVID-19 has further upheld the
awareness over the public hygiene, waste treatment and therefore
should bring more business opportunities to our environmental
protection business segment.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincerest gratitude to our shareholders and all
stakeholders including customers, subcontractors, suppliers, other
business partners and employees for your continuous support and
trust, especially during initial outbreak of COVID-19 and subsequent
devoted support. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank
all my colleagues for their work over the past year.

Zhu Yongjun
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 7 August 2020

BMRLTHEHEHM BERREREMA - B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE @R

The Group is principally engaged in (i) provision of foundation
works, civil engineering contractual service and general building
works (the “Construction Business”); (ii) environmental protection
projects including kitchen waste treatment, industrial water
treatment and strategic investments in environmental protection
related projects (the “Environmental Protection Business”); and (iii)
industrial fluids system services (the “Industrial Fluids Business”). In
the current Year, the impact of outbreak of the COVID-19 is set out
in each of our business segments below.

Business Review

I Construction Business
The Group is engaged in the Construction Business as a
contractor in foundation, civil engineering and general
building works in Hong Kong.

Sales of construction materials segment engaged in the
trading of construction materials in Hong Kong, of which the
revenue from such operation is insignificant during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

During the Year, revenue generated from construction
segment was approximately HK$535.0 million, representing a
decrease of 30.0% from approximately HK$764.8 million for
FY2019. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
of the number of sizable projects undertaken by the Group
during the reporting period.

REBFERBORHEHETE LARITRE
BHRBRE—REFTIIR(EEERKD: (i)
RIREEH  BEEFNFERE  TEEKRE
BRRERBEBBEENRBIERE (RRE
B RN IEREEFRS ([TERE
1) o REFZEZCOVID- 19T EFH N T X
BEBDE-

¥iBEER

I BEER
AEBFEREAFTAUME £ K
TITRE—BREFIEABEGHETT
BEER -

BEMHEED R EBNREEMES
HE RN E E2020F3A318 EFE R
A TEK -

RAFEE BESBELENBRAL A
535,000,000/ 7T + #201981 Bt F E 49
764,800,000/ 7T~ #30.0% * £ E =&
AR BREHAREBABH AL AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RS am M o AT

The overall gross profit margin of the construction business
decreased to approximately 6.9% (FY2019: 10.4%). The
significant decrease was attributable to (i) social events and
blockage of traffic in substantial areas in Hong Kong from
time to time during the Year and also the impact of
COVID-19 during the first quarter of 2020, causing reduction
of allowable working hours and disruption of delivery of
resources, leading to the increase in overall operating costs of
our construction business; and (ii) certain projects with lower
gross profit margin were undertaken during the Year as a
result of increased competition in the market.

Revenue from this segment is generated from both public and
private sector projects with approximately 87.5% of the
segment revenue contributed by the foundation projects in
private sectors. Out of the total segment revenue of
HK$535.0 million, the key contributors were (i) a foundation
project in Tseung Kwan O contributing approximately HK$83.8
million during the Year; and (ii) a foundation project in Yuen
Long contributing approximately HK$77.4 million during the
Year.

The Group has completed a total of 12 projects in FY2020
(FY2019: 11 projects) and secured 11 new projects (2019: 19
new projects) during the Year with aggregated contract value
of approximately HK$695.8 million similar to FY2019 (FY2019:
approximately HK$548.8 million). All new projects secured
during the Year had commenced construction, and 3 out of
11 new projects was completed during the Year. As at 31
March 2020, 11 projects were in progress (FY2019: 12
projects in progress). Details of the completed projects and
the projects in progress are set out as follows:

BEEBNBEEEMNETHRELNCI%
(2019 L& € 1 10.4% ) - EF R HE
ETBREHRORAFEEE B TR E
EHEeEHRETEMEER NE
2020 5 —F[E X COVID-1952 & - 1]
AT TIENERERI RERMNES
PR SHEEXEBEBLEXNER LA
RINTERFNBESEAFERNEBH
ETHEBEMEEEAME -

BB ARBEAFLEERE &9
H875% R EREHETER - B0 E
U A 535,000,000/ jo A - = B H LK
BOKEROEIBE  RAFEFR
#983,800,0007% 7T ; K ()T BA #h & 18
E - RAFE B R477,400,000 7T °

R20200 IR [E - REBEE KTHKI2
815 B (20198 B F E - 11{EB B)

IR R ERAS 1118 (20194 « 191#)
BB AHBER0199 BT E
& # 5695,800,000/% 7T (201981
F [Z : 49548,800,0005 7T) ° FT A B
AEEMEMNFEECESHT : R111E
FEEY FEERAFEET RN
202093 A318 B111E (20198 KX F
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Completed projects

TR IEH

Name of project Location Sector Main category of work

EEH&Z#E H B &S IEZEEH

1. Tuen Mun Siu Hong Project HKHA Contract No: 20160431, Foundation Construction of Mini-piles & Ground

Shatin Area 16, Wo Sheung Tun Investigation works
Street, Fo Tan; and Housing
Authority, Siu Hong Road, Tuen
Mun

HPFKEER DHE6EANRK FHEMNERE B EAE R L BB TAR i T
ZEEHEMARE(BEBEERE
ZE®AKMRIE - 20160431)

2. Lam Tin Tunnel Project NE/2015/01 Tseung Kwan O — Lam  Foundation Construction of Mini-piles

Tin Tunnel Main Tunnel

EmREBIEAAR HER — EAREERE B WA T
(& #48 5% - NE/2015/01)

3. Lamma Power Station project Lamma Power Station Foundation Ground Treatment Works of Band Drain
Installation and Imported General Fill
for Compaction

MY EERER MY EER & HEAPOKE B MR EE TR R AR
A —REFRYE
4. TKO 85 project Nos. 1-3, Shek Kok Road, Area 85, Foundation Construction of Bored Pile, Socket
Tseung Kwun O, Hong Kong H-Pile, Sheet Pile, King Post,
Hoarding and Tree Works
1S ERESSRIAR EB KB ERESSER A HIE1-35 B EIE EREIFTE HRE 12
- ER R AR T2 i T
5. Ching Ho Estate project Queen’s Hill Site 1 Phases 2,4&5 and Foundation Construction of Socketed Steel H-Piling
Portion of Phase 6 and Alteration
and Addition Works at Ching Ho
Estate
BRI B ERU—FE(FE=Z OERAHN HmE ERIFHERET
RENEE D U AR) LA R JE A $B 2R
ERmETE
6. Waterloo Road project 128 Waterloo Road, Kowloon, Hong Foundation Construction of Bored Pile, Sheet Pile,
Kong Pipe Pile, King Post, ELS & Pile Cap
BiT£EBHEAE BENEBITEZE1285 & BIE HRE BB HELZ BR
Ko A58 3 DA R #E 1B e T
7. Choi Yuen Road project Near Lai King Hill Road, Kwai Chung Foundation Construction of Socketed steel H-Piling
and Choi Yuen Road, Sheung
Shui
*E KA E RO BRI R FKEEE & ERIFHERET
8. TKO IE2.0 project A* Proposed Commercial Development  Foundation Construction of 11 nos. of temporary
of IE 2.0 Project A at TKO Mini-piles
Industrial Estate, HK
i#5 BRI ¥ 962.0 EEBERTEWMIEM20EEAN HE 1 BRI B e T
| HA* EHEBXRRER
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Name of project Location Sector Main category of work
HEH &M b B L IEEEHH
9. TKO Area 85 project* Nos 1-3 Shek Kok Road, Area 85, Foundation ELS Works
Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong
% EIRE85mIA R * BBBERESR A HRKI-35% 3 2L PREERABSEIR
10. Kai Tak 6562 project* N.K.I.L. 6562, Kai Tak, Kowloon Foundation Construction of Bored Pile
1 55656257 TH B * JURERR 12 T L BE M HE R B565625% Hh HEILBERET
11. United Christian Hospital United Christian Hospital, 130 Hip Foundation Construction of Mini-piles and pipe pile
Project Wo Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon walls
EEHE A B JUBEER IR 19 A0 A71305% 3 B WABREBREBEL
EA EBEH A B
12. Cheung Sha Wan Project Tonkin Street, Cheung Sha Wan Foundation Design and Construction for Driven
H-Pile Works
RPEEAB ROERRE piup-s BT FHEIRRRRiEL
* These projects were secured by the Company during the Year * ZEEHRARAIRAFEHENIE
g o
Projects in Progress HEZEEH
Name of project Location Sector Main category of work
EB&#E 25 §0S IBEEHH
1. Happy Valley Project 17A & B Ventris Road, Happy Valley, Foundation Construction of Bored Piles, Pipe Pile,
Hong Kong Geotechnically Instrumentation, ELS
and Pile Cap Works
WEIAR BB EHE M FE17ARBI & BB BB THERERTE 2

BRANE X EARER TRELT

2. Yuen Long project Y. L. Y. L. 532, Junction of Wang Foundation ELS, Pile Cap & Decontamination Soil
Yip Street West and Hong Yip
Street, Tung Tau Industrial Area,

Yuen Long
TEATE R THRBIXREXAHERERE HE EREEABEXE BREIZUAE
ZRY. LY. LE5325 £5RL
3. Kai Tak (Site B) project New Acute Hospital and Kai Tak Foundation Construction of Bored Pile
Development Area (Site B)
BE(BthAR)ER UREEERR (B biuE-S L& T
= E B B
4. Water treatment project* Sheung Shui, Silver Mine Bay, Siu Ho Foundation Construction of Mini-Piling Works
Wan and Ma On Shan
KR IR B * EKCRBEE - NEERFRL Hh E WABITHE I ZET
5.  West Kowloon Palace West Kowloon Cultural District, West Foundation Mini-piles and Grout Curtain Works
Museum project* Kowloon, Tsim Sha Tsui
AWM EIEYEER* KPBEFTNEANE R £ WAE BRI R TR
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Name of project Location Sector Main category of work
HEH &8 b B IS IEEEHH
6. North District Temporary Fanling North New Development Building Reprovisioning of temporary wholesale
Wholesale Market Area, Phase 1 market
project*
bR RERILETS MELTEREE —BR EF BREERIEETSEEIR
HAE*
7.  HKBU project* Hong Kong Baptist University, 30 Foundation Construction of Bored Pile, ELS and Pile
Renfrew Road, Kowloon, Hong Cap Works
Kong
RRER EENEBMBEREEZTEARE HE HIE EWRAE L AREE TR
i
8. Hung To Road project* 32 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Foundation Construction of Bored Pile
Kowloon
WEEEEA FLBEBIE S B 38325 3 B # L& T
9. Kwun Tong project* Kwun Tong Preliminary Treatment Foundation Construction of Mini-piles
Works, 1 Wing Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon
BEEA NBEEBEKEMBBROMASK  HE ME b T
BRI
10. Kwai Chung, Lam Tin Street Nos 2-16 Lam Tin Street, Kwai Foundation Construction of Foundation, ELS and
project* Chung, HK Pile Cap Works
EBEREGEA BAZBE HAE2-165 o B A AR RS AR
B TIEET
11. Tuen Mun Hin Fat Lane and Hin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun and Java Foundation Construction of Foundation, ELS and
North Point Java Road Road, North Point Pile Cap Works
Project*
EEERERIEAEEE ERREERIABESE & A 2R AR A RIEIE T
T8 g * i
* These projects were secured by the Company during the Year * ZEERRARRAIRNAFEFENIA

Environmental Protection Business
The Environmental Protection Business involves:

(i) kitchen waste treatment;

(i) provision of EPC (engineering,
solutions
“Provision of Environmental EPC Solutions”);
(iii)  industrial water treatment; and
(iv)

projects.

strategic investments in environmental protection related

procurement and
construction) services and environmental improvement
relating to environment projects (the

B o

RIRER
RBRREBS R

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BERRR R
RHEBEERFEERB WEPC(T
BB RER RERRENR
E R T B (THRHRITEPCHIR
ESDE

TEREKREE: R

RIRIEHIRBE REERE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year, the Group’s revenue from the Environmental
Protection Business increased by approximately 12.7% to
approximately HK$113.6 million (FY2019: approximately
HK$100.8 million), which was mainly attributable to the
increase in the revenue from provision of EPC operation.
Discussion and analysis on the business performances of
kitchen waste treatment, provision of EPC operation, industrial
water treatment and other strategic investments are set out
below.

1. Kitchen waste treatment

Revenue generated from kitchen waste treatment
business comprises (i) construction revenue from Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT") projects under construction;
and (ii) income from operating plants including
government subsidy for kitchen waste treatment and
sale of by-products including but not limited to organic
fertilizers, grease, biogas, etc. produced during the
process of kitchen waste treatment.

During the Year, revenue generated from kitchen waste
treatment amounted to HK$66.8 million (FY2019:
HK$90.1 million), which was mainly attributable to
decrease in the construction revenue of Taiyuan Plant
and Hefei Plant, in which the construction of such
plants were mostly completed and commenced
operations in previous years.

Set out below are the developments of each of the
kitchen waste plants of the Group during the Year:

(i) Taiyuan Plant

Taiyuan Plant is wholly-owned by the Group and
operated under BOT model. The construction of
the plant is in two phases with a total permitted
capacity of 500 tons per day. Phase one facility of
200 tons per days was fully utilised where
production facilities for phase two of Taiyuan
plant with an addition capacity of 300 tons per
days have been substantially installed, but the
operation performance of phase two is subject to
final quality review by the government of
Taiyuan.

BB BRI

REFEE AEEREBRRELHUK
A8 AN #912.7% % 49113,600,0005% 7T
(201987 B 4 & : %9100,800,000/%
7o) - E BRI REPCE T A Uk A 1
e B R E BT AR R IR - R HEPCHE
B TEBEKEENEMERMERE
EBRRBENTREITEN T -

1. EEFHiRERE
BRI REREBEENRA
PROKBEEEZREE — K%
— BXR([BOT))HEMEER
A R EE2FEE HKA
B 4E R TR 2 BT B 3% HY BT 4 B
UREBEBFNREEBREFAE
EEIER(BEETRLE#AE
B omfE  BRE)MEERE) -

—~

REAFE EFNREEES
" U A £66,800,000/% 7t (2019
8 B 45 £ : 90,100,000/ L) °
FEEHRARIEEB LAGEIE
BE(MEBEEARBET TR
NEFERIREE) MEERA
L BT

TXEII A& B X B2 B8R
HERNAFENER:

(i) XEREH
KRBERAEEZ2EH
B UBOTEA &L & &
STRRHEME  FrAlEE
# 8 A5 K500 - § X
200BBRY 8 —HARR B E &
HEER MARMEE 5
B2 12 2 AT K300 ) 5
CHIAERED AL E
TEHE_HNEER
BNMEFRKEBRFETR
REEES -
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(1)

In December 2019, average capacity of Taiyuan
Plant was about 298 tons per day. However, the
outbreak of COVID-19 and the quarantine
arrangements drove to the city lockdown, shut-
down of restaurants and schools, and thus the
volume of kitchen wastes treatment drop to
average of 14 tons per day in February 2020 and
48 tons per day in March 2020.

Capacity of Taiyuan Plant was gradually up to
about 200 tons per day in July 2020.

Due to the postpone of the People’s Congress
and affect the local government’s fiscal budget,
collection of kitchen waste treatment fee was not
resumed until late-June 2020.

Hefei Plant

Hefei Plant is 60%-owned by the Group and is
operated under the BOT model with a permitted
capacity of 200 tons per day. Hefei Plant has
been undergoing a technology improvement, and
its utilised capacity was therefore reduced to 100
tons per day as of 1 April 2019. Due to the
COVID-19, its capacity dropped from an average
of 159 ton per day in December 2019 to 11 ton
per day in February 2020, and 34 ton per day in
March 2020. Capacity of Hefei Plant was about
200 tons per tons per day in July 2020.

(1)

2019128 » KIREE
HEHEREEENNEEXR
298MF o #A i + COVID-19
BEEBRELHESNH
WoEERERBEH &
BT 7 3% BRI B 39 B B b
R 12 & B i B 272020
F2H M & K148 A &
202093 A H) & K48ME -

K2020F7R - KRB B
MEEREHEES EFAE
#4949 RX200M8 -

HRARRRARGES -
FEWHTBRNTRES -
HE2020606AK ALt
B2 1k 18 U BN B BT iy 3% B 1R
%o

= =N
ARBEBEHAEBESR
60%#E %5 © LABOTHE =, &%
E o AUREEATX
20005 - A RTE B — H i
TTEMRA - Bt R2019
FARHWNEREREER
Z & X100 - B R & %
COVID-19 ' & EIEE &
T EIE 2 H2019F12 A
#) & K1 59ME 7 2202042
AH & X110 202043
A H)55 K348 - 7220204F
TR -&RIEB®EER
7149 % 5 R200ME ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition to the COVID-19, Hefei Plant has been
undergoing technological improvement since the
first quarter of 2019, but the output is yet to
meet the anticipated performance and outcome.
The failure in technological improvement not only
resulted in the delay in proposed price
adjustment on the kitchen waste treatment fee,
but also affected the volume and quality of other
by-products output including organic fertilizers,
biogas etc., and deteriorated the estimated
recoverable amounts of the Hefei Plant, and
therefore, impairment losses of approximately
HK$1,304,000 and HK$52,399,000 were
recognised for goodwill and operating concession
related to Hefei Plant.

Pursuant to the Hefei Plant acquisition agreement
and capital injection agreement (as supplemented
by a supplemental agreement dated 16 August
2019), the vendor and creditor under such
agreements, who are now the non-controlling
shareholders of the Hefei Plant, guaranteed Hefei
Plant’s revenue from the sale of organic fertilizers
shall be no less than (i) RMB5,950,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,774,000) and
RMB12,410,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,128,000) for the first two vyears,
respectively upon the following conditions are
fulfilled: (i) the normal production capacity of
Hefei Feifan reaches 200 tons/day, and (ii) the
quality of the underwritten production output
meets with the national requirements set for the
relevant organic fertilizers; and (ii)
RMB17,063,800 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,426,000) per year thereafter until
expiration of the concession right to operate
Hefei Plant on 26 June 2038 (“Guaranteed
Revenue”). Should the actual revenue from sales
of organic fertilizers fall short of the Guaranteed
Revenue in any particular year, the non-
controlling shareholders shall make up the
difference with the dividends they are entitled to
receive from Hefei Plant.

G BEVEY

FrCOVID-195) - & BB 1B B
B2019F B —Z=E AR —
HERARN  HEL X
EHEFRERER B
fiT 32 FH R R T2 B BT 18
ERNREEBNESE
AR FEEEBHE
B BRFEMEIERE
tHEE SAFEEN
BT RESETH® - &
b NEBMERBBEE
BEEHNEERKERTR
HRBEEBRED L
1,304,000/ 7T % 52,399,000
ETT e

RIBEAIEEE MR ERE
Ko & (KB B A2019
F8A16H &) 1 7t %
) BEARBE@HETH
BEEACGRAAIIEEMIE
AR REE - HEAE
1B B A B R 8 WA ST
L ROA R #5,950,0007C
(#8 & W #96,774,0007% 7T)
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Given Hefei Plant is still not operating in normal AREIRIEE EETRN
capacity given the technological improvement is R AR A ERE
still on-going. As such, the Guaranteed Revenue gegs s o ALt - REBWA
was yet to take place. i AR AR o

Announcement(s) will be made by the Company ZAN/NESIE GO R =S Pl
on the status of the Guaranteed Revenue as and BULA AR B R DA o

when appropriate.

(i) Loudi Plant (i) ZJEHAHF
During the Year, Loudi Plant was under REAFEE EEBEEHE
construction which is carried out by Loudi EmAERRBMFERA
Fangsheng Environmental Technology Co. Ltd* (£ A (AR A% B80%HE =
KA EERARBZERZLDA), an indirect MEEREAR) A EHE
80%-owned subsidiary of the Company. j=
Loudi Plant has a permitted capacity of 120 tons £ K H B UBOTER X &
per day under the BOT model. Loudi Plant is g oHTEREEEREX
under the construction as at the date of this 120 - A& B 8-
report. EREBEBRERS -

(iv)  Hanzhong Plant (v) ZEHIFH
In June 2017, the Group set up a joint venture M2017F6R - A & B #
company, namely Hanzhong Fancy Ascent FR % R T B A S HE
Biological Technology Co. Ltd* (£ M EF 4 MR mEREEREGR
BB R A &) (“Hanzhong JV") with Hanzhong NEI(ER T ER]) K
Urban Construction Investment Development Co., V—EEREFTEAE
Ltd* (ZF MM TEZXBRERBEBER QA MERBRAFTHNEER
("Hanzhong UCID"), a company established by the A(EPEZERTFD K
Hanzhong municipality government. Hanzhong JV VEREERNFEERE
was set up for the purpose of constructing a PR ERRIEE R
kitchen waste plant in Hanzhong with a total HR300WF - M2 —HE
capacity of 300 tons per day, of which phase-one 122 A& XI1500 /) & B
has a capacity of 150 tons per day (i.e. HIRIEE (BMEFRIEER) ©
Hanzhong Plant). During the Year, construction of RAFEE - EFEENE
Hanzhong Plant is pending completion of the pre- 5T 12 1E 75 48 B BU # 8
feasibility and market studies by the relevant F20184F P18 t 58 Ak T8 7]
government authorities as proposed in 2018. The THERMSHRE - RNEE
Group has been facilitating for the establishment ESNREREREFRTAR
for certain regulatory measures over the relevant REXREGLHEFTETER
kitchen waste treatment at the People’s Congress FEEEYERER LR
of Hanzhong, with an aim to formulate the & 2B BB IR R A
kitchen waste treatment administration and liaison Fiz BIE 15 3 -

among the governmental departments in the
area.
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The Group owns 92% interest in Hanzhong Plant
and its operation model is yet to be determined.

Hancheng Plant

Hancheng Jiemu Environmental Technology Co.
Ltd* (BEUZBREBFZAR A F]) (“Hancheng
Plant”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

In May 2018, Hancheng Plant was granted an
exclusive concession right (BOT model) by
Hancheng Federation of Supply and Marketing
Cooperatives* (2 i fi5& {EHE & #1) to operate
a kitchen waste plant with capacity of 20,000
tons per annum for a term of 30 years.

During construction, certain design deficiencies
were found in respect of the waste-water system
of Hancheng Plant which have not been clearly
illustrated in the environmental assessment report.
Such deficiencies may result in the malfunction of
Hancheng Plant’s operation as well as imposition
of penalty for output of polluted water.

The Group has put forward to the Hancheng
Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives
for the modification of the Hancheng Plant
design, but has yet to reach any agreement with
it. During the Year, the Group obtained several
reminders from the Hancheng Federation of
Supply and Marketing Cooperatives urging for
resumption of construction of Hancheng Plant,
while on the other hand the Hancheng Municipal
Ministry of Natural Resources issued an
administrative penalty notice alleging Hancheng
Plant occupied certain collective land. According
to such notice, the ministry proposed penalties
which require: (i) returning such occupied
collective land; (ii) confiscate any building and
facilities on such occupied collective land; and (iii)
payment of penalty of approximately
RMB260,000. The Group submitted its
explanation to a hearing of the ministry, and the
construction of Hancheng Plant has been pending
during the Year until the above matters are
resolved.

(v)

G BEVEY

AL BB G ETHE W
2% 35 + BB i K
B

FEWIRA
BRWRBREMRERE
ERAR(#MIER]D /A
SENZEMBAA -

M20184F5H » 8 i 1B B
RS EB A1
% T B R T (BOTHE
X)) LE—HEBEEAR
£ 20,0000 H) & & 57
HEH - BH30% -

RiE TR - HPIERR
WIHEBBEKBERGHNE
TREHERRE - ME— &G
R BA 8 A IR E A IR
& R B R FE AR - DA
HirEBEMIBER BALE
B R A BEROS K M & &
HE A BENE ©

AEBERBEHRTHES
1ERE A AL ER h 1 BB TR
BH)RET BB AT mARE
XA fe] #h 7 o AN SR B A
FEREEUTHEAE
BEHZRIRE  RFER
WMBEEEI-5—FE "
BYMERERBITEN
THRESBME - RRE
WHEBHERETEREEL
o RREBMBH B
HEEINT  ()VREHA
BPTIH RSB L : (ii)R
WERBAEMER LT E
B EEY) KR ¢ K(iii) B
A A R #260,0007T °
AEBEDR BT RAT
RERE MBWEBRA
FEERI BEEL%
HERBLE -
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Provision of Environmental Improvement
Solutions

During the Year, Clear Industry Company Limited
("Clear Industry” together with its subsidiary (the “Clear
Industry EPC Group”), a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company, contributed revenue of approximately
RMB41.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$46.8
million) to the Group, as compared to approximately
RMB7.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8.5
million) in FY2019. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increased number of on-going EPC projects
during the Year.

Certain performance commitments and profit guarantee
(collectively, “Suzhou Commitments”) were given by
Qinggin International Group Limited (“Qinggin”) in favor
of the Group under the acquisition agreement dated 2
November 2016 in relation to the Group’s acquisition
of 51% equity interest in Clear Industry from Qinggin
("Clear Industry Acquisition”), including a three-year
profit guarantee for the Clear Industry EPC Group and
recovery of the account receivables incurred during the
three-year profit guarantee period.

The special audit for the Suzhou Commitments, as
stipulated in the acquisition agreement of the Clear
Industry Acquisition was completed where it was
ascertained that such Suzhou Commitments were not
met. With reference to the latest information available,
the fair value of consideration receivable is
approximately HK$13.9 million (approximately RMB12.7
million) (2019: contingent consideration asset of
approximately HK$37.2 million (approximately RMB32.1
million)), being the market value of the consideration
Shares issued by the Company under the Clear Industry
Acquisition and certain outstanding payable to Qinggin.

Further information on the compensation of the Suzhou
Commitments is set out in the section headed “Events
after the reporting period” below.

RHRBEEXAERRG R

RAFE BAREHEBS%
7 25 B9 Ff B 2 &) Clear Industry
Company Limited ([ Clear
Industry | - 32 [F H Mt & A 7] 4%
#[ Clear Industry EPCEE |) &
AEBERMBRAHOARE
41,500,000t ( ## & » &
46,800,0007% 7T) + M 7201984
BREEAERBRAHDARE
7,300,000t ( # F B &
8,500,000/ 7T) ° AN F F AU A
ERENEZERIRNETFN
EPCIEH &R A AT N -

EHBEREBRARAR(ES
BERDREBEEAEAEERE
EF B U B Clear Industry 51%
A% 4 ([ Clear Industryldy B& =
B - BH A20165F 11828 1
WEHZEUNAER AT H A
HEFRITAR REFRE (F
Bl& M & #]) - 8 ¥EClear
Industry EPCE B #) = F i@ 7 (R
BRBE R =ZFHFRBFHRA
EEMEREKE-

# Clear Industryd& B # 3% Fr 5]
A EaRMN AR ETHRREZ
B - B P EEEINERE R
BEERR - 2BEIAIBER - B
IR B & A F{EH 413,900,000
7 T (#) A R #12,700,0007T)
(Q019F : K AR EEE H
37,200,000% (4 A R #
32,100,0007T)) + B 4R #&Clear
Industryd 8 FIE AR Q&) M5 B
BERETHREROOTER
AT REEEMRE-

BRHMNAEmMENE - FTE
BERTXHRERREE]—
i o
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3. Industrial water treatment

(1)

Memsys Assets

The Group entered into a cooperation agreement
with Cevital International (Dubai) Ltd. (“Cevital”)
and established a joint venture company
(“Memsys JV") in September 2018 which is
owned as to 50% by the Group and 50% by
Cevital for the purpose of developing the market
for the Memsys technology and its technical
equipment in Asia with its exclusive rights to
apply the Memsys technology in the PRC granted
by Cevital. The Memsys JV also intends to engage
with Beijing China Science Resources &
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd* (1t 3= & &35
A EIRIRIEAR A F]) on a business collaboration
to develop the PRC market for the Memsys
Assets. The Memsys JV has not commenced
business during the Year.

Further information on the update of the Memsys
JV is set out in the section headed "Events after
the reporting period” below.

BB RS am M o AT

3. TEEKEE

(1)

Memsys & &

AN £ @ 2018498 H
Cevital International
(Dubai) Ltd. ([ Cevital ]) &]
T —EERZE WKL
— R4 2 2 A ([ Memsys
aanfl) BAEER
Cevital? Bl # H50%#
&= 5 1E B #Memsys
it e BT sk A9 SN T
35+ I FECevitali® H R
F& FAMemsysH 1T ) %8
K F| o Memsys& & R
A I A A R AR B A
BRERERATHETE
7% % 1 A BEMemsys&
ERBFRBETS RAF
€ Memsys& & X 7] &

AARER -

B #Memsys& & 2 A &
BN R E — FERERN
TX[$ & BE £1E] —
f o
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(i)

Beijing TDR Environ-Tech Co., Lt (167 KHEA
RIRFIFEFR 2 E]) (“TDR”)

The Group has been negotiating with the current
TDR owners with a view to review the possible
cooperation with TDR given the synergies
between the technology and know-how of the
Group in membrane distillation system and disc
tube reverse osmosis systems for concentrated
water possessed by TDR. Having considered the
possible technological cooperation between the
Group and TDR, the current TDR owners agreed
in principle to allow the Group to take a
participation in the equity in TDR at the
consideration calculated on the basis of not more
than RMB800 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$875.6 million) for 100% of TDR. In such case,
the Group may acquire a maximum of 3.25% at
a consideration of RMB26.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$28.5 million), which will be
satisfied by the TDR deposit paid by the Group to
the previous TDR owner pursuant to a framework
agreement entered into between the previous TDR
owner and the Group in April 2017.

Further information on the update of TDR is set
out in the section headed “Events after the
reporting period” below.

(1)

R K A R RFL
ER A ([AXHAL)
AN [ — B L3R B A K i
AEBEAER  HeeEE
REBEEEBRSE TR
BT e B2 A R K
ANFTEEB N RIREKES
ANR2EBRFOHE K
= EBRE KX AR A B
AElE - ZEEAEHE
B3 K H A ] BE 3 1T A R AT
afE BEORMAEE
AERA LRAEZEERAEE
1 LA K 3 A 100% 9 25 48
ER T HBARE
800,000,0007T (#8571 49
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FFERRELEXMAR
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= K B AR ¥
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4. Strategic investments

(1)

Hydropower projects in Indonesia

Reference is made to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — 4.
Strategic Investment — (i) Hydropower Projects in
Indonesia” in the 2018 and 2019 annual reports
of the Company, wherein it has set out the
detailed chronology in relation to the Group's
acquisition of 49% equity interest in PT. Dempo
Sumber Energi (“DSE”) from Xu Peng (“Xu”) in
March 2016 and acquisition of 80% equity
interest in PT Sumatera Pembangkit Mandiri
(“SPM") from Xu and Muhamad Yamin Kahar
("Yamin”, together with Xu, the “Dominating
Indonesian Parties”) in August 2016 ("SPM
Acquisition”) through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Stand Ascent Limited (“Stand Ascent”), together
with the subsequent alterations to such
acquisitions.

As disclosed in the Company’'s 2018 and 2019
annual reports, the Company and Fujian Jiahe
Energy Company Limited* ({8 ZEMEERBR A
Al) (“Fujian Jiahe”) and certain guarantors
entered into a disposal agreement (the “Stand
Ascent Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which
Fujian Jiahe agreed to purchase 100% equity
interest in Stand Ascent at the consideration
ranging from approximately US$5.32 million to
approximately US$7.73 million, comprising (i) the
value of 49% equity interest in DSE Company of
US$2.205 million and; (i) the value of 85%
equity interest in SPM Company of US$3.12
million to US$5.53 million, which shall be
determined by the electricity unit price to be
offered by PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero)
("PLN") to SPM under the SPM-PPA (the “Stand
Ascent Disposal”).

BB BRI

4. XKBMRE

(1)

HIE K T % EHH
LR AR A F12018%F &
2019 I B EE AW
Ko — 4REEIERE
— (WK HEEFIER ]
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NERRARIEZDR
20164E3A M & M5 ([ &
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49% % # & 20165 8A
)% KX % Muhamad Yamin
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KB AIEBHNEITA
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WA  EREEBYH
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A= R o
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RENENEEBEE(E
VHESIE] -
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As at 31 March 2019, the conditions precedent to
the completion of the Stand Ascent Disposal
Agreement, among others, signing of the SPM-
PPA, were not yet fulfilled.

On 15 August 2019, the parties to the Stand
Ascent Disposal Agreement entered into a second
supplemental deed (the “Second Supplemental
Deed”), pursuant to which the parties agreed that
with effect from the date of the Second
Supplemental Deed:

(@)  the SPM-PPAs condition shall be waived by
Fujian Jiahe, and accordingly all conditions
precedent under the Stand Ascent Disposal
Agreement are fulfilled or waived and the
parties shall proceed to completion of the
Stand Ascent Disposal Agreement; and

(b)  the consideration of 85% equity interest in
SPM Company ranging from approximately
US$3.12 million to US$5.53 million shall be
amended as follows:

(i) the initial consideration of the 85%
equity interest in SPM Company shall
be US$4,324,800 (the “Initial SPM
Consideration”), which was
determined in accordance with the
Stand Ascent Disposal Agreement
assuming the tariff at US8.3 cents
pWh (the “Expected Tariff”), being
the expected tariff to be offered by
PLN to SPM Company the SPM-PPAs
if the same were entered as per
contemplated under the Stand Ascent
Disposal Agreement;

M2019%F3A31H ° & A&
BB S R AR
((HE B8 3E) % BSPMEE
B E RS-

R201968A15H » & I
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“HERREBE(E_MHOHE
FRED B FTHNE
FHE  BAE-—MHExR
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& S & 15 & A
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RS THREES
B S E R
&

(b)  SPMZ FI85%f% 1
Mmoo E N T
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(iii)
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In the event SPM Company enters into
the SPM-PPAs with PLN on or before
31 October 2019, and the tariff
offered by PLN thereunder (the
“Actual Tariff”) is different from the
Expected Tariff, the consideration of
the 85% equity interest in SPM
Company shall be adjusted pursuant
to the Disposal Agreement at such
Actual Tariff accordingly, and the
relevant party shall pay the difference
between the adjusted consideration
and the Initial SPM Consideration to
the other party within 5 days from
the date of the SPM-PPAs (or such
other date as agreed by Fujian Jiahe
and Progressive Merit in writing); and

In the event SPM Company does not
enter into the SPM-PPAs with PLN on
or before 31 October 2019, or the
Actual Tariff is lower than US7.9
cents pWh; Mr. Zhu Yongjun (the
Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company), Xu and Yamin shall
undertake to indemnify Fujian Jiahe
of any loss and expenses arising
therefrom.

(if)

(iii)
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Pursuant to the deed of undertaking executed by R 4% 4 %t &£ & Muhammad
Mr. Xu and Mr. Muhammad on 6 July 2018, both FHETA2018F 7 A6H %L
of them undertook to let the Company have the R ARG - BREHEE
first priority to receive the proceeds from the EAND BB SR
disposal of their interests in DSE Company, SPM EDSEZA &~ SPMA A7) 3¢
Company, or other Indonesian companies which HMHEKkNEEREE
also engage in hydropower plant operations, so as HIEDFE A B4 25 B9 P15 3K
to make up the any possible shortfall of the from 18 - AR E M A aE 2R B
the Disposal Agreement and to pay interest at HERZEMNESE ARG
10% per annum DSE Receivables, SPM DSEE U 5% 18 - SPMJE U
Receivables and advances to Mr. Xu and Mr. OB M BN IR R E R
Muhammad since the relevant inception dates. On Muhammad 5t 4 &) 58 32
15 August 2019, the Company, Mr. Xu and Mr. T EHBEEE BB U KRIE
Muhammed agreed to reduce the interest rate to FHEI0%TERFE -
8% per annum, and the estimate aggregated R2019%8H15H « & A
interest since relevant inception dates up to 11 A] 1) 5t £ X Muhammed
August 2019 would be reduced from EHERBBFENERER
approximately HK$20.9 million to HK$16.8 8% - M BB E - B H
million. #E E£2019F8A118 LW

HE A B BEBEBEEAY
20,900,000/ 7T & 2 &
16,800,0007% TT °

SPM-PPAs were yet to be entered up to 31 H £2020F3A831H & A&
March 2020 and the date of this report. HREBBAL  SPMEEE
A

The Stand Ascent Disposal was completed and the BEVHEFHEELTK -
Group recognised an gain of approximately WIS R W E D
HK$29.3 million, being (i) the reverse of 29,300,000/ 7T+ Jh(i)E
impairment previously recognised for DSE 5] 3B {F BLDSEJE W 3018 &
Receivables and SPM Receivables; and (ii) interest SPMFE U 7% 18 7 3R &9 &
income from Xu and Muhammed under the deed B kg K 54
of undertaking date 6 July 2019 at 8% per Muhammedif & H 81 &
annum. 2019%F7 A6 B My & R iE
% F | E8%FE mF B
NG
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Industrial Fluids Systems Service

On 3 May 2018, First Bravo Development Limited (“FBD"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
share purchase agreement (the “Vimab Agreement”) with
P.H.M Holding AB (“PHM") and Friction Invest AB (“FI") as
vendors, and Henrik Melinder (“Melinder”) and Christer
Larsson (“Christer”) as guarantors, to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Vimab Holdings AB (“Vimab"”) for a total
consideration of HK$170,524,000 (the “Vimab Acquisition”).
Melinder was the ultimate beneficial owner of PHM and the
guarantor of PHM while Christer acted as the guarantor of FI.

Vimab is a company incorporated in Sweden and, together
with its operating subsidiaries (the “Vimab Group”), is
engaged in provision of on-site industrial
including valve services and maintenance, tank cleaning and

fluids service

other equipment services.
completed on 31 May 2018.

The Vimab Acquisition was

Pursuant to the Vimab Agreement, the consideration for the
Vimab Acquisition should be satisfied as to (i) approximately
HK$23.0 million in cash; and (ii) approximately HK$147.5
million by way of the allotment and issue of 42,137,142 new
Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) of the Company at the
issue price of HK$3.5 per Share. 19,488,428 new Shares out
of the Consideration Shares are subject to a lock-up period,
which will be released upon fulfilment of certain financial
benchmarks by the Vimab Group for the financial year ended
or ending (as the case may be) 31 December 2018 and 2019.
Details of the lock-up arrangement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 May 2018.

One of the conditions precedent of the Vimab Agreement
was that 13 key employees of the Vimab Group (the
“Subscribers”) shall each have entered into a subscription
agreement as subscriber with the Company to subscribe for a
total of 5,380,000 Shares at the total subscription price of
HK$18,830,000 (i.e. HK$3.5 per Share) (collectively, the
“Employees Subscription Agreements”). The Employees
Subscription Agreements were all entered into on 31 May

2018.

Gy BEVEY
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It was subsequently discovered that 12 out of 13 Subscribers
had made their respective payments for their subscription
shares in a total subscription amount of HK$17,066,000 to
Melinder with the understanding that Melinder would deliver
the money to the Company on their behalf for the purpose of
completing their respective Employees Subscription
Agreements. However, Melinder had not delivered the
subscription monies to the Company.

To settle the claims against Melinder for the subscription
monies in the total amount of HK$17,066,000 (the “Claims”),
on 22 August 2018, the Company, FBD and the 12
Subscribers entered into a deed of settlement (the
“Settlement Deed”) with Melinder and PHM, which is one of
the vendors of the Vimab Agreement and is wholly and
beneficially owned by Melinder.

Pursuant to such Settlement Deed, PHM and Melinder agreed
to settle the Claims with the proceeds of the 21,068,571
Shares owned by PHM and pledged to the Company (the
"Pledged Shares”) on or before the Final Settlement Date (i.e.
14 June 2019, being 4 (four) months after the suspension of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been lifted). As PHM
and Melinder were unable to sell the Pledged Shares at a
price on or above the price floor of HK$2.45 per Share as
agreed under the Settlement Deed, therefore, the Subscribers
and Melinder subsequently entered into, inter alia, (i) a
Promissory Note and (ii) Satisfaction and Discharge Claims
(together with the Promissory Note, the “Settlement
Documents”) regarding the subscription monies.

On 3 December 2019, the Company and all Subscribers
entered into 13 deeds of termination (the “Termination
Deeds”), respectively, pursuant to which the parties agreed
that the relevant Subscription Agreement shall be terminated
and be of no further force and effect.

Upon termination of the relevant Subscription Agreement, all
future obligations and liabilities of the parties thereunder shall
be extinguished in the entirety.
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The parties to the Share Purchase Agreement entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) on
3 December 2019 pursuant to which the parties to the Share
Purchase Agreement agreed that, the provisions in relation to
the Employees’ Subscription Condition and the Subscription
Payment Guarantee shall be deleted from the Share Purchase
Agreement with immediate effect.

As such, all the previous claims between FBD, the Subscribers
against PHM and Melinder were resolved.

As stipulated in the Vimab Agreement, if the audited EBITDA
under International Financial Reporting Standards of Vimab
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“2018
EBITDA") increases by not less than 10% as compared with
the audited 2017 EBITDA, 50% of the lock-up Shares will be
unlocked and released on the 15th Business Day after the
issue of such audited financial statements of the Vimab
Group; (b) if the 2018 EBITDA divided by the 110% of the
2017 EBITDA falls on a range from 85.1% to 100%, it is
calculated as, on a pro rata basis, (2018 EBITDA/(2017 EBITDA
X 110%) — 85.1%)/(100% — 85.1%) of 50% of the lock-up
Shares shall be unlocked and released, and PHM and Fl shall,
within ten (10) Business Days from the date when the 2018
EBITDA is finalised, return to the FBD the remaining lock-up
Shares (or an amount equivalent to the value at the issue
price. of such remaining lock-up Shares) in the following
priority: (1) by cash in an amount equivalent to the issue price
of such remaining lock-up Shares; (2) if (1) is not available
and subject to the compliance of the relevant rules and
requirement by the Company, by returning such remaining
lock-up Shares to the Company for revocation and
cancellation; or (c) if both (a) and (b) are not applicable, by
returning cash in an amount equivalent to the issue price of
such remaining lock-up Shares or such remaining lock-up
Shares to the Company for revocation and cancellation.
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Similar to 2018 EBITDA, if the audited EBITDA under
International Financial Reporting Standards of Vimab Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“2019 EBITDA")
increases by 21% or more as compared with the audited
2017 EBITDA, 50% of the remaining lock-up Shares will be
unlocked and released on the 15th Business Day after the
issue of such audited financial statements of the Vimab
Group; (b) if the 2019 EBITDA divided by the 121% of the
2017 EBITDA falls on a range from 85.1% to 100%, it is
calculated as, on a pro rata basis, (2019 EBITDA/(2017 EBITDA
x 110%) — 85.1%)/(100% — 85.1%) of 50% of the lock-up
Shares shall be unlocked and released, and PHM and Fl shall,
within ten (10) Business Days from the date when the 2019
EBITDA is finalised, return to the FBD the remaining lock-up
Shares (or an amount equivalent to the value at the issue
price of such remaining lock-up Shares) in the following
priority: (1) by cash in an amount equivalent to the issue price
of such remaining lock-up Shares; (2) if (1) is not available
and subject to the compliance of the relevant rules and
requirement by the Company, by returning such remaining
lock-up Shares to the Company for revocation and
cancellation; or (c) if both (a) and (b) are not applicable, by
returning cash in an amount equivalent to the issue price of
such remaining lock-up Shares or such remaining lock-up
Shares to the Company for revocation and cancellation.

Audited 2018 EBITDA is yet to be available as at the date of
this report and the Company will make further announcement
for such update.

The unaudited 2019 EBITDA is less than the financial
benchmark of that as set out in the Share Purchase
Agreement. Therefore the Company attempts to negotiate
with other parties to the Vimab Agreement to agree such
results and not perform a special audit as stipulated in the
Vimab Agreement.

Late-October to early March will be a low season for Vimab
due to the winter time in Nordic area, and the outbreak of
COVID-19 in Europe started in March 2020, and therefore,
COVID-19 did not have significant impact to Vimab business
for the current Year.
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The revenue from Vimab group increased from HK$156.1

million to HK$188.6 million, representing an increase of
20.8% as in the current Year it covered a full year of revenue
while only 10 months were consolidated (since acquisition to
31 March 2019) for previous year.

Further information on the update of Vimab is set out in the
section headed “Events after the reporting period” below.

Events after the reporting period

(1)

Enforcement of the pledge over the shares in Vimab
Vimab was indebted to a fund (the “Fund”) in the
principal of SEK131,000,000 (approximately
HK$101,509,000) pursuant to a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) entered into between Vimab (as
borrower) and the Fund (as lender).

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the indebtedness
should have been repaid in full on 16 April 2021, and
such indebtedness was secured (the “Pledge”) by all the
issued shares of Vimab (the “Pledged Shares”).
According to the Loan Agreement, the Fund has the
right to call for immediate full repayment.

The Fund enforced the Pledge and transferred all the
Pledged Shares to a company designated by the Fund
on or around 7 April 2020 without any instrument
entered by the holding company of Vimab and the
Company.

As such, Vimab ceased to be the subsidiary subsequent
to such enforcement of Pledged Shares, details of which
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29
April 2020 and 26 May 2020.

BB BRI

BAVImabEBERANFEFETEHM2F I
A MR E—FERGEFTEI0EA
(B U B 201938318 1H) B IR
A R BVimab% W A |
156,100,000/ 7T 3% %188,600,000/%
JC #K20.8% -

BRVimabZ#F BN #E — FERH
RTIX[HERBREER]—F -

HBEHEFEE

(1) Vimabfig (7 89 & ## 2 77
VimabiR & — 78 i Vimab (1 &
BERAE-—KREe(ZE
] ERBERANEITILMER
mBE(EFBRDERZES
AN 4 4 $£131,000,000% # 55 BA
(#9101,509,000 7T) °

BIEERBE  ZEBHRER
2021F4316B 2 HIEE - MZ
& 7 LAVimab 2 20 2 Z 17 %
([ERBRODERBERIZE
) - RRBERWE  ZESE
BERTHAE2HERZES -

ZESERTHRER TR
2020F4A7H KA EAR B
Vimab B 4ZE % A B R AR R RIFT 32
ARXENBRT HAEE
BROMBEEZZESETH —
ﬁzﬁ’&ﬁj"

E it + Vimab B R 8117 & iR (7
BTIBAMBAR BEFESE
BN ARQE B HIA20209F4 829
H 202095826 H B A o

27



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE T wm &R

28

2)

3)

On 27 July 2020, the parties have compromised on
settling all disputes and claims between them relating to
the Loan Agreement and/or the enforcement of the
pledge over the pledged Shares and entered into a
discharge agreement (the “Discharge Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group undertook that, among
others, not to make any claims on the designated
company’s ownership of the Pledged Shares, and/or the
enforcement of the pledge of the Pledged Shares. On
the other hand, the Fund undertook and confirmed that
the obligations and/or liabilities of the Group in
connection with or in relation to the Loan Agreement
and any letter of comfort will cease and terminate. The
Discharge Agreement will not exempt, waive or relieve
the Fund from its obligation to repay any surplus from
the enforcement of the pledge of Pledged Shares to the
Group as the original pledgor of the Shares, details of
which are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 July 2020.

Memsys JV

It is proposed to commence a voluntarily liquidation for
the Memsys JV. Memsys JV has not yet commenced
business and therefore the proposed liquidation would
have no material impact to the Group. Upon completion
of liquidation of Memsys JV, the Group’s and Cevital's
obligation to the cooperation agreement shall be
discharged entirely.

Clear Industry

The parties to the Clear Industry Acquisition entered
into a settlement agreement on 28 May 2020 pursuant
to which the Group conditionally agreed to return the
shares of Clear Industry to the Qinggin, representing
51% of the total issued share capital of Clear Industry.

2)

3)
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On the other hand, pursuant to the settlement
agreement, Qinggin will, within 6 months from the date
of the said settlement agreement (or other dates as
agreed by the parties in writing), dispose the
consideration shares issued by the Company to any
transferee(s) who is not the Group or any of their
connected persons, and arrange the transferee(s) to
deposit the relevant proceeds to the bank account
designated by the Group. Qinggin will also refund,
subject to offsetting other outstanding balance owed by
the Group to Clear Industry as to be verified and
confirmed by the relevant parties, a total of
RMB36,000,000 in cash in 5 tranches within 18 months
from the date of such settlement agreement. Upon
payment of the refund in full, all obligation to pay the
Suzhou Commitment compensation under the Clear
Industry Acquisition shall be deemed as fulfilled.

Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 May 2020 and 29 July 2020.
1st instalment of RMB5 million pursuant to the
settlement agreement was received and such settlement
agreement was completed on 31 July 2020.

TDR

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27
April 2017 and the 2018 and 2019 annual reports, the
Company entered into a non-legally binding framework
agreement with Shanghai Fuji Investment Co., Ltd.* E
B E B R A R], the previous owner of TDR on 27
April 2017 pursuant to which the Company intended to
acquire the entire equity interest in TDR. Such
framework agreement lapsed in October 2017 and the
previous owner transferred the entire equity interest in
TDR to the current owner in January 2018. The
Company has been in discussion with the current owner
for a strategic participation in the Target Company.

The Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding dated 22 July 2020 with an affiliate of
the TDR current owner pursuant to which the Company
(or through its designated parties) intended to about
18% equity interest in TDR. Details of which are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2020.
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(5)  Entering of placing agreement and subscription
agreements
The Company entered into a placing agreement dated
10 June 2020 with a placing agent pursuant to which
such placing agent has conditionally agreed to place up
to 57,290,113 new Shares, at a price of HK$0.202 per
placing share.

The Company also entered into subscription agreements
dated 15 June 2020 with 3 subscribers pursuant to
which such placing agent has conditionally agreed to
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of 49,768,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.221 per subscription share.
Such subscription was completed on 26 June 2020.

Both the placing agreement and subscription
agreements were completed and 50,922,000 placing
shares and 49,768,000 subscription shares were issued
under the general
general meeting of the Company held on 16 August
2019.

mandate passed at the annual

Net proceeds from the placing agreement and

subscription agreements are expected to be

approximately HK$22 million.

Outlook

The construction industry will remain challenging in the coming
year. The ongoing COVID-19, uncertainties of the trade tensions
between China and United States, together with no immediate
resolution of the social unrest
uncertainties to the Hong Kong economy and impacts to our
construction business. However, in view of the land policy of the
Hong Kong Government in increasing land supply for housing

developments for both private and public sectors,

in Hong Kong have posted

we are
conservatively optimistic as to the long term demands in the
construction industry.
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During the Year, major cities in the PRC including Beijing, Shanghai
Chongging etc., regulation to stipulate
residents are required by law to sort domestic waste. The outbreak
of COVID-19 has enlightened the public awareness over public
hygiene, waste treatments etc., in which bringing more business
opportunities to overall environmental protection industry in China.

implemented certain

The Group have been approaching various partners in China with an
aim to explore certain cross-border business opportunities and
bringing our expertise in the valve services to China. Despite a
negotiation is closed to reach, but it was subsequently calling off
along with the enforcement of Pledged Shares of Vimab.

Financial Review

Results of the Group

During the Year, revenue of the Group decreased by approximately
18.1% to approximately HK$837.2 million (2019: HK$1,021.7
million), resulted decrease in revenue for

in which it was

construction business. Further discussion and analysis on the
financial performance of each business segment of the Group is set

out in the section headed “Business Review"” above.

Loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$295.7 million (2019: HK$92.7 million).

Basic loss per share was HK51.61 cents (2019: HK16.38 cent).

Other income and gains, net

Other income and gain, net decreased approximately from HK$44.2
million for FY2019 to HK$43.8 million for the Year. In previous
year, included in the amounts of HK$21.1 million arose from the
gain on disposal of a kitchen waste treatment in Shenzhen and an
oversea subsidiary holding Memsys Assets sold to Cevital. In the
current Year, the amount was mainly arising from the completion of
Stand Ascent Disposal and there recognised a gain of approximately
HK$29.3 million, being (i) the reverse of impairment previously
recognised for DSE Receivables and SPM Receivables in previous
years; and (i) interest income of from Xu and Muhammed under
the deed of undertaking date 6 July 2019 at 8% per annum.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 5.0% from
approximately HK$275.3 million to HK$289.1 million, as amount in
current Year covered full-year of expenses incurred by Vimab while
only 10-months were consolidated (since acquisition to 31 March
2019) for previous year.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group decreased from approximately HK$62.4
million to HK$46.8 million for the Year, primarily due to an one-off
acceleration of interest expense of approximately HK$15.0 million
over convertible bond along with its derecognition resulting from
the suspension of the Company’s trading of shares in previous year.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased from HK$19.7 million to HK$193.8
million. In previous year, the amount included the impairment of (i)
loss of contingent receivable in respect of Suzhou Commitments of
approximately HK$20.3 million; (ii) loss of contingent consideration
asset in respect of fulfilment of certain financial benchmarks in
Vimab Acquisition as set out in section headed “lll Industrial Fluids
System Services” of approximately HK$5.0 million and (iii) gain on
fair value of approximately HK$15 million in convertible bond. In
addition, the Group also incurred an one-off expense for legal and
professional fee of approximately HK$9.3 million for the resumption
of trading. In the current Year, an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$140.0 million was arising from the impairment
recognised for goodwill, intangible assets, property plant and
equipment related to Vimab as a result of the enforcement of
pledged shares subsequent to the reporting period. The other
HK$53.8 million represented impairment recognised for goodwill
and service concession of Hefei Plant due to the deterioration of its
recoverable amount arising from failure of technological

improvement and delay in proposed price adjustment.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$29.8 million (as at 31 March 2019: approximately
HK$38.7 million).

The total interest-bearing loans comprising leases liabilities, bonds,
bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2020 was
at 31 March 2019:
approximately HK$378.9 million), and current ratio for the Year was

approximately HK$425.4 million (as

approximately 0.59 (as at 31 March 2019: approximately 1.16).

32

ITHBRHX

NE B /1T X H #9275,300,000% 7T
F+ #95.0% = £9289,100,0005 7T * 2 AR A
FENESEREVIMIbEFELANFZ M
F—FERREFEA10EA (B UWE#LE2019
£3H318) -

BB A

7N 52 B B B 75 K 7N B 4962,400,0007%8 JTOR 4>
R E#)46,800,0008 7T TEEZHN —
O DR R AT 2 3R (B 5 A1 B 2 £915,000,000
BLIREREEARARNEEFEEEMR
1FFERR -

HihF X

H 4 B X $19,700,000 7t + F &
193,800,000/ 7L > EF—FEM S EBEMN
TEIERE (1) B &R N GE /9 sk A U R
TH /5 18 #920,300,0007 T (i)E BE &= R
Vimab i EIEE THBEEMNIAREE
EE 518 495,000,000 7o ([l TERER
GRHBI—8) RGNTREES A FEY
% #915,000,000/% 7T © I 9h - AN B IR E £
—XMAY  NEEMEEENEEREE
£ 499,300,000/ 7C c RAFE » AR E
HBAITE MG  MVimabFr P e - &
EE W% BELRZERRRELELD
140,000,000/ 7T ° E #:53,800,000/%8 T8 &
fEEE B ALXR R ERERARLER
BYARESERD - SEE MR
TR E -

RBEERUBER

M2020F3A318  AEBMIRITHEH LR
& #) 429,800,000/ 7T (H2019F3 8318 :
#738,700,0005 7T ) °

202038318 - AEEMEEREE
(BEHEEE BF RITEREMEERE)LH
#$425,400,0007% 7T (7201993 A318 : 4
378,900,000/ 7t.) + M ANF E H) ik B L 4
7/50.59 (7201943 A318 : 491.16) °



202056 FH RAIXEE(ER)ERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s borrowings and bank balances are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB"”) and Swedish
Krona (“SEK”) and there may be significant exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations.

As the trading of the Shares have been suspended during July 2018
to February 2019, which was more than the stipulated period (i.e.
30 business days) according to the terms of the convertible bonds in
the principal amount of US$5,000,000 issued to Forest Water
Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in
Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (stock code: 8473)
with limited liability (“Forest Water”), the Company has been
negotiating with Forest Water for settlement arrangement about the
repayment for outstanding principal and interests. As at 31 March
2020, the principal and accrued interest outstanding under such
convertible bonds is approximately US$6.2 million (equivalent to
HK$49 million).

Up to the date of this report, no formal agreement has been
reached while Forest Water has not served any written notice for
repayment.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had a net loss of
HK$312,454,000 and net current liabilities of HK$287,452,000 as at
31 March 2020. As of that date, the Group had bonds, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings totalling HK$279,533,000, trade
and retention payables, other payables and accruals and lease
liabilities totalling HK$394,689,000 included in current liabilities
while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents was HK$29,817,000. In
addition, the Group has bonds and interest-bearing borrowings with
principals and interests totalling HK$176,461,000 has been overdue
or become repayable on demand.
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In particular, Vimab had an outstanding borrowing of
SEK131,000,000 (approximately HK$101,509,000), as secured by all
issued shares of Vimab and certain of its subsidiaries (“Pledged
Shares”), to a creditor (the “Fund”) which will be mature and
become payable on 16 April 2021 according to the loan agreement
(“Loan Agreement”). The Fund demanded for loan repayment since
the Fund considered Vimab was in default as it was evident that
Vimab would not be capable of discharging the full amount of the
outstanding indebtedness under the Loan Agreement and therefore
the Fund enforced the Pledged Shares under the Loan Agreement,
and transferred all the Pledged Shares to a company designated by
it ("Designated Company”). Upon the completion of the transfer of
the Pledged Shares, the Group lost its ownership interests in Vimab.
The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and, therefore it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of 15
months from the end of the reporting period (the “Forecast
Period”). In doing so, the directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to its operating needs, the future liquidity of
the Group and its available sources of financing, in light of the fact
that the outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020 had led to the
suspension of the environment protection segment in the PRC from
February to March 2020 and the operations have gradually resumed
since March 2020 but with certain operational plant not fully
restored to the level before such outbreak, in assessing whether the
Group will be able to repay the outstanding debts and be able to
finance its future working capital and other financial requirements.

The cash flow forecast has included the effects of the following
major measures and events that have been implemented or taking
place in order to enhance the Group’s liquidity position to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due, including the
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aforesaid bonds, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
HK$279,533,000 and current trade and retention payable, other
payables and accruals and lease liabilities totalling HK$394,689,000
as at 31 March 2020:

a)

The Company and the Fund entered a discharge agreement
dated 27 July 2020 (”Discharge Agreement”). Had the
Discharge Agreement been executed and completed as at 31
March 2020, Group’s net current liabilities as at 31 March
2020 would have been reduced by HK$72 million in terms of
a decrease in current assets and current liabilities of HK$75
million and HK$147 million respectively and a decrease in
non-current liabilities as at 31 March 2020 of HK$25 million;

Collecting the proceeds from the disposal of Clear Industry
amounting to RMB5 million (approximately HK$5,429,000),
representing the 1st instalment received, within the Forecast
Period;

The Group entered into placement agreement and subscription
agreements and raised approximately HK$22 million in June
2020;

The Group appointed a placing agent in arranging at best effort
basis for the issue of the corporate bonds that repayable
after 2 year of approximately HK$200 million;

The Group obtained an interest-free loan of HK$50 million from
an indirect substantial shareholder of the Company within the
Forecast Period which is repayable after 12 months from the
date of this report; and

The Group has been also actively identifying any other possible
financing options and debt restructuring exercises to further
enhance and strengthen the liquidity of the Group.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
above-mentioned measures and events, the Group would have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due over the Forecast
Period. Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 on a going

concern basis.
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Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Taking into account the above-mentioned plans and measures, The
Directors are in the views that the Group would have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2020 was approximately 385.7%
(as at 31 March 2019: approximately 90.56%).

The increase in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the increase
in overall Group’s borrowings during the Year.

The gearing ratio is calculated as the payables incurred not in the

ordinary course of business (excluding loan from a related
companies/directors/shareholders) divided by total equity attributable

to the owners of the Company as at the respective years.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2020, the Group pledged certain assets including (i)
property, plant and equipment with carrying values of
approximately HK$112,810,000 (31 March 2019: approximately
HK$20,261,000), as collateral to secure the facilities granted to the
Group.

The Group also guaranteed certain facilities through receivables
from the Group’s service concession arrangements, equity interests
in subsidiaries of the Group and the prepaid lease payments and
equipment.
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Foreign exchange exposure

Certain revenue-generating operations and assets and liabilities of
the Group are denominated in RMB and SEK and may expose the
Group to the fluctuation of Hong Kong dollars against RMB and
SEK. The Group did not enter into any hedging arrangement or
derivative products. However, the Board and management will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exchange exposure and
will consider adopting certain hedging measures against the
currency risk when necessary.

Capital structure

During the Year, there has been no change in capital structure of
the Company. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary
shares and capital reserves. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated from
operations and borrowings.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately HK$45,261,000 (as at 31 March 2019: approximately
HK$41,725,000) in relation to the projects of the Group under the
ordinary course of business.

Human resources management

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 566 employees, including
Directors (as at 31 March 2019: 682 employees, including Directors).
Total
approximately HK$188,936,000 for the Year as compared to
approximately HK$211,744,000 for FY2019. Remuneration was
individual

staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were

determined with reference to market norms and

employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual's performance. Other staff
benefits include provision of retirement benefit, injury insurance and
share options.

Significant investments held

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held approximately 8.69% of the
total issued share capital of Josab Water Solutions AB (“Josab”), the
shares of which are listed on Spotlight Stock Market, a stock
exchange in Sweden. Such Josab’s shares were held under Vimab
and accordingly was derecognised from the Group subsequent to
such enforcement of Pledged Shares (of Vimab).

BB BRI

o BE 2 B
AEEETHRIBMANEBREERAE
AARYE MIn R BARHE TS AKE®E
HETHEARYE ki B E KX B A
b o REEIW BT LMD L RITEE
e A EEFEREREBFEERINE
FERER  WNEFEREERIRE T HH
R EEER -

BEXRE

RARFE  RRBNERARBLEES - K
RAEMERNBREBREERGFHERE - AN EHE
RRAEEMSESUREERNEES

EXRE

M2020F3A318  AEBEBRAEEBKB
2R RIIE B K& AFANEH A45,261,000% 7T
(2019438318 : 4941,725,000/8 7T) °

ANERERE

202038318 © & &£ B * B566% (K
2019%F3A31H : 682%) R E (BRIEES) -
REEMEINALB(RRESTHE)D
4188,936,0007% 7T * 201981 B & £ Al 49
211,744,000 L - Ny 2 B 5 E R
UEEREESERE BEREERET -

BREAF S AEETARSRERENR
BARBERIEL - H 8 TRANEBEHIE
HERRER - BT R R B -

FisEXKRE

202053 H31H - AEE R HJosab Water
Solutions AB ([ Josab J) (E & 1 7 I £2 — [
& 5 % 5 FrSpotlight Stock Market ET) B
TR AR 42 B 498.69% © #% FJosabl& {7 B
Vimab$$ & - A Itk - AVimab®y & # % 15 3%
PITHRBAEER EER-

37



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIRE T wm &R

Save as disclosed above and except for investment in subsidiaries,
during the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investment
in equity interest in any other company.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies
during the Year.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had outstanding performance
bond for construction contracts amounting to approximately
HK$68.4 million (as at 31 March 2019: approximately HK$76.0
million).

The Company has agreed to provide the corporate guarantee for
the due performance of the repayment obligations of the wholly-
owned subsidiary of TDR up to an aggregate amount of
RMB153,986,000 under principal agreements dated 14 July 2017
entered into between such TDR’s subsidiary and CITIC Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd.

In consideration of the corporate guarantee provided by the
Company, TDR entered into the counter-guarantee agreement with
the Company, pursuant to which, TDR has agreed to provide to the
Company the guarantee fee and the counter-guarantee in respect of
such corporate guarantee.
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Material Difference between Unaudited and Audited FEBREHEERERE2FEZEZHNEX
Annual Results £ZER

Set forth below are the material difference and the reason for such T X & 5| R2020%6 5298 % Xk # &K X 7

difference between the unaudited annual results published on 29 20200 M EE AR ER L2 FEE B ANF

June 2020 and the audited results of the Company for FY2020. MEGZEEZENERERZURTEREH
ZEMNFRE -

Disclosed in
Disclosed in this Unaudited Results

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT announcement Announcement Difference
OF FINANCIAL POSITION REBRES

31 March 2020 AAMGEKE AR E 3 -
FEMBRAR HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2020%3H31H TFHET THET FTHET
Current liabilities mBAE 696,249 670,749 25,500
Net current liabilities MENBEFE (287,452) (261,952) (25,500)
Total assets less current liabilites ZAEZBEHTEEE 605,851 631,351 (25,500)
Non-current liabilities EnBEE 451,626 477,126 (25,500)

Note: Such difference is due to the reclassification of bonds amounting to M5t BRERIRM25,500,000%8 T8 &5 B IER
HK$25,500,000 from non-current liabilities to current liabilities. HEEENSPEARDERE -

=

Save as disclosed in this announcement, all other information BRARMAREEI  REEZXBELMA
contained in the unaudited results announcement remain S AEMEM AT TE -

unchanged.

Extract from Independent Auditor’s Report 38 31 4% BB 4R 4 6 £k
The following is an extract of the independent Auditor’s report on b T /728 5 1202081 I 4 & 45 & B4 75 2 %
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the FY2020: B 98 7 A% BB 3R 8
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Basis for qualified opinion

As disclosed in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
during the period from January 2016 to November 2016, the Group
paid deposits for the potential acquisition of a 49% equity interests
in PT. Dempo Sumber Energi (“DSE”) ("DSE Agreement”) and a
80% equity interests in PT. Sumatera Pembangkit Mandiri (“SPM").
In addition, the Group paid certain expenses on behalf of DSE and
advanced loans to DSE, SPM and their beneficial shareholders.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the shares of DSE and SPM
(representing 49% and 80% of the equity interests in DSE and SPM
respectively) were transferred to Stand Ascent Limited (“Stand
Ascent”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the
Company. The Group accounted for the DSE and SPM shares held
by Stand Ascent as collateral to secure the payments for the
deposits paid and expenses paid on behalf and loans advanced as
stated above. After the transfer of shares, the Group appointed 4
out of 6 directors of DSE and 5 out of 7 directors of SPM.
Thereafter, the Group has entered into a series of transactions and
agreements with various parties including further payments for
deposits for the potential acquisition of additional 5% equity
interests in SPM and the termination of the DSE Agreement.

On 29 June 2018, the Group entered into a disposal agreement
and on 15 August 2019 a supplemental deed to the disposal
agreement (collectively “the Disposal Agreement”) to dispose of the
Group’s 100% equity interest in Stand Ascent (“the Disposal”). As
at 31 March 2019 and up to the date of the Disposal, the Group
have received an aggregate amount of HK$83,764,000 from the
buyer in the Disposal Agreement and its beneficial controlling
shareholder (the “Money Received”).

On 15 August 2019, the Group also entered into a settlement
(the “Settlement Agreement”) in relation to the
settlement of the consideration for the Disposal (the
“Consideration”). According to the Settlement Agreement, the
Consideration will be settled by the amount due by the Group to
the purchaser and its beneficial controlling shareholder for the

agreement

Money Received. The amount of Money Received in excess of the
Consideration was agreed to be waived.
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As at 31 March 2019, the aggregated amount of deposits paid,
expenses paid on behalf and loans advanced (“Payments”) of
approximately HK$67,637,000 was accounted for as receivables. The
carrying amount of the Payments as of 31 March 2019 after
netting off impairment provision of HK$15,854,000 was of
HK$51,783,000 and recorded under prepayments, deposits and
other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019. For the year ended 31 March 2019, no
impairment provision was recognised (or reversed) against the
Payments.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 up to the date of the
Disposal, no further impairment provision was recognised (or
reversed) against the Payments. As at the date of the Disposal, after
netting off the impairment provision of HK$15,854,000, the carrying
amount of the Payments was of HK$54,415,000 and a gain on
Disposal of HK$29,349,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The directors of the Company have not provided us with
satisfactory evidence relating to the nature of the transactions
giving rise to the Payments as detailed in the paragraphs above (the
“Transactions”) (further details are disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements) and their conclusion that the
Payments are receivables in nature throughout the years. As such
we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves whether the Transactions have been appropriately
accounted for, including whether accounting for the Payments as
receivables is appropriate and accordingly (i) whether impairment
provision recognised against the Payments is appropriate and the
amount of impairment provision recognised is properly determined
or measured in accordance with HKFRSs; and (ii) whether the gain
on the Disposal is properly calculated. As a result, we were also
unable to satisfy ourselves whether the disclosures in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements are complete and accurate.
There were no alternative audit procedures that we could perform
to satisfy ourselves as to the above-mentioned matters.
Consequently,
adjustments to these amounts/disclosures were necessary.

we were unable to determine whether any
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We modified our audit opinion on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 due to
limitations on scope of our work on the nature of the Transactions.
Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves whether the
Transactions were properly accounted for and disclosed in the
March
2019. Any adjustments to the amount of impairment provision of
HK$15,854,000 recognised as at 31 March 2019 would have a
consequential impact on the amount of impairment provision to be
recognised or reversed during the year ended 31 March 2020. Our
opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for year
ended 31 March 2020 is also modified because of the effect of the
related 2019 figures in the
consolidated financial statements may not be comparable.

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

possible adjustment and the

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3(b)(ii) in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group had a net loss of
HK$312,454,000 and net current liabilities of HK$287,452,000 as at
31 March 2020. As of that date, the Group had bonds, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings totalling HK$279,533,000 trade
and retention payable, other payables and accruals and lease
liabilities totalling HK$394,689,000 included in current liabilities
while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents was HK$29,817,000.
As stated in note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
these conditions and events, along with the matters set out in note
3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Supplementary information regarding the Qualified
Opinion

The Auditor has expressed a qualified opinion on the receivables in
respect of the DSE Receivables and the SPM Receivables. Set out
below are the supplementary information regarding the aforesaid
qualified opinion:

1.  Background of the DSE Receivables and the SPM
Receivables
A detailed chronology of events for better comprehension of
the circumstances leading to the alterations to the terms and
nature of the DSE Acquisition and the SPM Acquisition and
the resulting Management’'s decisions are set out in the
management discuss and analysis in the 2018 and 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

annual reports and section headed “Strategic investments —
(i) Hydropower projects in Indonesia” above in the Company’s
unaudited annual results announcement dated 29 June 2020.

2.  Management’s position

The position of the Company’s management (the
“Management”) about the nature of the DSE Receivables and
the SPM Receivables as at 31 March 2019 as receivables and
the impairment recognised thereon as at 31 March 2019 are
set out in the management discuss and analysis in the 2019
annual report. As the Group completed the disposal of DSE
Receivables and the SPM Receivables during the Year, other
than the comparative figures and annual results of FY2020,
the Management considers that qualified opinion has resolved
as at 31 March 2020 and such matter will be no longer
applicable on the Group’s financial statements for the year
ending 31 March 2021.

3. Potential impact on the Company

The Group disposed all the equity interest in DSE and SPM
during the Year, and therefore such limitation in over the
appropriateness of the accounting treatment for DSE
Receivables and the SPM Receivables was resolved. However,
as the Auditor was unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence
to ascertain the nature of the transactions relating to DSE and
SPM as at 31 March 2019, the Auditor was unable to satisfy
about the completeness and accuracy of the respective
disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements about such disposal as well as the annual results
of the Company for FY2020.

4. View of the Audit Committee and Management’s

position

A meeting was held on 6 August 2020 by the Audit
Committee for the purpose of approving the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2020.
Having carried out independent review of and enquiries on
the subject transaction, the Audit Committee concurred with
the management'’s explanation and position on the accounting
treatment of the DSE Receivables and the SPM Receivables
and the resolution on the qualified opinion.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the
areas leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancement of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.
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The Company has adopted the compliance manual which sets out
the minimum standard of good practices concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board with which the Company
and the Directors shall comply and which contains, among other
things, the code provisions of the corporate governance codes (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

Final Dividend
The Board proposes not to recommend payment of a final dividend
to the shareholders for FY2020 (FY2019: nil).

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company was established in compliance
with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules with written terms of
reference. The latest terms of reference of the audit committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

A summary of work of the audit committee during the Year is as
follows:

auditors, reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board’s approval on the annual and

. met with the external

interim results and reports of the Company;

o reviewed and approved audit fee;

o recommended the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditors,
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting; and

o reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The audit committee has reviewed the Company’s unaudited
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020
published on 29 June 2022, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed the auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters as well as the unaudited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 with the management and the auditor of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Yongjun, aged 53, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive director of the Company on 24 May 2016.
He is also a member of the nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Zhu is an executive director of China Water Industry Group
Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited) (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1129).
He was an executive director of EverChina Int’l Holdings Company
Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) (Stock Code: 202) from May 2008 to February 2013 and
the chairman of the board of Heilongjiang Interchina Water
Treatment Company Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) (Stock Code: 600187), from January 2009 to May
2015. Mr. Zhu obtained his undergraduate from Hunan University in
1989, and a Master’'s degree of business administration in Peking
University in the People’s Republic of China in 2005. He started his
environmental protection career in 2001.

Ms. Qin Shulan, aged 57, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 24 May 2016 and subsequently appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer on 27 February 2017. She is the senior
engineer of Northern China Municipal Engineering Design and
Research Institute. She was the legal representative and supervisor
of water treatment new technology commercialisation centre (Tianjin
Free Trade Zone Water Treatment
Commercialisation Centre) under the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the People’s Republic of China from
2006 to 2015. the person in charge of the
commercialisation of biologically reinforced filler and its carrier and

New Technology

She was

auxiliary device for municipal sewage treatment plant, which is a key
water body pollution control and restoration technology project in
China’s 12th Five-Year Plan. She was also the general manager and
vice chairperson of Capital Aihua Municipal & Environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd. from 2009 to November 2015. She obtained
her Master's degree in business administration from Tianjin
University. She has over 30 years of experience in investment,
constructions,

protection-related businesses.

development and operations of environmental
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Mr. Cai Jianwen, aged 45, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 23 September 2015 and is also a member of
the remuneration committee of the Board and the authorised
representative of the Company. He was a general manager of
Interchina Water Treatment Hong Kong Company Limited (B 7K
¥ EBBR2AE]) from April 2014 to March 2016. From May 2011
2014, he was also the Chief Financial Officer of
Heilongjiang Interchina Water Treatment Company Limited* whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600187).

to April

He received a Master of Business Administration degree from China
Europe International Business School (CEIBS) in March 2008. Mr. Cai
was a member of China Institute of Certified Public Accountant.
Since 2015, Mr. Cai is also a director of Josab Water Solutions AB,
a company incorporated under the laws of Sweden, whose share are
listed on the Spotlight Stock Market, a stock exchange in Sweden.

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
August 2018. He joined the
Company in November 2015 and was appointed as the Company’s

director of the Company on 31

company secretary on 24 May 2016. Since year 2016, he is also the
company secretary and director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He graduated from the University of Oregon in
the United States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree in
year 1999.
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Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Ge Xiaolin, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 2 July 2020. Dr. Ge is the chairman of Tianjin
SOFIT Building Materials Co., Ltd. Dr. Ge received a master’s degree
in 1990 and a bachelor’'s degree in 1988 in Hunan University,
subsequently obtained his Ph.D. degree in Beijing University in 2013,
and postdoctoral researcher in Applied Economics in Hunan
University in 2010. Dr. Ge was the (Term Ninth to Tenth) member
of All-China Youth Association. Prior to founding his own company,
Dr. Ge worked in China Pinghe Import & Export Co., Ltd. (as
general manager), and Goalmark International Group (as vice
general manager and subsequent as general manager).

Dr. Zhang Lihui, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 8 September 2016. Dr. Zhang is a
managing partner of Tsing Capital. Dr. Zhang has been focusing on
the investment related to environmental protection, clean energy,
high technology and precious materials in China since joining Tsing
Capital.

Dr. Zhang received a master's degree in Laws and a bachelor’s
degree in Technology English in PLA University of Foreign
Languages, subsequently obtained his Ph.D. degree in Economics
from the University of International Business and Economics.
Dr. Zhang also completed the Advanced Management Program at

Harvard Business School in 2009.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 26 August
2014. He is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board
and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Board.

Mr. Lo was awarded a Bachelor of Laws degree by the University of
London in August 1988. He is a member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
November 1991 in general legal practice. From December 1993 to
the date of this annual report, Mr. Lo has been a partner of Joseph
C.T. Lee & Co. and engaged in various fields of legal practice
involving commercial and conveyancing litigation, acquisition and
sale of business and/or companies, company liquidation, charity
foundation works, formation of religious organisations, family law,
immigration law and employment law. He is an independent non-
executive director of Huarchi Global Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) (Stock
Code: 2296) since November 2019.

Dr. Tong Ka Lok, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 26 August 2014. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board and a member of
each of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board.

Dr. Tong was awarded a Doctor of Public Health degree
(epidemiology and biostatistics) from the Macau University of
Science and Technology in August 2013. Dr. Tong is a founder and
partner of Baker Tilly Macao Certified Public Accountants which was
established in October 2000. He is an auditor registered at the
Committee for the Registry of Auditors and Accountants in Macau
in January 2006. Besides his business establishment, Dr. Tong was
appointed as a member of the Nanjing Committee of CPPCC* (
BARBAMEEZERMEES), and Vice President of the
Macau University of Science and Technology in 2012, and a
University Council Member in 2013. Dr. Tong has over 25 years of
accountancy experience up to the date of this report.

* For identification purpose only

48

BIAFERITES
BIBBIELE 6457 M2014F8F26R E L
FAREARBBUENTES HRAEFTSE
TREZEENTIFEUREESCETER
ZEEeRTHEESSEMKE -

BEENI988FSAEMBARNER/E L2+
Bh - BABBAEMEEE 819915114
RABBHNERM BB —MERSEHK - RN
1993F NAREARFHRAH  BEERTEE
BHEBMABA HEZMEBEEESE

B SREERMEBEIHD  EBE L
REAPBLEHE QARBE AEEEET

1B B RHAEE REZE BREKERE
Ko HE2019F 11 AR AEDIRIREEITR
ERAR(RBRAERLETHAR KK
RSE 1 2296) MBI IFERNITES o

EEEE L 575 M201468H26R %
EERRRBYINTEE HAESSE
TEREZEENTREUNESTSETIES
ZESRFHEZEESEENNKE -

EE T R2013F8 A BRI KEHEEQ
HEEB(RTRSBEAMHET2)FELL2
i o FEE L AR2000F 10 A A 37 &9 KB R P
SEAISEBAMEIIEARER A o 712006
FIAEBRMZEMESTAIMEE &5
ok iz 2hED - BR EEBHE/I - BEELTR
NFEEZEFAARBBEATEZEES S
B RRFBIERERIRE - BER2013FEZ
AERBMABEABRESRKE - AEARSE
HH - EELTHEAEOFEER -



202056 FH AIXKEE(ER)ERAA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP, aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
26 August 2014. He is the chairman of our the remuneration
committee of the Board and a member of each of the nomination
committee and audit committee of the Board.

Mr. Choy joined the Group in January 2013 as a director of New
Concepts Foundation Limited (“NC Foundation”). Mr. Choy has been
carrying out an independent non-executive role in NC Foundation,
mainly responsible for advising on corporate governance of NC
Foundation. Mr. Choy also acts as an independent non- executive
director of Far East Hotels and Entertainment Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 37), AB Builders Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1615)) and WAC Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM (stock
code: 8619)).

Mr. Choy holds a Diploma in Chinese Law awarded from the
University of East Asia (now known as the University of Macau) in
October 1987 and a Diploma
International Affairs College, Hong Kong in July 1988.

in Political Science from the

He was the Chairman of the Sham Shui Po District Board from April
1991 to September 1994, a Hong Kong affairs adviser appointed by
the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council and
the Xinhua News Agency from 1994 to 1997, the vice-chairman of
the Occupational Safety and Health Council of the Labour and
Welfare Bureau from 2004 to 2010, a member of the Energy
Advisory Committee of the Environment Bureau from 2006 to 2012
and a member of the Consumer Council of the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau from 2005 to 2011.

He was a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC")* (Term Ninth
to Twelfth) (FEIARBUAM A CHEIINTZ B E). He was also
elected as a vice president of GMC Hong Kong Members
Association in February 2012. He is the Committee Member of The
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong (“CGCC") and
was also the Chairman of Member's Service Committee of CGCC.

* For identification purpose only
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Senior Management

Mr. Chu Shu Cheong, aged 59, is the founder of the Group the
director of the subsidiaries of the Company, namely NC Foundation
and New Concepts Engineering Development Limited (“NC
Engineering”). He possesses over 22 years of management
experience in foundation, civil engineering and building works of
various nature.

Besides his business achievement, Mr. Chu was also appointed as
the honorary chairman of the China Star Light Charity Fund
Association in 2000, a member of the Guangdong Province
Committee of CPPCC (FRIARBUAH B EREREMLTZES
in October 2011 and a member of the Guangzhou Committee of
the CPPCC (FEIARBUAIHEE@HEMMZE®) in December
2011.

Mr. Kwan Man Hay, aged 65, is the director of NC Foundation
and NC Engineering.

Mr. Kwan has over 35 years of experience in the engineering and
construction industry. He is a member of the following professional
bodies: Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE), the Chartered
Institute of Building (CIOB), the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
(CIATD). Engineer (RPE)
recognised by the Engineers Registration Board. Mr. Kwan is the

He is also a Registered Professional

holder of Higher Diploma in Building Technology and Management
and Associate Diploma in Building Technology and Management
awarded by the then Hong Kong Polytechnic in November 1978
and November 1982 respectively.

In October 1997, Mr. Kwan was a director of NC Foundation and
was then responsible for overseeing the tendering and execution of
the Group’s foundation works, civil engineering and building
projects. Mr. Kwan joined Lanon Development Limited as a director
and left the Group in April 2005. In April 2010, Mr. Kwan re-joined
the Group as a senior management and was appointed as director
of both NC Engineering and NC Foundation in 2012. Since then,
Mr. Kwan has been
overseeing of tendering and execution of the Group’s foundation
works, civil engineering and building projects. Mr. Kwan is also
responsible for overseeing the Group’s administrative functions.

responsible for strategic planning, and
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The Board hereby presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
(the "Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

During the Year, the principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise
construction works in Hong Kong, environmental protections in PRC,
and industrial fluids system in the Nordic area. The revenue from
sales of construction materials segment which engages in the
trading of construction materials in Hong Kong is insignificant
during the Year. Details of the principal activities of the principal
to the
Statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during

the Year.

subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1
Consolidated Financial

Business Review

The revenue of the Group is wholly derived from the construction
works conducted in Hong Kong, environmental protection in the
PRC and industrial fluids system services in Nordic area. An analysis
of the Group’s performance for the Year is set out in note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

A review of the business of the Group for the Year, including the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the Year and the likely future business development is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 44 of this annual report. This discussion form part of
the report of directors.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group has adopted and implemented environmental protection
policies and procedures to enable it to commit to the long term
sustainability of the environment and communities in which it
operates. During the Year, the Group complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group’s business where the Group is operating.
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Details of the key laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the Group’s businesses,

their key scope and our

compliance measures are outlined in the following table:

Laws and Regulations

ERREH

Key scope

TEGE

TRENHAREEGEEAYEHTE
EARAP  BEERERAKEARE
B 0 1

Compliance measures

BRERE

Air Pollution Control (Non-

road Mobile Machinery)
(Emission) Regulation
(Chapter 311Z of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

(ERBREH GFERB

B (BERR) RAID(E
BRI E31128)

Air Pollution Control

(Construction Dust)

Regulation (Chapter
311R of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

(ERAAERCGEETRR

B iR) BHIEE XN E
311RE)

Noise Control Ordinance

(Chapter 400 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

(R EERGEODERZED

52

£400%)

Contractor must not sell or lease, or
cause to be sold or leased, a regulated
machine for use in Hong Kong unless the
machine is approved or exempted

BRIEXZAEMMEZ LSRR - TR
AP TG HE RN HEZEAAMRESR
A - IS R B S 3 T 2 A A
HEBRBER

Contractor must not use or cause to be

used a regulated machine in any specified
activity unless the machine is approved or
exempted

BRI RERMERZ ERER R TR
AWM SERREDPEARLHE
Sy T

Contractor is required to take dust
reduction measures when construction
work is being carried out

AR TR REUEE - R EREE

Controls construction noise ranges from:

EREERE B

(a)  the use of powered mechanical
equipment

(@) HRRBREBIEXES

(b)  the carrying out of certain noisy
works in designated areas

(b) HEHRTHEANETELFZEZIIE

Applications for lease and use of
regulated machine have been made and
approval certificates for emission
compliance were obtained

AEBEEEHAREEREAIRER
MEBFE LERETAEREENE

mEE

The relevant approval label has been
painted or securely fixed on the
machine and is displayed at a
conspicuous position, which is also
properly maintained

B AR HE RN SR B E R
Wb AREROBERLERTREZR
®1F

Compliance manual is in place for
operational staff

EREBRFABBRHNARTM

Regular briefing and training are
conducted to enhance their awareness
on the legislation

FHRTENREIN RSBRIEAEY
5 Bl R AR

Compliance manual is in place for
operational staff

EREBRFABBRHNARTM

Site supervisor is presented at the
construction site

BT AR BE B A B E B AR R
Construction noise permit has been
obtained
EEIFRER

EELE



Laws and Regulations

EBR RSB

Key scope

TEHEE
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Compliance measures

BRERE

The Environmental
Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of
China

GEIN-FT Il E
(Rt %

The Law of the People’s
Republic of China on
Environmental Impact
Assessment

RFEARANBREZE

SaCPS

This law defines the environment as

the total body of all natural elements

and artificially transformed natural
elements affecting human existence and
development (including the atmosphere,
water, seas, land, minerals, forests,
grasslands, wetlands, wildlife, natural and
human remains, nature reserves, historic
sites and scenic spots, and urban and rural
areas).

ULERPIBERE  SHEEZEAREFME
EHOEERAHMECBATIENEA
ExEmae pERE K- 8%+
B AR BER R BAELE
- 8RED AEY BARER -
AREER T MR E-

This law defines environmental impact
assessment as the analysis, estimation

and evaluation of possible environmental
impacts resulting from the implementation
of a planning and construction project

and the introduction of strategies and
measures to prevent and alleviate adverse
environmental impacts as well as tracking
and monitoring processes and systems.
ULEMRPIBIRBELETE - BIEE RS
BREBBREAGEENNRETEE
IO - FRBIFIEE (L - 52 TR R o & R
TRIBBEZENH R NEE - ETTRMEE
B 75 0 B

The project companies of the Group
prevent pollution in accordance with the
requirements of the Environmental
Protection Law.

AEBTEERARRRRFRENE
Ko HRBERENBER -

The project companies of the Group
engage independent third parties to
prepare environmental impact assessment
reports/competent government authorities
to issue environmental impact approvals.

AEETEBERARAEZRXBLE =71/
HBREFENERE BAETEBAIH
BERBFEME -
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Laws and Regulations

EBRRSR G

Key scope

TEHEE

Compliance measures

BREE

The Water Pollution
Prevention Law of the
People’s Republic of
China

hEE AR AXAMBKS 20

A

Administrative Measures for

Pollutant Discharge
Licensing (for Trial
Implementation)

PESRF R B R A (A7)

54

This law applies to the prevention and
control of pollution of rivers, lakes,
canals, drainage, reservoirs and other
surface water bodies and groundwater
within the People’s Republic of China.
IERBARFEARLMBE RS AL
IR MR D B8 KB E R K
BEA Kt KB BT 22 B08 -

The prevention and control of water
pollution shall focus on prevention

while combining prevention, control and
comprehensive management. Priority

shall be given to the protection of the
sources of drinking water. Industrial

and urban pollution shall be strictly
controlled. Pollution of agricultural bases
shall be prevented and controlled. The
construction of ecological management
projects shall be encouraged. Pollution

of water bodies and damages to the
ecosystem shall be prevented, controlled
and alleviated.
KBRVIREERREN BE ALK
G ARERBHRE BRREKA KK
TR BARIERI TSR WIEEARIT SR
DaREEIRGE BEEREEERSET
TEEER - TARY - SRR D KIR RIS R A

This law applies to the application,
approval and enforcement of pollutant
discharge licenses as well as the
governance and punishments in relation
thereto.

HEOSEFRIBH RS » A3 BT A R BB
SRR EEMESSTA - BAX
W o

The project companies of the Group
prevent water pollution in accordance
with the requirements of the Water
Pollution Prevention Law.

AEBETBERRRIZRKTRE X
HEFR - @R HEAOTRIBER

The project company of the Group in
Taiyuan has applied for a pollutant
discharge license in accordance with the
requirements of the measures.

AEBTBAREREQARDRBINEER
Ko WIBHISFFRIRE o



Laws and Regulations

EBR RSB

Key scope

TEHEE
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Compliance measures

BRERE

The Opinion on the
Strengthening of the
Overhaul of Gutter Oil
and Management of
Cooking Wastes issued
by the General Office of
the State Council

B 75 B 9% 7~ B2 78 7 N 58 3
BHEBONETEED
BEEMNER

The Ministry of Environmental Protection
develops and releases a category-based
administration catalogue of pollutant
discharge licensing for stationary pollution
sources stipulating the scope of the
pollutant discharge licensing system and
prescribed application time limit pursuant
to the law.
R IR A B0 HOE B E I A6 B E SRR
HOSRFAI D R E R B8 PAEMATSET
A& T2 ) &5 (2 0 R QR I PR o
Enterprises and public institutions as well
as other producers and operators
(hereinafter referred to as “pollutant
discharging entities”) that are included in
the category-based administration
catalogue of pollutant discharge licensing
for stationary pollution sources shall apply
for and obtain a pollutant discharge
license within the prescribed time limit.
Pollutant discharging entities not included
in the category-based administration
catalogue of pollutant discharge licensing
for stationary pollution sources currently
do not need to apply for a pollutant
discharge license.
A B E S RIREES ARl 0 B 1B A 5
W EEESUMAMEERLEE (AT
R Hm B BERRAR ERR P
A IS BT AR RS AR AR E S R IR
WEHT“@A@%ﬁm%EEQv%$
ﬁ‘ﬁ EE Al ?3’5/511&?7 A2

To effectively eliminate the use of gutter
oil in the food industry and strengthen
food safety and public health, 5 opinions
on the strengthening of the overhaul of
gutter oil and management of cooking
wastes have been issued with the consent
of the State Council.
RESBRT BRI ERERHE  9E
RERMEEMARBR HEBERE  KH
BhEE - R hnoE [ 8k | B ME H
BEEYEREHSERR

The project companies of the Group
have implemented the tasks required by
the opinion in collaboration with the
competent authorities (i.e. municipal
environmental hygiene departments).

AEETEERA RS ZEHM(F
BEMHA)EEERRERNEET
fE -
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The principal activities of the Group comprise construction works,
protection and fluid system services.
Sufficient resources have been allocated to ensure the on-going
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. During the Year,
the Hancheng Municipal Ministry of Natural Resources issued an

environmental industrial

administrative penalty notice stating Hancheng plant occupied
certain collective land. According to such notice, the ministry
proposed the following penalties as of: (i) returning such occupied
collective land; (i) confiscate any building on such occupied
collective land; and (iii) penalty of approximately RMB260,000. The
Group submitted its explanation to a hearing and the final decision
is yet to be confirmed. Other than that the Board is not aware of
any incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business
where the Group is operating.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The business operations and results may be affected by various
factors, some of which are external causes and some are inherent to
the business. The principal risks and uncertainties are summarised
below:

1. Outbreak of pandemic disease
The spread of COVID-19 in the first quarter of 2020 led to
various draconian measures, among others, city lockdown,
shut-down of restaurants and schools resulting from the
quarantine arrangements, Such
pandemic disease adversely impacted our businesses in Hong
Kong, PRC and overseas businesses.

travel restrictions etc.

Despite we have been following the governmental guidance,
and taking measures, among others, work from home, mask-
wearing in working areas etc., further outbreak of the virus
will be still catastrophic.
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Social atmosphere

Part of our construction works are generated from the public
related sector. The nature, extent and timing of the projects
will be impacted by various factors such as Government
spending on infrastructure, general macroeconomic conditions
and Government policies, which are subject to changes.
Annual budget of the Government, including its estimates of
expenditure in major infrastructure projects and construction
of public facilities, is subject to the passing of the
Appropriation Bill by the Legislative Council of Hong Kong.

However, in past few years the passing of such bill may from
time to time experience undue delay caused by prolonged
discussion within the Legislative Council of Hong Kong which
could in turn delay the implementation of Government funded
projects and thereby may adversely affect our business and
payments collection.

Keen competition

Due to the slowdown in the Hong Kong economy, the
competition of construction industry has become more intense
as there will be a foreseeable reduction of number of
construction projects available for tendering. To increase the
chance of success in winning the tender bidding, the Group
may have to lower its profit margin, which may impact its
profit for the coming year.
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Cost of construction materials
The increase in cost of construction materials will lower the
profit margin of the Group. Failure to accurately estimate and
control the costs of the Group’s projects may adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance.

Regulatory environment

Our business is subject to the environmental regulations
issued by the Hong Kong Government. Such regulations may
be revised from time to time and any changes to such
regulations may increase our cost and burden in complying
with them. The Group is also required to maintain certain
registration. In order to renew and maintain these
registrations, the Group is required to comply with certain
criteria set by the relevant governmental departments and
authorities. Any suspension of or a failure to maintain or
renew the Group's registrations could adversely affect the
Group's business.

Policy change

China’s “Environmental Protection Law” has come into force
in January 2015. The Law significantly increases companies’
costs of pollution by imposing penalties ranging from fines to
restriction or even suspension of production (articles 59 to
62). Personnel from environmental protection administrative
departments of the government shall also be faced with
demotion, dismiss or forced resignation from their current
position for failure to enforce pollution-related regulations
(article 68). Article 69 stipulates that violation of the Law may
constitute a criminal offence. Legal convictions for pollution-
related criminal acts are becoming increasingly commonly seen
in the media.

EMRE
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Spurred by China’s “supply-side reform” and the severity of
air and water pollution, the central government has been
sending inspection teams to polluted provinces and holding
local officials accountable for failure to prevent and control
pollution. Thousands of small enterprises have been closed for
the lack of environmental protection facilities.

Echoing the effectuation of “Environmental Protection Law”,
many Chinese municipal governments have publicised
regulations and guidelines on kitchen waste treatment and
specified criteria on the collection, transportation and
treatment etc. of kitchen waste.

Under the backdrop of tightening environmental protection
policies, we see a rising demand for third-party operators, or
companies that provide professional services to factories who
are now urged by the government to “move out of the city
and into industrial parks”. This trend creates demand for
equipment and services from third-party operators.

However, we cannot guarantee that the favourable policies
will continue into the future and that we will benefit from the
policies as much as we did in the past. With its rich
experience in the environmental industry, the management
team is able to sense and capture the adverse changes in
laws, regulations and government policies and will adjust the
corporate strategy accordingly.

Technological obsolescence

Our competitive advantage in the environmental industry relies
on our technological capabilities to ensure safety, maintain
efficiency of production and keep operating costs at a
relatively low level. However, as the laws, regulations,
government policies and industry standards may impose more
stringent requirements on our existing or future projects, we
may fail to improve our technology to adapt to such changes.
Moreover, the production techniques of our competitors may
improve at a faster pace so that their costs may be reduced
to a lower level significantly or their productivity may become
significantly higher than ours. We will continuously enhance
our innovation, existing technologies, and equipment to
maintain the momentum in the future expansion of our
business.
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Relationship with key parties

The success of the Group also depends on the support from key
parties which comprise customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Customers

The Group’s principal customers comprises the government, NGOs
and private developers. The Group has well established operational
and industry experience in foundation, civil engineering and general
building work, which enables the Group to complete all our projects
on schedule. Recognition from our sound track records, the Group
has secured various sizeable new projects from public and private
sectors. Our reputation and high standard of quality work enable
the Group and the customers to achieve their profitability and
sustainable growth.

Suppliers

Good relationship with suppliers constitutes one of the essential
elements of the Group’s success. To achieve positive business
growth, the Group maintains close relationship with its suppliers in
order to create a win-win situation so that suppliers and the Group
can have a vertical cooperation for reaching both of the business
goals.

Employees

The Group focuses on the talents of our employees as our most
valuable asset and provides a harmonious and professional working
environment with a variety of training programmes to our
employees for career advancement. The key objective of our human
resource management is to recognise and reward performing staff
by providing competitive remuneration packages and implementing
an effective performance appraisal
incentives, namely equal promotion opportunity.

system with appropriate

Shareholders

The principal goal of the Group is to maximise the return to the
shareholders of the Company. The Group will focus on our core
business and explore attractive
achieving sustainable profit growth and rewarding the shareholders
with stable dividend payouts taking into account the business
development needs and financial health of the Group.

investment opportunities for
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 37.97% (31 March 2019: 49.13%) of the total sales
for the Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 10.01% (31 March 2019: 12.18%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
March 2019: 34.95%) of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 27.29% (31 March
2019: 11.29%).

approximately 40.37% (31

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
close associates, nor any shareholders, who owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued voting shares, had any interests in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
107 and
accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

consolidated statement of profit or loss on page

The Board does not recommend a payment of a final dividend to
the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

Charitable Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$500,000 (2019: HK$5,000).

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

Save as disclosed above and in this annual report relating to the
share option scheme of the Company, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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Reserves
Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution, subject to the compliance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands and Company’s articles of association (the “Articles
of Association”), amounted to approximately HK$67.2 million
(31 March 2019: HK$448.8 million).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director or any entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the

either

Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Year or the end of the Year.

Contract of Significance

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhu Yongjun (Chairman of the Board)
Ms. Qin Shulan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cai Jianwen

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas

Non-executive Directors.

Dr. Ge Xiaolin (appointed on 2 July 2020)
Dr. Zhang Lihui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian
Dr. Tong Ka Lok
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company or a subsidiary of
the Company for an initial term of three years. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has also entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of two years. The
aforesaid service contracts may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. All
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation. In accordance with Article
112 of the Articles of Association, any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy during the Year shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
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Mr. Zhu Yongun, Mr. Cai Jianwen and Dr. Zhang Lihui shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM to be held on 25 September
2020 108(a) of the Articles of
Association. In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Dr. Ge Xiaolin, who was appointed by the Board on 2
July 2020, shall retire from office at the AGM. All of the retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

in accordance with Article

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules which have been received by the Company. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines during the Year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical
Management on pages 45 to 50 of this annual report. Save as

Details of the Directors and Senior

disclosed in the aforesaid section, the Directors (a) have not held
other directorships in public companies, the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, in the last
3 years; (b) do not hold any other positions in the Group; and (c)
do not have any other relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Update on Directors’ Information
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
directors’ information of the Company are as follows:

The monthly director’'s emoluments each of the independent
non-executive directors with effect from 1 September 2019
increased from HK$20,000 to HK$35,000 which is determined by
reference to the prevailing market condition and their
knowledgeable experience in the industry and contribution to the
Company.

The annual director’'s emoluments for Mr. Cai Jianwen will be
adjusted with effect from 1 April 2020 from including (1) the
existing annual director’s fee of HK$700,000 (monthly salary of
HK$58,333); (2) residential housing allowance of not exceeding
HK$28,000 per month; (3) child tuition allowance of not exceeding
HK$10,000 per month; and (4) the insurance allowance of not
exceeding HK$100,000 per annum where the allowances will be on
an incurred basis,
HK$100,000.

to a monthly director’'s emoluments of

information disclosed above, there is no other
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of

the Listing Rules.

Save for the

Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and performance of the
Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee was set up by the Board to develop the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the
directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, performance of the
directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

individual
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and in this annual report relating to the
share option scheme adopted by the Company, at no time during
the Year was the Company, its parent company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition
of shares in, or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles of Association, the Directors,
Managing Directors, alternate Directors, auditors, secretary and other
officers for the time being of the Company acting in relation to any
of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices. Such provision was
in force during the Year and remained in force as of the date of
this report. In addition, the Company has also maintained Directors
and officers liability insurance during the Year.

Competition and Conflict of Interests

Saved and except of interests in the Group, none of the Directors,
the management shareholders or substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates has engaged in any
business that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group or has any other conflict of interests with the Group during
the Year.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 300. This
summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 26 August 2014, the Company has conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisors,
distributors, contractors, agents,

partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the

suppliers, customers, business

success of the business of the Group.

Participants under the Share Option Scheme and basis of
eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with paragraphs (i)
to (iii) below for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 26 August 2014 and will remain in force until
25 August 2024 unless terminated earlier by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. The Company may by resolution in
general meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the
operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event no further
options will be offered but options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to our Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

The 10% limit as mentioned above was refreshed at the annual
general meeting of the Company dated 25 September 2017 and the
annual general meeting of the Company dated 28 March 2019. As
at the date of this report, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company is 572,900,134 Shares. On 5 March 2019, the Company
granted share options to certain Directors, employees and
consultant to subscribe for a total of 51,100,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise price of each option is HK$1.65 per
share with validity period of 2 years from the respective vesting
dates. 30,120,000 options were vested immediately on the 5 March
2019 and remaining 20,980,000 options were also vested 1 year
after such date of grant.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such
limit must be separately approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting.

Any grant of an option to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of our Company (or any of their respective associates)
must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director) who is the
grantee of the option).

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director (or any of their respective
associates) will result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options is required to be approved by
shareholders at a general meeting of the Company, with voting to
be taken by way of poll.
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Details of movement of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year are set out as follows:

15 0 O S 095 B AR A R A
BBFEERIIMT :

Number of options

BREYE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
Participants Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period price  at 1.4.2019  Granted Exercised Lapsed at 31.3.2020
20195 120206
418 3A318
ZHE REBH HEY T8 T8 iel K AT 1 ERE 21Tk EXH i K17
Directors
iz
Mr. Zhu Yongjun 24.10.2016 Vested upon date of  24.10.2016-23.10.2019 2.58 480,000 — — (480,000 —
REBLE grant
BERELABNEE
5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 500,000 — — — 500,000
grant
BERELABNSEE
Ms. Qin Shulan 24.10.2016 Vested upon date of ~ 24.10.2016-23.10.2019 2.58 6,086,000 — — (6,086,000) —
By B grant
EREHASSEE
5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000
grant
EREHASSEE
5.3.2019 5.3.2019-4.3.2020 5.3.2020-4.3.2022 1.65 1,540,000 — — — 1,540,000
Mr. Cai Jianwen 24.10.2016 Vested upon date of  24.10.2016-23.10.2019 2.58 2,100,000 — — (2,100,000) —
BEXEE grant
BERELASNEE
5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000
grant
BERELASNEE
5.3.2019 5.3.2019-4.3.2020 5.3.2020-4.3.2022 1.65 1,540,000 — — — 1,540,000
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas 24.10.2016 Vested upon date of ~ 24.10.2016-23.10.2019 2.58 1,780,000 — — (1,780,000) —
FHELE grant
ERRERBGR
5.3.2019 Vested upon date of ~ 5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000
grant
ERRERBGR
5.3.2019 5.3.2019-4.3.2020 5.3.2020-4.3.2022 1.65 1,540,000 — — — 1,540,000
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu 24.10.2016 Vested upon date of ~ 24.10.2016-23.10.2019 2.58 480,000 — —  (480,000) —
BEELE grant
EREHASSEE
5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 500,000 — — — 500,000
grant
EREHASSEE
Dr. Tong Ka Lok 5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 500,000 — — — 500,000
EELEt grant
ERRERBGR
Mr. Choy Wai Shek Raymond ~ 5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 500,000 — — — 500,000
MH, JP grant
RERLE REHE- BERELABNSEE
AF#HL
Employees®
EE® 24102016 Vested upon date of ~ 24.10.2016-23.10.2019 258 7,458,000 — —  (7,458,000) —
grant
BERELABNEE
5.3.2019 Vested upon date of  5.3.2019-4.3.2021 1.65 21,520,000 — — (1,500,000 20,020,000
grant
BERELABNEE
5.3.2019 5.3.2019-4.3.2020 5.3.2020-4.3.2022 1.65 16,360,000 — — (1,212,000 15,148,000
69,484,000 — — (21,096,000) 48,388,000
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Notes:

1. The Company has not granted any share options other than the Directors
and employees as shown in the above table.

2. Employees of the Group working under continuous contracts. The particulars
of the share options of “Other employees and consultants” as shown on
page 72 of the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March
2019 also only consist of employees under continuous contracts with the
Group only, the Company did not grant any share options to its
consultants.

Apart from the aforesaid Share Option Scheme, at no time during
the Year and up to the date of this report the Company or any
associated corporation was a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests or Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meanings of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such director or
chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO) or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register of members of the Company, or
which were required, pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors
as referred to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

202056 FH RAIXEE(ER)ERAA

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

GEE

1. BRERZEERERIN
o] B PSCHEE ©

QAR A

2. BRIEBFEEANAAEBETENES - XA A
HE201993A31BILFEFRENEMTAE
BIEMEERFAAIZEREFS TR
BEASENFELANEE  ARRALRRE
LR ERE T EZEAA

B L BB AR R AT 815N - AN F E A ] B
RBEARREBH AR RSB EE
BET AR L REEETHELBAR
BB AT AR A B B8 # B  3 E 5 T
m MEF  RENEBK KRS T X
WERA T AENBERRRBRDHES
IEITEEMERER -

EERRSTHAENESG - HEAKRHS R
BEHMESNRE

R2020F3A318 ARAIEER &S ITH
ABREAQASNETMNAEEEIE(FERE
P& E P EB571% 5 5 & H & & B BEXVER) /9
& - HERGO REFTHREREEF M
EIEMIEXVEETRED EBE NS AR A K
BRAmEs AR (BREBEEFIEE
KOABBEXTEANBERESEIESTHA
BEEFESIEBEAEENRDIKE) 5
RIEES R EIEPIF352(6 AL AR D A
REELDMANER AR - HIRE ETH
ATt EE X SEANBNS AR A LB R
PR KB WNT

71



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

=

(i)

72

& H

Interests in the Company (i) RELFHIH#EZ
Interests in ordinary shares % of the
REBRGES Total interests Total interests Company's
Personal Family Corporate in ordinary  in underlying Aggregate issued voting
Name of directors interests interests interests shares shares interests shares
A
EETR
REBRE REABARGEH RRERS
EEpa NS RS AT R Lt BB st HERL
Mr. Zhu Yongjun REBLE 2,416,000 260,000 78,656,000 81,332,000 500,000 81,832,000 14.28%
Ms. Qin Shulan E3/Y b 4,084,000 — — 4,084,000 3,740,000 7,824,000 1.36%
Mr. Cai Jianwen BEXEE 480,000 — — 480,000 3,740,000 4,220,000 0.73%
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas FHEELE - - — — 3,740,000 3,740,000 0.65%
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu BREBLE — — — — 500,000 500,000 0.08%
Dr. Tong Ka Lok EREEL 480,000 — — 480,000 500,000 980,000 0.17%
Mr. Choy Wai Shek Raymond mH, /P BERKE 700,000 — — 700,000 500,000 1,200,000 0.2%
REHE A THL
Note: B sE -
1. The 77,000,000 shares are beneficially held by Jumbo Grand 1. £%77,000,0000% f% 19 B Jumbo Grand

Enterprise Development Limited (“Jumbo Grand”) and 1,264,000
shares are beneficially by Excellent Point Asia Limited (“Excellent
Point”). Mr. Zhu Yongjun owns 100% of the issued voting shares
of Jumbo Grand and Excellent Point. Mr. Zhu Yongjun is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the shares which are beneficially
owned by Jumbo Grand for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Zhu
Yongjun is the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of
the Company and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Allan Warburg, an
ultimate beneficial owner of Simple Gain International Limited, a
shareholder of the Company.

Enterprise Development Limited
([Jumbo Grand ) & % #f A M #Z
1,264,0008% B2 17 Al 1 Excellent Point
Asia Limited ([ Excellent Point ]) B 251
B ARKBE LA AIumbo Grand &
Excellent Point&9100% B 21T R 18 =4
ety - HEHFRBERPME - KBE
AR RS & 1ER Jumbo Grand &
HEANBEROTHEGER KB
EERERARNREETGERRNTE
F U REDTEEEKRR2ARR
Simple Gain International Limited#) &

BREDHEAN)OAIL -
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(i) Interests in the associated corporation (i) RIGEE L B 5

% of the issued
voting shares of
Name of associated No. of associate
corporation Capacity/Nature shares held corporation

Name of directors/
chief executive

15 1EE A E
ES ERITHAER BE CBITERR#E
%2 HEER 2T 54 HE % 3 8 B B 5 898 5 b
Zhu Yongjun Jumbo Grand Interest in controlled 10,000 100%
corporation
KBEE Jumbo Grand 1A E R
Zhu Yongjun Excellent Point Interest in controlled 50,000 100%
corporation
KBE Excellent Point A E R
Chu Shu Cheong Prosper Power Interest In controlled 75 75%

corporation
KB E & Bl PR HE E R R
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020 none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,

B b PT84 SN - 7202053 A31
H ARRIEERESTTRABHE
RARARREEBEZE(ERRES
K BB E GBI S XVER) B AT B 1D - 48
RN RESFTEEREESRBE
EBHIEXVERET R8N E B ME A QA
RIS FTE AR Ea R AR (B
BEREEFLBAEGABBHKES

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Listing Rules relating to the required standard of
dealings by the directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

WEFRREREENERIOXR)
AR B 5 55 & K (R 835216 B 5
AL IGFTHE B RS M A R H i an
FARB AMBEEHREFIHMEER
Qe EAR RIZE M & A DA M B2 A
R R R SORE -
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Substantial Shareholder’s Interests and/or Short Position in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2020, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or who is directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of any class of issued shares
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

EERERE A TR K 45 B B 5 a9 HE
BREKE

BEEEATA 20209638318 TAIA L
(WHEARREERZERITHRAB)RAR
AIRMIBEROD P EEREESRBE
&I SEXVER B2 K350 B I XA R A A &
WEMNEZIAR  REABREESRBE
Bl 33615 N A RIZAFE /B
SRR REEREEESWEERN TR
ARBEATEAEBTIHNKERRHRKRE
AE LR EMNTMERE ZETRMS%K A
R

RELGRHEITFE
Approximate

percentage of
Number of shareholdings in

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held the Company
EEATIREY

I% R & 18 5% FaEERnEE Baa skt

Jumbo Grand (Note 1) Beneficial owner 77,000,000 13.44%

Jumbo Grand (Bt 3%1) EmEAA

Prosper Power Group Ltd (“Prosper Power”) Beneficial owner 76,500,000 13.35%

(Note 2)

EBEBEGRAT([EB](HiE2) Em#EA A

Mr. Chu Shu Cheong (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 13.35%
corporation

KB s (M sE2) A E R

Simple Gain International Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 40,000,000 6.98%

Simple Gain International Limited (Fff 5%3) EREE A

Allan Warburg Holdings Limited (Note 3) Interest in a controlled 40,000,000 6.98%
corporation

Allan Warburg Holdings Limited (P 5%3) R A E R =

Mr. Warburg Allan (Note 3) Interest in a controlled 40,000,000 6.98%

FomAE 5T A (K EE3)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholdings in
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held the Company
EEATIRERN
BRAE 5% BaEERHEE a5
Kingston Finance Limited (Notes 2 and 4) Person having a security 76,500,000 13.35%
interest in shares
SHEEBAER AT (HiE2Kk4) EEROERERHAL
Ample Cheer Limited (Notes 2 and 4) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 13.35%
corporation
Ample Cheer Limited (Ff 352 54) S A R
Best Forth Limited (Notes 2 and 4) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 13.35%
corporation
Best Forth Limited (Fff5E254) S2AR ) B A 2
Chu Yuet Wah (Notes 2 and 4) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 13.35%
corporation
= A (M sE2k4) R E R
CEF Concept Holdings Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 55,400,000 9.67%
CEF Concept Holdings Limited (Fff 5£5) Em#EB A
CEF IV Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest in a controlled 55,400,000 9.67%
corporation
CEF IV Holdings Limited (Fff #£5) XA E E
China Environment Fund IV, L.P. (Note 5) Interest in a controlled 55,400,000 9.67%
corporation
China Environment Fund IV, L.P. (Ff 5¥5) 2P A B R i
CEF IV Management, L.P. (Note 5) Interest in a controlled 55,400,000 9.67%
corporation
CEF IV Management, L.P. (Fff5£5) S 5 E
CEF IV Management, Ltd. (Note 5) Interest in a controlled 55,400,000 9.67%
corporation
CEF IV Management, Ltd. (Ff5£5) A A B
Zhang Yi (Note 5) Interest in a controlled 55,400,000 9.67%

o 5 (M1 5E5)

corporation
PR HE B R R
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Notes:

1. Jumbo Grand is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhu Yongjun who is the Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhu
Yongjun is deemed to be interested in the 77,000,000 shares held by
Jumbo Grand for the purpose of the SFO.

2. The 76,500,000 shares are beneficially owned by Prosper Power Group Ltd
("Prosper Power”) which is owned as to 75% by Mr. Chu Shu Cheong.
Mr. Chu Shu Cheong is deemed or taken to be interested in all the shares
which are beneficially owned by Prosper Power. Mr. Chu Shu Cheong is
also a director of Prosper Power.

3. Simple Gain International Limited is wholly-owned by Allan Warburg Holdings
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Warburg Allan. Accordingly,
Allan Warburg Holdings Limited and Mr. Warburg Allan are deemed to be
interested in the 40,000,000 shares held by Simple Gain International
Limited for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Warburg Allan is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Zhu Yongjun, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director of the Company.

4. The 76,500,000 shares are beneficially owned by Prosper Power and had
been pledged to Kingston Finance Limited as pledgee to secure a loan
granted to Prosper Power. Kingston Finance Limited is wholly-owned by
Ample Cheer Limited, which is in turn owned as to 80% by Best Forth
Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Chu Yuet Wah. Accordingly, Ample
Cheer Limited, Best Forth Limited and Ms. Chu Yuet Wah are deemed to
be interested in all shares held by Kingston Finance Limited.

5. CEF Concept Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by CEF IV Holdings Limited,
which is in turn owned as to 92.55% by China Environment Fund IV, L.P.,
an investment fund incorporated in the Cayman Islands. CEF IV
Management, L.P. is the general partner of China Environment Fund IV,
L.P., and CEF IV Management, Ltd. is the general partner of CEF IV
Management, L.P. Therefore, by virtue of Part XV of the SFO, CEF IV
Holdings Limited, China Environment Fund IV, L.P., CEF IV Management,
L.P. and CEF IV Management, Ltd. are all deemed to be interested in the
55,400,000 shares of the Company held by CEF Concept Holdings Limited,
CEF IV Management, Ltd. is wholly-owned by Ms. Zhang Yi. Accordingly,
Zhang Yi is also deemed to be interested in the 55,400,000 shares of the
Company held by CEF Concept Holdings Limited for the purpose of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” and “Substantial Shareholder’s Interests and/or
Short Position in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company”
above, as at 31 March 2020, no other person was individually and/
or collectively entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or
more of the voting power at general meeting of the Company and
was able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.
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1. Jumbo GrandBHABELR A (AAARESE
TEFRNTER)2EEA - AL BHFR
HEEAMmE KRB ELREWHE BRIumbo
Grand#$ 5 #977,000,0000% A% 17 o A fE 25 o

2. 76,500,000 ik R E RN B AR R F ([
B EREE MERBAHELEEEFTS%
- ABEREWEANEERERER
BENMARNDPHEAEZ - KB EXEN
BEBMES-

3. Simple Gain International Limited Allan
Warburg Holdings LimitedZ2 & # & - fAllan
Warburg Holdings Limited 8l f T & 5 4 &
BiEE - At EFRBEEATE - Allan
Warburg Holdings Limited & T 5 12 5¢ 4 748
A7 Simple Gain International Limited#s A 9
40,000,0000% f {7 R A 1 4 » EOMIBEER
ARAEZEIRRATESTRBELEN
KK o

4. 276,500,000 R ERE N EmES WEE
WyIeMNENBERAFUEREMA) - A
BMEEHRERN—ZEER -2FLYMBAER
A B HAmple Cheer Limited®2 & A& M
Ample Cheer Limited 8|8 = AELZ 25 A
#)Best Forth Limited# H80%# = o [ it
Ample Cheer Limited  Best Forth Limited &2 2
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5. CEF Concept Holdings Limited 5 CEF IV Holdings
LimitedZ= & # * CEF IV Holdings Limited
China Environment Fund IV, LP.(RF S8 S
MR ERES) HEHI2.55% % & - CEF
IV Management, L.P./China Environment Fund
IV, LP.B)EBA % A - MCEF IV Management,
Ltd. A A CEF IV Management, LP.H)Ei@E %
A Bt B HRBEGAIEXNVHBTE -
CEF IV Holdings Limited * China Environment
Fund IV, L.P. ~ CEF IV Management, L.P. 5 CEF
IV Management, Ltd.¥3 % % /3 % CEF Concept
Holdings Limited$§ % #55,400,0000% A& 2 7] i%
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M5 @ REE IR BFCEF Concept Holdings
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of the report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules during the Year.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22
September 2020 to 25 September 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfers of shares will be registered. To determine
the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM of the Company, all
transfer document, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 21 September 2020.

Events After the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” above, there is no other significant event
after the Reporting Period of the Group.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 were audited by BDO Limited
upon the resignation of Ernst & Young on 12 April 2019.

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint
BDO Limited, the retiring auditor, as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

By order of the Board
New Concepts Holdings Limited

Zhu Yongjun
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 7 August 2020
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the
areas leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancement of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted the compliance manual which sets out
the minimum standard of good practices concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board with which the Company
and the Directors shall comply and which contains, among other
things, the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

The Board of Directors

Composition and Responsibilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprises 8 directors (“Directors”),
comprising 4 executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board throughout the Year is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhu Yongjun (Chairman of the Board)
Ms. Qin Shulan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cai Jianwen

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas

Non-executive Director:

Dr. Zhang Lihui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian

Dr. Tong Ka Lok

Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, mH, Jp

There was no change in the composition of the Board during the
Year.
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The biographical details and responsibilities of the Directors as well
as the senior management are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 45 to
50.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” to this annual report, the
Directors have no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the Company’s
performance and activities. While the Board is primarily overseeing
and managing the Company’s affairs, the Chairman of the Board
provides leadership to the Board in carrying out its duties. The
executive Directors constituting Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company are delegated with
responsibilities in the day-to-day management of the Company and
make operational and business decisions within the control of and

senior

delegation framework of the Company. The independent non-
executive Directors contribute valuable views and proposals for the
Board's deliberation and decisions.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 independent
non-executive Directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional
financial management expertise.

qualifications, accounting or related

At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive
Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has submitted a
written statement to the Stock Exchange confirming their
independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as
soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect their independence prior to their
respective appointment. The Company has also received a written
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
in respect of their independence for the Year. The Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors are being considered to
be independent with reference to the factors stated in the Listing
Rules during the Year.
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Throughout the Year, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are separated, with a clear
division of responsibilities. Mr. Zhu Yongjun is the Chairman of the
Board and his primary role is to provide leadership for the Board
and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities.

Ms. Qin Shulan is the Chief Executive Officer and her primary role is
responsible for the strategic planning and overseeing business
operations of the Group, including environmental protection
business.

Other matters reserved for the Board include consideration of
dividend policy, approval of major investments, maintenance of an
adequate system of internal controls and review of the corporate
governance practices of the Group. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to management teams.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by
Directors

The Company has agreed to provide separate independent
professional advice and sufficient resources to Directors and all
Board Committees to assist them to discharge their duties. The
Company will consider to develop a written procedure to enable
Directors, and members of all Board Committees upon reasonable
request, to seek and be provided with independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim to
indemnify its Directors from any losses, damages, liabilities and
expenses arising from, including but not limited to, any proceedings
brought against them during the performance of their duties
pursuant to their respective services agreements entered into with
the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operational and financial performance of the Company.
Other Board meetings have been held during the Year for approving
the acquisitions of business, grant of share options, subscription and
issue of shares and change of Directors of the Company, etc. Such
Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors. The Directors make every effort to contribute to the
formulation of policy, decision-making and the development of the
Group's business.
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During the Year, a total of 12 Board meetings were held. Various
meetings of the remuneration committee, nomination committee
and audit committee have also been held. The Chairman has had a
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of the executive directors and non-executive director.

Directors’ Attendance at the Board/Board Committee/General
Meetings

Below are details of all Directors’ attendance at the board and
board committee meetings, and general meetings held during the
Year:

2020 RAIXEEE(ER)ERAT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARES

RAFE EFEERTaH2RER-
REANBRITEZRHFWMEZEE REEZEE
NEZEZEGESH TFRCHEBIUIFRNTE
ERTYERTEERFFVTEEHED
&
EFREFEOHR EFLTEEEH
R &AM EF
RAFERITNEFEE RS EFREES
BERBERARENERESHERTNT

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/ BTERRY

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EX® EBKZEEE REZEE FHzsg BRREE
ESNA ik ik L ik XE
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zhu Yongjun REELE 12/12 N/A 7~ il N/A 148 il
Ms. Qin Shulan E37N ke 6/12 N/A 7~ N/A TiE R N/A T iE A 0/1
Mr. Cai Jianwen BENEAE 12/12 N/A 7~ N/A TiE R 3/3 17
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas ZH8EE 12112 NATER NATEA  NATEA 11
Non-executive Director: HHITEE -
Dr. Zhang Lihui RAIER T 11712 N/A 7~ N/A TiE R N/A T iE A 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV HHTEE :
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian BEBEE 12/12 5/5 il 3/3 il
Dr. Tong Ka Lok ER4dt 112 5/5 11 23 0/1
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, mH, Jp ~ BER%E %85
APt 12/12 4/5 il 3/3 7

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other board or board committee meetings.
Meeting agendas and other relevant information are provided to the
Directors in advance of board or board committee meetings. All
Directors are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda
for such meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
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Both draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of board and
board committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
such minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable prior notice by any Director.

All directors are also entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials. These papers and related materials are in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it. Queries raised by directors
shall receive a prompt and full response by the management.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal
The aforesaid service contracts may be terminated by not less than
3 month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting of the Company, at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

The Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional Director but so that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from
time to time by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.
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Confirmation of Independence

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines during the Year.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Securities

Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors, and all
Directors confirmed in writing that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding their
securities transactions for the Year.

Induction and Continuous Professional Trainings of
Directors

Each of the appointed Directors, has received formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction and continuous professional
training to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the requirements of the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory obligations.

The Directors have also been informed of the requirement under
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous
professional development.

During the Year,
covering the topics of connected transactions, directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance practices, independence of
independent non-executive directors, disclosure requirements under
the Listing Rules and SFO.

there was one in-house training conducted
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All Directors have attended the continuous professional development
training and below are details of all Directors’ attendance on
training during the Year.

RAER 2EESCURRETLERSE
RRSEREL T E T2

Attendance/Numbers of
in-house seminars

HE 1T P #B EE X B R B

Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Zhu Yongjun KREBERAE 1
Ms. Qin Shulan E3 N Eedan 1
Mr. Cai Jianwen BN E 1
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas ek E 1
Non-executive Director: FHTESF -
Dr. Zhang Lihui SR IETE L+ 1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHTESE
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian EERBEE 1
Dr. Tong Ka Lok EEgE T 1
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP BRERKE LERBE KX FH+ 1
Board Committees EEZEE
Audit Committee EZZESE

The audit committee of the Company was established in compliance
with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with
terms of reference. The latest terms of reference of the audit

its written

committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The responsibility of the audit committee is to assist the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control
principles and procedures, and to provide advice and comments to
the Board. The members meet regularly with the external auditor
and/or the Company’s senior management for the
supervision and discussion of the Company’s financial reporting, risk
management and internal control procedures and ensure that the
management has discharged its duties to have an effective risk
management and internal control systems.

review,
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The composition of the audit committee throughout the Year is as
follows:

Dr. Tong Ka Lok (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP

None of the members of the audit committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing auditing firm. Dr. Tong Ka Lok, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

During the Year, the audit committee held 5 meetings. Details of
the attendance of the members of the audit committee in the said
meeting are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’ Attendance
at Board/Board Committee/General Meetings” above.

The summary of work of the audit committee during the Year is as
follows:

o met with the external auditors, reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board’s approval on the annual and
interim reports of the Company;

o reviewed and approved audit fee;

o recommended the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor,
and approval the remuneration and terms of engagement;
and

J reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management

and internal control systems including the internal audit
function.

The audit committee has reviewed the Company’s unaudited
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020
published on 29 June 2020, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed the auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters as well as the unaudited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 with the management and the auditor of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on 26 August
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant CG Code. The latest written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
The remuneration committee is responsible for, inter alia,
formulating and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s emolument policy and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing such policy. The Board
expects the independent

judgment and ensures that executive Directors do not participate in

remuneration committee to exercise

the determination of their own remuneration.

The composition of the remuneration committee throughout the
Year is as follows:

Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, mH, sp (Chairman)
Dr. Tong Ka Lok

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian

Mr. Cai Jianwen

During the Year, the remuneration committee held 3 meetings.
Details of the attendance of the members of the remuneration
committee in the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading
"Directors’ Attendance at Board/Board Committee/General

Meetings” above.

The summary of work of the remuneration committee during the
Year is as follows:

o reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy and strategy;

o reviewed and recommended to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors and senior management
during the Year; and

o assessed performance of executive directors and approving the
terms of executive directors’ service contract.
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Nomination Committee

The Board established the nomination committee on 26 August
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant CG Code. The latest written terms of reference of the
nomination committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors, assessing the
independence of independent non- executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-appointment

of Directors.

The composition of the nomination committee throughout the Year
is as follows:

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian (Chairman)
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, mH, sp
Dr. Tong Ka Lok
Mr. Zhu Yongjun

During the Year, the nomination committee held 1 meeting. Details
of the attendance of the members of the nomination committee in
the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’
Attendance at Board/Board Committee/General Meetings” above.

The summary of work of the nomination committee during the Year
is as follows:

o reviewed the existing Board's structure, size and composition;
o reviewed and made recommendation on the appointment on
non-executive Directors;

o reviewed and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

o made recommendation on the retiring Directors at the 2019
AGM of the Company.
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having diversity in the
composition of the Board and adopted its own board diversity
policy on 26 August 2014.

The Company noted that people from different backgrounds and
with different professional and life experience are likely to approach
problems in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board
with diverse backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions
to the table, and allow the Board to consider a wider range of
options and solutions when deciding on corporate issues and
formulating policies for the Group. In determining the Board’s
composition and selection of candidates to the Board, factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, skills,
knowledge and length of service will be considered. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against the selection criteria, having regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board, the business model and specific

ethnicity, professional experience, industry

needs of the Group. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The nomination committee has monitored the implementation of the
board diversity policy since its adoption, and also reviewed it to
ensure its effectiveness and concluded that no revision to the policy
is required at the last nomination committee meeting held.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee was responsible to maintain the
nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) and
review the same regularly. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is
to identify candidates who are suitable to become a member of the
Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of candidates nominated for directorships. The Board shall be
composed of members with balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group's
business development, strategies,
opportunities. The core criteria for selection include gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional
directorship in other listed/public companies and
independent non-executive Directors, the number of years they have

operation, challenges and

experience, number of

in case of

already served. According to the nomination procedure, the
Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential new
decision. The

Directors and recommends to the Board for
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appointment shall be subject to the approval by the Board in
accordance with the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the Main Board Listing Rules and the Nomination
Policy.

Corporate Governance Function

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The summary of their work during the Year is as
follows:

o developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

o reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management
of the Group;

o reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and
the Directors; and

o reviewed the Company’s compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

Emolument Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure the fairness and
competitiveness of total remuneration. The emoluments of executive
Directors are determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and
accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration the
Company’s performance and prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration policy of non-executive Director and independent non-
is to ensure that they are adequately
compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s
affairs including their participation in respective Board committees.
Their emoluments are determined with reference to their skills,

executive Directors

experience, knowledge, duties and market trends.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
Financial Statements for the Year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group in accordance with the statutory
requirements and accounting standards and other financial
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules. The financial results
of the Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 97 to 106.

External Auditor's Remuneration

During the Year, the Group engaged BDO Limited as external
auditor of the Company. The fee in respect of audit services and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited and its affiliates for the
Year were as follows:

o 8 &% # 8

Bt ¥ e R

EEemABHEERBBREETELR  SHEL
REMBRUTHWEMM B RERERHN
FENMBERE  NEEMA T2 ARE
BEBRANEE - AEENHHEREDIE
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EEUTHNBEAMBERAFHHBRANER
THERE  ATEHARARFELENEN
MRCEREEM -

BYMEBMERRETNER BHNE
97E106E M B L L BREMFRE A »

4 & 2 £ A i B

RAFE  RNEBZEEBL(EESR G
EBMARATBARRINEZER - B
VEERSHMEEMERARREHE
REIRAFERHEBZRE RIEFZRE
MERWMT :

Nature of services Amount
AR 75 M & ok ]
HK$’000

FHET

Audit services in relation to annual results EHE2FEENEZRS 2,200
Review of interim results ERPHEEE —
Non-audit services IEEZRE 250

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the BEZZEE@REZE R~ ERAKRQFMN

level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company's
external auditor for annual audit services is reasonable. There has
been no major disagreement between the auditor and the
management of the Company during the Year.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board has overall responsibility for the effective risk
management and control systems of the Group and
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance,
practices and procedures of the Group. The Board also admitted the
effectiveness of the existing risk management and internal control
However, such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business

internal

systems during the Year.
objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Nevertheless, the
management is authorised to engage an external professional
service provider to conduct review on the Group’s policies and
make recommendations for the improvement and strengthening of
the risk management and internal control systems during the Year.

Effectiveness

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating, determining,
establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness to safeguard the Company’s assets and the
interests. During the Year, the Board and the audit
committee of the Company have conducted a review on the

shareholders’

effectiveness of Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board has overseen the management in the design,
risk management and
internal control systems, and has reviewed the effectiveness on the

implementation and monitoring of the

Group's certain policies during the Year.

The Board identified and evaluated the risks and analysed the core
risks within the Group to mitigate related risks arising from the
existing operations after evaluating its risk management and internal
controls systems.

The key risk management and internal control procedures of the
Company are as follows:

1. determine the scope, identify the risks and compile a list of
such risks;
2. evaluate and prioritise the risks based on the possible financial

loss and impact on operating efficiency, sustainability and
reputation;
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3. identify the risk control measures against major risks, conduct
of the design
implementation of such measures, and formulate measures to
improve any defect;

internal control assessments and

4. review and evaluate the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and ensure the constant
improvement of the risk management system; and

5. report the findings to the audit committee and the board of
directors.

The Board confirmed that the Group’s risk management and
internal controls systems were acceptable and there was no material
non-compliance or failures issues located but various areas for
improvement have been identified during the Year. Certain remedial
measures have been and will be taken to strengthen the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Group reviewed the effectiveness of its risk management and
internal control systems at least annually. The Board and the audit
committee also considered that the key areas of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’'s accounting are

reasonably conducted and implemented.

Inside Information

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure policy
aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and senior
management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant to
applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").

The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information by
publication of the announcement to the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable the public,
namely shareholders, institutional investors, potential investors and
other stakeholders of the Company to access the latest information
of the Group, unless such information fall within the safe harbours
under the SFO.

Briefing and training on the implementation of the disclosure policy
have been provided to Directors and senior management of the
Group.
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Delegation by the Board

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these board
committees are governed by the Company’s articles of association
as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association).

With the establishment of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee, the independent non-
executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their time to
perform the duties required by the respective board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing its
strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of the
Company under the leadership of the chief executive officer and
executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as to the
matters that should be reserved to the Board for its decision which
include matters on, inter alia, capital,
reporting, internal controls, communication with shareholders, Board

finance and financial
membership, delegation of authority and corporate governance.

Company Secretary

During the Year, Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas undertook over 15 hours’
professional training to update his skill
compliance with the CG Code.

and knowledge in

Changes in Constitutional Documents
During the Year, there has been no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Way by Which Shareholders Can Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")/Put Forward
Proposal

According to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Article 113 of the Articles of Association provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office. The period
for lodgment of the notices required under this Article will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a
person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director at the
Company’s general meeting, he/she should attend the following:

. Prepare a notice in writing of his/her intention to propose a
person for election as a Director.

. The person proposed for election as a Director shall also
prepare a notice in writing of his/her willingness to be
elected.
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J Such notices shall be lodged at the head office of the Company
at Office B, 3/F, Kingston International Centre, 19 Wang Chiu
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong or at the address of Tricor
Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

o The period for lodgment of such notices will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

The relevant procedures are set out in the circular to the
shareholders which is sent together with this annual report and the
Company’s website at http://www.primeworld-china.com.

The Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns in writing to
the Board by addressing them to the Company at our head office in
Hong Kong at Office B, 3/F, Kingston International Centre, 19 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong or by email through the
Company’s website at http://www.primeworld-china.com.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company endeavors to maintain effective communications with
the shareholders and potential investors of the Company.

Save as mentioned under the sub-heading “The Procedures for
Sending Enquiries to the Board” above, in order to provide more
relevant information to our shareholders, the Company has
published all corporate information about the Group on its website
at http://www.primeworld-china.com. It is a channel of the
Company to communicate with the shareholders and potential
investors with our latest corporate development. All our corporate
communications, such as statutory announcement, circular, financial
reports are available on the website for easy access by the
shareholders and potential investors. In addition, the Company
meets its shareholders at the annual general meeting so as to
promote the development of the Company through mutual and
efficient communications.
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Dividend Policy

The Company aims to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the shareholders of the Company. According to the
dividend policy of the Company, in deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Company
shall take into account, inter alia, the following factors:

—  the Group’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

—  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

—  the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

—  the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

— general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’'s
business and other internal and external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Company may deem appropriate and
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of the dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands, any applicable laws, rule and regulations and the
Articles of Association of the Company. Any declaration and
payment of future dividend under the Dividend Policy are subject to
the Board’s determination that the same would be in best interests
of the Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on
25 September 2020. At the AGM, the chairman of the Board as well
as chairmen of the nomination committee, remuneration committee
and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees shall attend to answer questions from
shareholders at the annual general meeting. The representatives of
the external auditor shall also present and available to answer
guestions at the meeting.

The notice of AGM and the necessary information on issues to be
considered in the AGM will be set out in the circular to be

dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in due course.

Hong Kong, 7 August 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Concepts Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to 299, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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Basis for qualified opinion

As disclosed in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
during the period from January 2016 to November 2016, the Group
paid deposits for the potential acquisition of a 49% equity interests
in PT. Dempo Sumber Energi (“DSE”) (“DSE Agreement”) and a
80% equity interests in PT. Sumatera Pembangkit Mandiri (“SPM").
In addition, the Group paid certain expenses on behalf of DSE and
advanced loans to DSE, SPM and their beneficial shareholders.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the shares of DSE and SPM
(representing 49% and 80% of the equity interests in DSE and SPM
respectively) were transferred to Stand Ascent Limited (”Stand
Ascent”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the
Company. The Group accounted for the DSE and SPM shares held
by Stand Ascent as collateral to secure the payments for the
deposits paid and expenses paid on behalf and loans advanced as
stated above. After the transfer of shares, the Group appointed 4
out of 6 directors of DSE and 5 out of 7 directors of SPM.
Thereafter, the Group has entered into a series of transactions and
agreements with various parties including further payments for
deposits for the potential acquisition of additional 5% equity
interests in SPM and the termination of the DSE Agreement.

On 29 June 2018, the Group entered into a disposal agreement
and on 15 August 2019 a supplemental deed to the disposal
agreement (collectively “the Disposal Agreement”) to dispose of the
Group’s 100% equity interest in Stand Ascent (“the Disposal”). As
at 31 March 2019 and up to the date of the Disposal, the Group
have received an aggregate amount of HK$83,764,000 from the
buyer in the Disposal Agreement and its beneficial controlling
shareholder (the “Money Received”).

On 15 August 2019, the Group also entered into a settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) in relation to the
settlement of the consideration for the Disposal (the
“Consideration”). According to the Settlement Agreement, the
Consideration will be settled by the amount due by the Group to
the purchaser and its beneficial controlling shareholder for the
Money Received. The amount of Money Received in excess of the
Consideration was agreed to be waived.
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As at 31 March 2019, the aggregated amount of deposits paid,
expenses paid on behalf and loans advanced (“Payments”) of
approximately HK$67,637,000 was accounted for as receivables. The
carrying amount of the Payments as of 31 March 2019 after
netting off impairment provision of HK$15,854,000 was of
HK$51,783,000 and recorded under prepayments, deposits and
other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019. For the year ended 31 March 2019, no
impairment provision was recognised (or reversed) against the
Payments.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 up to the date of the

Disposal, no further impairment provision was
reversed) against the Payments. As at the date of the Disposal, after
netting off the impairment provision of HK$15,854,000, the carrying
amount of the Payments was of HK$54,415,000 and a gain on
Disposal of HK$29,349,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020.

recognised (or

The directors of the Company have not provided us with
satisfactory evidence relating to the nature of the transactions
giving rise to the Payments as detailed in the paragraphs above (the
“Transactions”) (further details are disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements) and their conclusion that the
Payments are receivables in nature throughout the years. As such
we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves whether the Transactions have been appropriately
accounted for, including whether accounting for the Payments as
receivables is appropriate and accordingly (i) whether impairment
provision recognised against the Payments is appropriate and the
amount of impairment provision recognised is properly determined
or measured in accordance with HKFRSs; and (ii) whether the gain
on the Disposal is properly calculated. As a result, we were also
unable to satisfy ourselves whether the disclosures in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements are complete and accurate.
There were no alternative audit procedures that we could perform
to satisfy ourselves as to the above-mentioned matters.
Consequently,
adjustments to these amounts/disclosures were necessary.

we were unable to determine whether any

202056 FH AIREBE(EZER)ERAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
78 3 A% LA R

M2019F3A318 ' ENEE ERATHFE
T REFBHRIZEREBEDAE XY
67,637,0007% 7t A BR 5I) {E & W3R IH - 782019
F3HA318 % F 7 IE £ 1 Br 15,854,000/
TC R (B B 1% W) BR E £ 58 /&51,783,000/%5
JC ' FR2019F 3 A31H MR & MM L R A
ST ATER FRIE ~ RS RHE A B UGRIE - IRE
F2019F3A31BLEFE  MERZSFRE
TR (kB ) (F (] Rl B R -

REBZE2020F3A31MA LEEREEHES
HHEH MERZSREE - PERGE
B)ERRERE REEEEAH %ZF
FRIAAZH KR 15,854,000 T 6 (B B 5 15 O BR
M & %8 &54,415,0007 7T+ I 7 8 220204
SAHLEFEMNGABRRRANBRLES
T8 U 2529,349,000/% 7T °

BERAEEYEMBFREEEXERAA
FREERERBENR S ((REXZ] &
—HHBREE M B RRMTE23WE) it
BRBEERABEEHZERIAR R KR
FUHENERABILAEMERE - Bt
BFEZMEEHAEESERE  SHMAG
MEZEXZHEHEEWAR  BEEZERA
ARFIERYGRIRE R EE - LA RAREH)
ZEFRENEERRERBETEENLR
ERAREREHNSHESEERBE(GEEY
BRELENZBEESLE  RHEE
AR EREEZRE - Bt RATE
FEEMEAVBERRMEANKESER
BB LA - WEEMEIZF AT EEM
ETAGEMR LR EE - Bt RABAEE
250/ BPREERTHTEHRHAE-

b=103

99



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
98 3 A% B A RS

We modified our audit opinion on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 due to
limitations on scope of our work on the nature of the Transactions.
Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves whether the
Transactions were properly accounted for and disclosed in the
March
2019. Any adjustments to the amount of impairment provision of
HK$15,854,000 recognised as at 31 March 2019 would have a
consequential impact on the amount of impairment provision to be
recognsied or reversed during the year ended 31 March 2020. Our
opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for year
ended 31 March 2020 is also modified because of the effect of the
related 2019 figures in the
consolidated financial statements may not be comparable.

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

possible adjustment and the

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

under those standards are further described

Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3(b)(ii) in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group had a net loss of
HK$312,454,000 and net current liabilities of HK$287,452,000 as at
31 March 2020. As of that date, the Group had bonds,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings totalling
HK$279,533,000 trade and retention payables, other payables and
accruals and lease liabilities totalling HK$394,689,000 included in
current liabilities while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents was
HK$29,817,000. As stated in Note 3(b)(ii), these conditions and
events, along with the matters set out in note 3(b)(ii), indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there
information, we are required to report that fact. As described in the
“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves the
nature of the Transactions and whether the Transactions have been
appropriately accounted for. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude
whether or not the other information is materially misstated with

statements or our

is a material misstatement of this other

respect to these matters.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” section and “Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Impairment assessment of goodwill, operating concessions
and other intangible assets

Refer to note 15, 16, 17 of the consolidated financial statements
and accounting policies on note 4(c), 4(h), 4(i).

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill,
operating concessions and other intangible assets after impairment
was HK$334,820,000 which represented 25.7% of the Group'’s total
assets. An impairment assessment is performed by management
annually or when there are indicators of impairment by comparing
the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of the asset or the
cash generating unit to which the asset relates.

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to (i) the
significance of the carrying amounts; and (ii) the significant
judgements and estimates involved in determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill,
operating concessions and intangible assets are allocated, including,
amongst others, expected future cash flows and discount rates.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to Impairment assessment of

goodwill, operating concessions and other intangible assets
included:
o Discussing with management about the technological, market,

economic and legal environment and economic performance
of each cash-generating unit to assess management’s
identification of impairment indicators;

o Assessing the key assumptions used in management’s cash flow
projections for impairment assessment of goodwill, operating
concessions and other intangible assets, including, amongst
others, expected future cash flows and discount rates, with
the assistance from our valuation specialists; and
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o Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in connection with the
impairment assessment of goodwill, operating concessions and
other intangible assets.

Impairment assessment of trade and retention receivables,
deposits and other receivables and receivables under
service concession arrangements

Refer to note 16, 22, 23 of the consolidated financial statements
and accounting policies on note 4(h), 4(j)ii).

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of trade and
retention receivables, deposits and other receivables and receivables
under service concession arrangements was HK$639,538,000 which
represented 49.1% of the Group’s total assets. An impairment
assessment is performed by management at the end of the
reporting period.

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to the
significance of the carrying amounts and significant estimates
involved in determining the future cash flows from such deposits
and receivables based on, among others, the ageing of these
deposit and receivable balances, and debtors’
creditworthiness,

customers’
past repayment history and historical write-off
experience.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to Impairment assessment of trade

and retention receivables, deposits and other receivables and

receivables under service concession arrangements included:

o Assessing the methodologies and inputs adopted by the
management of the Group in estimating the expected credit
loss (“ECL") of trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables and receivables under service concession

arrangements;

o Considering whether any debtor or group of debtors was
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; and

o Reviewing subsequent settlements of the trade and retention

receivables, deposits and other receivables and receivables

under service concession arrangements.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

intend to

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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ERB(E BB EA RITES 0 BRE -
BB T L R T BRI
B RPN

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

have complied with relevant ethical requirements

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public
communication.

interest benefits of such

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
Practising Certificate No. P01220

Hong Kong, 7 August 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mER@mK

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z2020F3531H i1 F/&

2019
Notes HK$'000
B E FET
REVENUE LN 7 837,168 1,021,729
Cost of sales 55 P AN (652,454) (815,859)
Gross profit E A 184,714 205,870
Other income and gains, net H A YA R U 25 0% 58 7 43,833 44,152
Administrative expenses TR (289,137) (275,297)
Expected credit loss on financial CRRENEEDN
and contract assets EHEEEE (37,914) (7,851)
Other expenses, net HEMHEY FEE 8 (193,752) (19,672)
Finance costs B 7 B AR 9 (46,803) (62,375)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PrFiHi RS 18 8 (339,059) (115,173)
Income tax credit FiEfRE & 12 26,605 15,875
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EREBE (312,454) (99,298)
Attributable to: BN :
Owners of the Company RAEEB A (295,679) (92,663)
Non-controlling interests eI R i = (16,775) (6,635)
(312,454) (99,298)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE SEBNAASH#EZE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BEANEBREBE
COMPANY 13
Basic E- N HK(51.61) centsi# fll  HK(16.38) cents&
Diluted s HK(51.61) centsi#fll  HK(16.38) centsi&ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

SeETHEW SR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z2020F3/H31H i1 F/&

2019
HK$'000
FH&T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EREE (312,454) (99,298)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib 2wk
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEE A E#HHEEIER
to profit or loss: MIER :
Exchange differences on translating HE SN ZE T P EE A
foreign operations Y B X =5 (21,081) (45,403)
Recycle of exchange differences upon H 1 S B 5 765 BRE [B]
disposal of foreign operations PE 5 =%8 — (577)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMBEIRE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX SR HIE (21,081) (45,980)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWEEE
FOR THE YEAR (333,535) (145,278)
Attributable to: EEBR
Owners of the Company ZINNEETE7 =N (313,446) (133,642)
Non-controlling interests 15 R = (20,089) (11,636)
(333,535) (145,278)
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2020F F R AIXEEER)ERATF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR &

31 March 2020 2020434315

2019
Notes HK$'000
B & FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W3 IR RE 14 181,691 217,614
Goodwill EES 15 22,563 169,698
Operating concessions R RE 16 260,472 346,244
Other intangible assets Hih L& E 17 51,785 69,389
Receivables under service concession AR 75 43 &F 4 22 HF FE IR
arrangements QL] 16 314,752 318,996
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRIE - Ze Kk
receivables H fth & U2 5 IE 23 42,307 33,913
Retention receivables FEW IR E & 22 19,733 33,990
Total non-current assets JEMBEELE 893,303 1,189,844
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 55 20 40,612 39,366
Contract assets EREE 21 7,283 48,501
Trade and retention receivables 2 5 FE W R IE I FE IR
REZ 22 171,679 215,801
Receivables under service concession AR 7 43 & 4 2 HF FE IR
arrangements FRIA 16 32,112 33,188
Prepayments, deposits and BARIE - Re R EA
other receivables JiE Uy 318 23 95,462 183,819
Loan receivables FE U B R 24 2,908 4,255
Consideration receivables eI B 18 17,607 37,232
Contingent consideration asset FAREEE 18 — 3,724
Financial assets at fair value through &38182581% A F (&
profit or loss TENERMEE 19 10,804 20,732
Tax recoverable A U [ 75 18 513 1,821
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReZEY 26 29,817 38,745
Total current assets MEEEBE 408,797 627,184

109



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR e B R O R

31 March 2020 20204%3/31H

2019
Notes HK$'000
B 2 FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBERE
Contract liabilities EHEE 21 4,854 3,247
Trade and retention payables 2 5 RN RIE R ERN
RE2 27 166,990 201,602
Other payables and accruals b JE A RRIE & E AT
EH 28 222,039 225,849
Lease liabilities HEBE 36 5,660 —
Due to directors B ESEHIAE 25 9,296 4,640
Interest-bearing bank and other SRR RAMEER
borrowings 29 254,033 96,588
Bonds &5 30 25,500 —
Tax payables FE SRR IR 7.877 7,303
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 696,249 539,229
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS # &) (B &iF#E)
BEFE (287,452) 87,955
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEERRDERE
LIABILITIES 605,851 1,277,799
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEiRE A 5
Due to a related company JEN—HB@E A ARHKE 25 217,345 384,643
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITRAMEER
borrowings 29 134,663 256,829
Retention payables BN RE 27 7,673 20,977
Other payables E A FE S OB 28 13,998 15,529
Provision BE 31 45,712 31,909
Lease liabilities HEAE 36 5,587 —
Bonds &% 30 — 25,500
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE 32 26,648 60,003
Total non-current liabilities EnBEELTE 451,626 795,390
Net assets BEFE 154,225 482,409
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R e BRI &

31 March 2020 2020434315

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2 TH&ET FH& T
EQUITY A
Equity attributable to owners of REREAASHEEAH
the Company i
Share capital & 4 33 57,290 57,290
Reserves 1 35 53,014 361,109
110,304 418,399
Non-controlling interests JE I B #E 2 43,921 64,010
Total equity A 154,225 482,409
Zhu Yongjun Cai Jianwen
KREE ZEX
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director

IRRBTESR HWITES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERSEX

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £202043/31H 1 F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERELTREN
Available-for-sale
Share Share financial asset Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option revaluation  fluctuation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account  reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
kb BRE TitEsR ERE
kd  RER  AHEE BF  AEEHER Ll 2itERE S FORED  BR0E
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FEr  TEr  TEr  TEn TEL TEL Tér TEr Tz TiEn
(note 35(a)) ~ (note 35(b)) (note 35(c))
(BsE3s(e)  (Kasib) (H35(0)
At 1 April 2018 and originally presented: 201854818 (RR%271) :
As previously reported IS 53,026 350,778 14,000 8942 7325 40499 (68,733) 405,837 76,234 48,01
Inital application of MRERERN RS
HKFRS 9t B9 = = - - (7325 = (19,733) (27,058 (265) 27383
As restated FeE] 53,026 350,778 14,000 8,942 = 40,499 (88,466) 318,719 75969 454,748
Loss for the year FhER - - - - - - (92,663) (92,663 (6635) (99,298
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMRERE:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BENERBHELY
operations EizE - - - - - (40,402) - (40402) (5001) (45403
Recydle of exchange differences upon disposal of HENRRBRENEN 28
foreign operations - - - - - (577) - (577) - (577)
Total comprehensive income for the year FhEENELE - - - - - 40,979) (92663) (133642 (11636  (145278)
Issue of shares ki 3 4214 159,700 - - - - — 18391 - 183914
Exercie of option fEBRE 3 50 1477 - @3 - - - 1,290 - 1,29
Issue of shares options ¥IBRE 34 - - - 9617 - - - 9617 = 9617
Acquisition equity interest of non-controlling interests M EREARE - - - - - (952) (607) (1,559 (33) (1,882)

At 31 March 2019 2019534318 57,290 511,955 14,000 18322 = (1432 (181,736) 418399 64010 482,409
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £202043/31H i F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERKATRAA
Share Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger  Share option  fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
L] BRi EREE

k% BEE  AHER L1 B RABR B3 kERER  HRSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEx TEx TEx TEx
(note 35(a)  (note 35(b))  (note 35(c))
(HE35e)  (WaE3sk)  (aEss()

At 1 April 2019 and originally presented: R201954A18 (RR%251) :
As previously reported kR 57,290 511,955 14,000 18322 (1432) (181,736) 418,399 64,010 482,409
Iniial application of HKFRS 16° MEEREANBREEN
F165° = = = = 8 (1,130) (1,122) - (1,122)
As restated %3 57,29 511,955 14,000 18,322 (1,424) (182,866) 417217 64,010 481,287
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (295,679) (295,679) (16,775) (312454)
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREfzEfE:
Exchange differences on translation of RENEERAELN
foreign operations EXZE - - - - (17,767) - (17,767) (3314 (21,081)
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2EREEE - - - - (17,767) (295,679) (313,446) (20,089) (333539
Amortisation of share option BREEY 6473 - - 6473 - 6473
Forfeit of share option BB RE - - - (857) - 857 - - -
Lapsed of share option BREXH - - - (8,705) - 8705 - - -
At 31 March 2020 2020537318 57,29 511,955 14,000 15,233 (19,191) (468,983) 110,304 3921 154,225
# Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 9 “Financial Instruments”. & BEUMBRELEER M IE] -

© Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16 “Leasing”. ©

BEMBREENF16FHE]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2202043 /31H 1 F/Z

2019
Notes HK$'000
B & FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEZ FEM
ACTIVITIES REeERE
Loss before tax B i Bl &5 18 (339,059) (115,173)
Adjustments for: BLLA TN ZIE(ETE % :
Finance costs B %5 Bk 7R 9 46,803 62,375
Interest income A E A 7 (504) (262)
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE  HER
property, plant and equipment R ETE B B s 7 (3,578) (1,335)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A A R ES 7 — (21,120)
Fair value change on derivative MESBIAD
financial instruments NEEEE — 10,302
Fair value change on financial FRBERIZATE
assets at FVTPL AENESREERN
NSREEE) 8 9,928 (1,991)
Depreciation e 8 44,472 43,161
Amortisation of operating KRR ST REEE AR
concessions 8 16,430 12,939
Amortisation of other intangible HitwEmPEEEEH
assets 8 11,804 11,001
Expected credit loss on financial SRERENEERN
and contract assets FEHEEEIE 37,914 7,851
Gain on disposal of equity interest & B I A U e
in Stand Ascent (29,349) —
Impairment of goodwiill EESNEEED 8 139,898 —
Impairment of property, plant and M - Hes Rk
equipment F R E 8 678 —
Impairment of other intangible Hip EIZEERE
assets 777 —
Impairment of operating KRR T RERLE
concession 52,399 —
Equity-settled share option LARE 2= 45 & 1Y B AR 4
expense % 34 6,473 9,617
(4,914) 17,365
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEeBHeERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

2019
HK$'000
FET
Increase in inventories 7 & 12 10 (1,246) (35,035)
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 41,652 35,403
Decrease/(increase) in trade and & 5 FE W IE K e IR
retention receivables RBER D () 48,696 (7,880)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FEffFIE &2 & K EAth
deposits and other receivables FEWGRIE R L,
(35 ) 18,947 (43,848)
Decrease in contingent FAREBEERD
consideration assets — 57,920
Decrease in receivables under service AR 7% 45 5 7 22 HF JE Uk
concession arrangements FKIE R 4,959 8,107
Increase in operating concessions B R R RE R N (3.895) (17,493)
Increase in consideration receivables  J& U X {& 1 h1 — (37,232)
Decrease in amount due from JE IR ZE =5 SRIE R
directors — 1,646
Increase/(decrease) in contract SHaEEMNORd)
liabilities 1,607 (10,981)
Decrease in trade and retention Z 5 RN RIERER
payables RBERD (47,916) (35,933)
Increase in other payables and E b & A FRIE K FE Gt
accruals & A 10 77,571 78,954
Increase in provision AL N 16,245 15,714
Cash from operations KEEENR S 151,706 26,707
Hong Kong profits tax refunded ER B HEBEFSH — 822
Overseas taxes paid B8 INHIE (5,263) (2,267)
Net cash flows generated from KEEBEED
operating activities REmEFHE 146,443 25,262
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREEHN
ACTIVITIES HE&ERE
Interest received B W F B 504 262
Purchases of items of property, plant FEE¥ 3 - #E &
and equipment REIEB (6,121) (32,917)
Proceeds from disposal of items of  HE¥E - #aE K
property, plant and equipment XEIEE TS RIE 6,057 12,011
Purchase of intangible assets BERLAE — (35)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U B BT /B A ) — (23,044)
Acquisition of non-controlling U B JE 472 A% 42 2
interest — (607)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME AR FTE5RIE
subsidiaries — 40,786
Settlement from loan receivables BN EKER 5,129 24,272
Net cash flows generated from WEEBEED
investing activities ReREFHE 5,569 20,728
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2019
Notes HK$'000
B & FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING KEREEHN
ACTIVITIES HeRsE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMD TS EIA 33 — 1,290
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITESFERIE — 51,209
Repayment of bonds BEES — (25,709)
New bank and other borrowings IRIT R EMEER 135,472 16,425
Repayment of bank and other BEERITEREMEER
borrowings (81,380) (63,574)
Repayment to capital element of EEHEEENRY
lease liabilities payments BERHLD (8.809) (5,004)
Interest element of lease liabilities HE B ENRD
payments ISR (1,038) (203)
Interest paid EENEAPS) (45,765) (26,963)
Increase in amount due to directors  J& < &= 5 FX I8 1L 1 4,656 4,640
Decrease in pledged deposit B8 17 2O 4 — 5,000
Decrease in amount due to a related J& < — 5 B B A 7] 3K 1A
company kA (167,298) (10,300)
Net cash flows used in financing B & E B AT Y
activities WEmEFHE (164,162) (53,189)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBFLEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS BOBRHE (12,150) (7,199)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNEBEE R
beginning of year REEEY 38,745 61,726
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEE [E R B i) 72 2
changes, net F 58 3,222 (15,782)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F£XKHIEER
END OF YEAR REEEY 29,817 38,745
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH HRE&RR&%EY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERaoWm
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITE R 29,817 38,745
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
New Concepts Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business of the Company is Office B, 3/F, Kingston
International Centre, 19 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
construction works, environmental protection and industrial
fluids system services.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

tERKTEEH
BIEEB(ER)BRATANHASE
EEMAYHERAR - ARRIME
ZEEMB AR B NEERRBREIR
A E R AR O3EBE ©

FAARABREWMBRR (BEIA
SEDIENERETRE RRRT
ERERAGR -

ARARBMREBBHEXIMERA
B (B Fr)) ER E77 e

FHMBABTNESR
ARREEMBRANFBAT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
M, ERTEE BEBRAATN
- Rl E 3 iR A BmE S TEEH
2019
New Twins Enterprises British Virgin US$1 100 100  Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong
Kong
EBEAES/ E REZR
BB
New Concepts Foundation Hong Kong HK$60,510,000 100 100  Provision of foundation
Limited works and general
building works
BIXHBERRRAA BB 60,510,000/ 7T RUMETIER R
EFIE
New Concepts Trading Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Sales of construction
Company Limited materials
BIERMBRAR BB 10,0007 7T SHE M
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1. EEREEEH (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
M, B#TEE BEBRAATN
&g R E b iR A EZESt ETEEB
2019
New Concepts Engineering Hong Kong HK$19,000,000 100 100 Provision of civil
Development Limited engineering works
and general building
works
BIXIRERERA A FE 19,000,000/% 7T REIARIER—HK
BEFI®
Dynamic Premier Limited  British Virgin US$50,000 100 100  Investment holding
Islands/Hong
Kong
EBRAHE/ 50,000% 7T REZR
BB
Prime World Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Investment holding
ARER R A ) 10,0007 7T REZER
NEREXEEYER People’s Republic  RMB120,000,000 100 100 Kitchen waste
BR DA (“Taiyuan of China treatment
Tianrun”) (TKRRE])  (“PRC"Y/
Mainland China
HEE AR AR AR BE N R R
(TR @),/ 120,000,0007%
B A
Ultra Premier Limited British Virgin US$50,000 100 100  Investment holding
Islands/Hong
Kong
RBRABE/ 50,000% 7T REZK
BB
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1. EEREEEH (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
313994 B#TEE FERAATH
& EIU - E 3 EUTES EZEst ETEEB
2019
BIEIEN EMRIE PRC/Mainland US$30,000,000 60 60  Kitchen waste
B R 2 7)("Hefei China treatment
Feifan”) (A REFER])  HEFERM  30,000,000% T BB RER
BEMABERERR PRC/Mainland RMB45,000,000 80 80  Kitchen waste
B BR 2 8("Loudi China treatment
Fangsheng”) HE R B AR BRI RERE
(1::222) 45,000,0007T
Clear Industry Company  Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 51 51  Investment holding
Limited N 2,500,000/ 7T REZER
("Clear Industry”)
BN S AR IR R B PRC/Mainland RMB50,010,000 51 51  Engineering,
BREAA] China procurement and
construction of
kitchen waste and
water treatment
HE B i AR BRI KK R IR
50,010,0007% IR RBREE
BEKEERE(EE)  PRC/Mainland RMB 10,800,000 51 51  Engineering,
BRAE China procurement and
construction of
water treatment
HE B i AR KEETIRE RER
10,800,0007T B
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1.

120

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1. EERKEEHE)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/  Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
313894 B#TEE FERAATH
& R E b ERUTES EZESt ETEEB
2019
B (RZE)RE R PRC/Mainland RMB110,000,000 100 100 Provision of
BRAF China environmental
improvement
solutions
R E i AR RERBEHEAR
110,000,000
Vimab Holding AB Sweden SEK50,000 100 100  Provision of
("Vimab") industrial fluid
system services
iy £ 50,0003 # 72 B RETIXZREZRSR

m These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

Except for New Twins Enterprises Limited and Ultra Premier
Limited, the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

iR %

0 ZE M B R RRESBERFEZEM RN
BEEDE -

FxNew Twins Enterprises Limited &
Ultra Premier Limited#h » it fff 8 2~
ARARNRIHEERSA -

ERIHEZRREIBZZEAREEF
NERGERERANEEFEEEANS D
WARBIMBAR EFBRIEHE
B ARNFEELRIBENITE -
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

April 2019

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features and Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes

Amendments to HKAS 23
Borrowing Costs

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases have
been summarised in below. The other new or amended
HKFRSs that are effective from 1 April 2019 did not
have any significant impact on the group’s accounting

policies.

2. RPEEMBREEL

(a)

BRANHFETEIETEEME
HEZER — ®2019F4H1H
£
AEBERAFENT B HRE
BHRRA T EETRBTB
AR o

EEMBHREREN HE

165
a5 (ARMHER MEREEN
LREZEE) THERZR
— REBE3R
EEMBREEN EBAMBERNRN
FIRMEFT B 45
ekl FHENEET ~ MRSk
F195RKEET ®#H
ekl REEATRAE
F285 K5 ET ENR AR
20158 E2017F  BABUBREER
BREOBBMLE  FE3RME
BERAEE [¥%4A 6]
Bigi3 BEBMBHRE LR
BUREEET
[G& %]
BB g ER
F125 BT
[Fr{5%:]
BB g8
EVEL A )
[ & &R A

HMB B YRS ERF165
[HEINFER TXHM o H
ft 520194818 # £ 8B
BB BREERKE B
BmEENMETERNEEH
S BRRTEFEMAEATE -

E
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

(1)

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant
accounting treatment for
primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces
HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
From a lessee’s perspective, almost all leases are
recognised in the statement of financial position
as a right-of-use assets and a lease liabilities, with
the narrow exception to this principle for leases
which the underlying assets are of low-value or
are determined as short-term leases. From a
lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17.

changes in
lease accounting,

2.

RANE B RS A

(&)

(a)

RG] EETEHMS
HEXER — ®2019F4H18
EW(E)

BEE B EERE 165 —

#HE
(1)

RAWE BRI & ER)
FleH a7 &
BEV B REERNF 165
RAEEAN G EE
WRERKE  TBHR
EBAGE BEYK
HELAFB 1R TR
S EREITRIEE
(I& & & & £ 7 £17
1) B A (B 5 8
TRBZEg)—RES
AR EERHERESH
& BEAR(FBREXRER
g)— REFISHKIKEE
HE — BBIRBE(E
HGREBZEE)— 2ES
275 [P R E AR
FARZHAR] - #E
BABE BRHHEE
R BARREKNERBE
REEENBEERE M
E—RANEREHRZE
EEEEEBERKEE
REHNAE - KHAA
AK gtREANEL
BARGEMNBI7H
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £202043/31H i F /&

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEFEMBREEA

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (%)
(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (a) R&NH:] EIETEEME
April 2019 (continued) & FER — ®20195E4H18
£ (E)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued) EEYFIREERE1655—
HEE)
(i) Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) (i) R EBEFREEL
FleHk iy & (E)
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the AEEFBAHKARTTE
cumulative effect approach and recognised all the EREABEBV R EER
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as F165% - WRYEFER B
an adjustment to the opening balance of HA 1% %) 46 FE R B 7 B 75 R
accumulated loss at the date of initial application. HREAIF 165 M2 I Rt
The comparative information presented in 2019 HEWAREN R EE
has not been restated and continues to be FVAENRAE - £BB
reported under HKAS 17 and related B 7 3R & A2 Al 251657 Y B
interpretations as allowed by the transition BBRX AT REENT
provision in HKFRS 16. # B 52019 B b & &

BomREEREESS
SHERIFE175 R AR 2R

HE o
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

(i) Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)
The following tables summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement

of financial position as of 31 March 2019 to that
of 1 April 2019 as follows:

2. ?ﬁ;éﬁ]éi%ﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ

(a) IREFET BIETEEME
HEXER — ®2019F4H18
£33 (E)
EBHMBHREREAFE165—
#HE (&)

() RSB EHREER
FleRm a7 £ ()
TRBMBEERBIME
o #E Bl 551658 ¥ 722019
#£3H31H K2019%F481H
AR A SRR R E

HK$'000
FBT
Increase/
(decrease)
Statement of financial position as at 20195E4A 18 9B 75 i, GEY)
1 April 2019 LS
Right-of-use assets presented in property, plant %I A %1% - # 28 & R & &Y
and equipment EREEE 12,196
Lease liabilities (current) HEAB(R) 8,069
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBREGERD) 11,442
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITRAMEER
(current) CmaEn) (3,579)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AFERRTRAMEBEER
(non-current) (3EM &) (2,614)
Accumulated losses 2EtEE (1,130)
Exchange Reserve bE 5 & 8
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RN FEMFEREEA

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (&)
(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (a) ¥R&NHFE] EETEEME
April 2019 (continued) 5 EH — 201954818
£ (E)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued) BB HEEFE165—
HE (&)
(i) Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) () FRABEBHHEREER
Eregt & (E)
The following reconciliation explains how the VAT #f BR 8 12 50201943
operating lease commitments disclosed applying A3VB#&ERKERBES
HKAS 17 at the end of 31 March 2019 could be ST AERI S5 1755 4% B O 45
reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of HEREENVIEER B
initial application recognised in the statement of Hi20194F4 A1 8 M B 5 A
financial position as at 1 April 2019: NEBERNEAEEENS
BE :
HK$'000
FAT
Reconciliation of operating lease KEHERERES
commitment to lease liabilities B ENHER
Operating lease commitment as of 201953 A31H M & &
31 March 2019 TH & A IE 19,891
Less: short term leases for which lease terms end J& @ 78 8§ 7420204
within 31 March 2020 3A31THATA R
RMEHEE (6,293)
Less: leases of low-value assets B EKEEEEMEE (280)
Add: Finance leases liabilities as of N R2019F3A318 K
31 March 2019 MEHEEAE 6,193
Total lease liabilities as of 1 April 2019 M2019F4A 1B HEE
BfEEE 19,511
The weighted average lessee’s incremental FA2019F4 A1 B 9B 75
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities MR RERHEE & B
recognised in the statement of financial position FA B I S 5 A AE A R 18
as at 1 April 2019 are from 5.5% to 11.5%. & 8 Fl X /55%%F
11.5% °
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

(i)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to
use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. A contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time when the
customer, throughout the period of use, has
both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by
class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a single
lease component. The Group has elected to
separate non-lease components from lease
component for all leases.

ﬁéfq?é;’%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%iﬁﬁu

?*@]ﬁn]-/z“ nTEI%H#*%

HEEA

— 122019%E481H8

E®(E)
BB R EERF165—

(i)

B(#®)

HHBEEE

RIFBRE W MEERE
165%  ME R TEREE—
HE-BRERAER—E
BE(HBEE)EHNIA
BERRENEHHBIE
A MEPRERBRA—
BH:QARBKRERD#A
BERBSBABY KEF
i N ()RR E A E &
BIBE  BlaMERERE
—RERAEAD#E
E B P2 I -

mEaHEEKED AR
— A Z EEIEEHIE
HEAKRIAWE LM
E'EK?HJ\FEWH 5K
HB oy M ARE E B E AR ) IF
MEAKRI D NBEBE
RAER  BEHANK
T“" E % 70 & A KA
CBRIEERBEARBER
REH 75 A R AGE A AT HE A8
HEERNEEINHEE
ARE DR O FIFEEA
Mo -mMEHESHEA
&b "&Eﬂ*ﬁ FIFEE
4B R ED f’EF‘%ﬁ HEHA
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7 9 A EAH B 4B R AR
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

(iif)

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as
an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the statement
of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they
are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
but HKFRS 16 provides accounting
policy choices for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is
of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

liabilities,

for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of a
lease.

2.

(&)

RANE B RS A

(a) IREFET BIETEEME
HREXER — ®2019F4H18
EW(E)

BEE B EERE 165 —

#HE (&)

(ir)

EEA EZ it
BIEEBS G &R E17
o AAABREHRESR
E A A E R & E
MEBN A ASEREA
miER  BHESHEAKL
EHEMEMAE - M
EETAKLERE  AIK
HARHBABELHEE
WHEENRER AR -
A A KBS R R AR
eHRABELE -

BIEE B ISR EERE
1652 TBEHAE(Twm /B
KEHERBmERE)Y
BRFHBMRLERAER
It tehERAEEERMA
EaE EREFBHE
HwAEERF165% - BT
AEEZAENATREEAR
g atBE: (VEHA
&R/ R()EBEEES
BEENEE AEEDE
EBETpmEEEEE NN
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)
(if)  Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments shall be discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group shall use the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RiNFEMFEREEA

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(&)

(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (a) IREFET BIETEHEME
April 2019 (continued) 5 EH — 201954818
EW(E)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued) BB HEEFE165—
#HE (&)

(if)  Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease

(i) AEA TG ZE(E)

HERE#E)

THI IR HE F A B
¢ A~ O A HA P AR R A E i
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂ‘fﬁ

are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed ()BT A RO £ faT fE
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (ii) Hﬂlﬁ SRR (NHURRE
variable lease payments that depend on an index — S RN A EEE
or a rate, initially measured using the index or 3R s R S B
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts BIFE Bk EL 5T & ¢ (i)

expected to be payable by the lessee under

HABHRBERGEEE

residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of REMH S (VEEE

a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

ERnTEE AR A
G I b T E 1T ax R 12
) Rt IE S
B9 51 5% (40 78 HA S Ak A 7R
ATTREEFRRILAE)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee MRFR E A% - A ARE
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing BEUATHAAFEHRES
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the & ()EMERE € IR

lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to

RESRENFE ()R

reflect the lease payments iii) DERTE € B A R BLATIE L
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any B A &R Riil) B
reassessment or lease modifications, a 2 RE S5 N R B[

change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease

EFFEREEER
A0 R KA & 5 R A 45 Bsk

term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease hEEHmMEE  HHBAE

payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

“~TEIEE “OEL
%5008 B 100 B E 0TS
B
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

April 2019 (continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

(iv)  Transition

As mentioned above the Group has applied
HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect approach
and recognised all the cumulative effect of
initially applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to
the opening balance of accumulated losses at the
date of initial application (1 April 2019). The
comparative information presented in 2018 has
not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at
the date of 1 April 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases applying HKAS 17
and measured those lease liabilities at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s

borrowing rate at 1 April 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the
right-of-use assets at 1 April 2019 for leases
previously classified operating leases under HKAS
17 as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since the
commencement date, but discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. For all these right-of-use assets,
the Group has applied HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets at 1 April 2019 to assess if there was any

impairment as on that date.

130
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

(iv)

Transition (continued)

The Group has also applied the follow practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (ii) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases with term that will end within 12
months of the date of initial application (1 April
2019) and accounted for those leases as
short-term leases; (iii) exclude the initial direct
costs from the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at 1 April 2019 and (iv) used hindsight in
determining the lease terms if the contracts
contain options to extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is
applied to all of the Group's lease contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and (ii)
not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int4.

As the Group has elected to adopt the cumulative
effect method over the adoption of HKFRS 16, for
those finance leases under HKAS 17, the
right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease
liabilities at 1 April 2019 were the carrying
amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities
under HKAS 17 immediately before that date. For
those leases, the Group has accounted for the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities
applying HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019.

=

2. ﬁ;@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ

(a) BRAHT EETEHBUE
& #E Bl — 20194818
£ (E)
BEEFEHREERE165—

HE(E)

(iv)

B E (&)
AEEE R N ER
BEAE: (VHAEELE
HUEBNEEAEER
BRI E (VEA TR
S HAHE HA R 44 FE B B BF
(BN2019F4 518 ) #5112
&l B A& RO T E RS
AEEEAHEAENE
% WiZEREART
A% E R 8 s (i) 2019
FARBHAEFAEEE
BB REIREERA
K(v)fa & 48 & % 5 =
mIETAEREERE - AR
RE#AFAETHE-

o AEEREERAE
BRiEE A B ()
REBATB LA ERES
S EBFI7THR KR EF B
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HMEZHEAYERESD
B 765 3 5 22 A1) 55 1655 K (i)
T ERIIREE B S5 £
B 21757 & &5 (BB BF
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MEZHERRBE BN
2RI SE 1657 -

AR AEBEERESBIR
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%R R E1658 - BH
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain tax
treatment separately or together based on which
approach better predicts the
uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

resolution of the

knowledge of all related

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan amendments,
curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions to
determine its current service cost and net interest for
the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling is
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in
other comprehensive income.

2.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

?ﬁ;il}]éi%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ

(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (a) ¥R&NHFE] EETEEME

April 2019 (continued) & #£EH — R2019%F4A1H
EW(E)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features BEEMFREERFIFH

with Negative Compensation 1557 — REE#HIERI 1€
& 114514

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets ZEBBEEEREEEGKME

with negative compensation can be measured at WIERT  BEBEERMENA R

amortised cost or at fair value through other AIE 1 & @b & B 0] R 8 A AR

comprehensive income if specified conditions are met — FREBEMEERRIRA T

instead of at fair value through profit or loss. Bit2(MEBRERIEATE
FE)MARGE -

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests EEE BRI F28% I 1E5T

in Associates and Joint Ventures — RBEEAGIRESELFEN
RE

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to FZIER BB BB U ®EER|

long-term interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures FOBERANREBE RN RS &

which form part of the net investment in the associates PEFAERKRZEZERAAFFR

or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied E—Hom Rz WHETE

to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance REREBE &0 F285F

within HKAS 28. BB (B B 18 12 5| BT 8 % & R ]
T ERA BB RS ERIE9
o

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 20155 F20184E H B B9 & &

Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business HHEREEAFEREXKE —

Combinations FEUFH & EAF39 0
1EFT[ £ 7 & 1]

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that
when a joint operator of a business obtains control over
a joint operation, this

achieved

is a business combination
in stages and the previously held equity
interest should therefore be remeasured to its

acquisition date fair value.

REBREBRPEMNOZSE
ETHREIL THEENZEE
AMEH A R N2l -
ZERHEREEVHREE
AIEIRMER]  HEBERE
BHARKEERBRARRLE
MR ZEXEBAH IS
FEBGER - Bt BRI AR
HEEEHNAERENKERH
A FE -
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that
when a party that participates in, but does not have
joint control of, a joint operation which is a business
and subsequently obtains joint control of the joint
operation, the previously held equity interest should not
be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all
income tax consequences of dividends are recognised
consistently with the transactions that generated the
distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

?ﬁ;il}]éi%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEFEMBREEA

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (%)
(continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (a) R&NH:] EIETEEME
April 2019 (continued) & FER — ®20195E4H18
£ (E)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 20155 E20185 A B9 & &
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing BB #HEERFREXNE —
Costs EEE I EAB2374E 09 155T
[EERE]
The amendments issued under the annual REEBGERIBRBERNZE
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes &R ST B I NERREHY) IR %
to standards where they are currently unclear. They BYE L SR A 2 S 2 U0 B9 2R &) o
include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a ZERBRERB ST ENFE
borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset BB EEBABMBEA
which remains outstanding after the related qualifying BEREEMBEMELNEE -
asset is ready for its intended use or sale would MRS EREEAERTE
become part of the funds an entity borrows generally AEHERDAEE Alg
and therefore included in the general pool. KAEEE—RAEESHN —I

DAAWFA—REEMLEA -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of material’
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'!
39 and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

9 Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 June 2020

with earlier application permitted

& The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments of the amendments continue to be
permitted
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as
a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
“outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 —
Definition of material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.

Framework, and

2.

(b)
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
— Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from potential
effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties.

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single
principle-based standard for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts in the financial statements of the issuers of
those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions

The amendments allow lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Such practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
conditions are met:

o The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

o Any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021,

o There is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting
financial statements.

policies and

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of preparation and going concern

assumption

(i) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption (continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
had a net loss of HK$312,454,000 and net
current liabilities of HK$287,452,000 as at 31
March 2020. As of that date, the Group had
bonds, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings totalling HK$279,533,000, trade and
retention payables, other payables and accruals
and lease liabilities totalling HK$394,689,000
included in current liabilities while the Group's
cash and cash equivalents was HK$29,817,000. In
addition, the Group has bonds and interest-
bearing borrowings with principals and interests
totalling HK$176,461,000 has been overdue or
become repayable on demand (as detailed in
Note 27, Note 28, Note 29, Note 30 and Note
36).

In particular, Vimab had an outstanding
borrowing of SEK131,000,000 (approximately
HK$101,509,000), as secured by all issued shares
of Vimab and certain of its subsidiaries (“Pledged
Shares”), to a creditor (the “Fund”) which will be
mature and become payable on 16 April 2021
according to the loan agreement (“Loan
Agreement”). As detailed in note 49(a), the Fund
demanded for loan repayment since the Fund
considered Vimab was in default as it was evident
that Vimab would not be capable of discharging
the full amount of the outstanding indebtedness
under the Loan Agreement and therefore the
Fund enforced the Pledged Shares under the Loan
Agreement, and transferred all the Pledged Shares
to a company designated by it (“Designated
Company”). Upon the completion of the transfer
of the Pledged Shares, the Group lost its
ownership interests in Vimab.

3. WREE(E)
(b) EEERERSECEBR (D)

(ii)

FFEEERE

R # £20203A318 It
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3. REEE(E)
(b) MREEERFMEEBR (D)

(i)

Going concern basis (continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have prepared a cash flow forecast of
the Group covering a period of 15 months from
the end of the reporting period (the “Forecast
Period”). In doing so, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to its
operating needs, the future liquidity of the Group
and its available sources of financing, in light of
the fact that the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19") in January 2020 had led to
the suspension of the environment protection
segment (Note 6) in the PRC from February to
March 2020 and the operations have gradually
resumed since March 2020 but with certain
operational plant not fully restored to the level
before such outbreak, in assessing whether the
Group will be able to repay the outstanding debts
and be able to finance its future working capital
and other financial requirements.

(i)

HELERE(E)

LR BERBEREFEERD
BERE AU ANEE
FEELENRENBRER
BB - MU & B R BRI
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption (continued)

(i)

Going concern basis (continued)

The cash flow forecast has included the effects of
the following major measures and events that
have been implemented or taking place in order
to enhance the Group’s liquidity position to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall
due, including the aforesaid bonds, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of
HK$279,533,000 and current trade and retention
payable, other payables and accruals and lease
liabilities totalling HK$394,689,000 as at 31
March 2020:

a) As also detailed in note 49(a), the Company
and the Fund entered a discharge
agreement dated 27 July 2020 (“Discharge
Agreement”). Had the Discharge Agreement
been executed and completed as at 31
March 2020, Group's net current liabilities
as at 31 March 2020 would have been
reduced by HK$72 million in terms of a
decrease in current assets and current
liabilities of HK$75 million and HK$147
million respectively and a decrease in non-
current liabilities as at 31 March 2020 of
HK$25 million;

b) Collecting the proceeds from the disposal of
Clear Industry (as detailed in Note 49(b))
amounting to RMB5 million (approximately
HK$5,429,000),
instalment

representing the 1st
received, within the Forecast
Period;

3. BREE(E)

(b) HSREERBREE

(i)
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REEE(EF)
Basis of preparation and going concern (b) HFHREERFEHEE
assumption (continued)

(i) Going concern basis (continued)

:é& /fm’)

(i) FFEEEBEE)

¢) The Group entered into placement 0 A& HELIZR20205F
agreement and subscription agreements and 6 A FT e & i
raised approximately HK$22 million in June REBR EED
2020: 22,000,000/ T

d)  The Group appointed a placing agent in d AEEBZFE—%
arranging at best effort basis for the issue RMERE |H%
of the corporate bonds that repayable after P ITR2F 12 B Hf
2 year of approximately HK$200 million; BENRAGERFL

200,000,0007% JT :

e) The Group obtained an interest-free loan of e) K& BB a8 E
HK$50 million from an indirect substantial BIAIEREAWNEIL:
shareholder of the Company within the HEEEERRER
Forecast Period which is repayable after 12 g & B B XK
months from the date of this report; and 50,000,000/ JT °

REAHRE B B
1218 A 18 5 8
&

f) The Group has been also actively identifying f) AEB T —HER
any other possible financing options and SHAE A E A AT
debt restructuring exercises to further MEEEREBE
enhance and strengthen the liquidity of the MEE) NE—F
Group. R WL AR ARNEE

B # 1 -

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned measures and events, the

Group would have sufficient working capital to finance

its operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due over the Forecast Period.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 on a going concern basis.

HEREMS  AEEKEE
TREBEBES  TJREAR
HERNAEZEEREES
WETERHGEEE -
Eitt - R ELCEEE
% 2L H 202093 A318
IEFERERE SRR B
BiRE -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption (continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned
plans and measures, it might not be able to continue to
operate as a going concern, and adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of
the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been

reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated. Each entity within the Group maintains its
books and records in its own functional currency. The
functional currency of the Company is HK$.

3.

mWEE(E)

(b)

(c)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case

the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the vyear are
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates
of disposal, as appropriate.
adjustments are made to the financial statements of

included in the consolidated

Where necessary,

subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value.
The Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in
at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net

the subsidiary either at fair value or
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from

equity.

4. FEEFBREE

(a)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are

other subsequent adjustments

recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
(including goodwill), liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts

assets and
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

income

4.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1) power over the investee, (2) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

o The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting

rights;
o Other contractual arrangements; and
o Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired.

allocated is tested for

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

loss for

4.
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FEEHRBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at FVTPL and
contingent consideration asset at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

(d)

AFHEFE

AEEREREHRIRZAFE
AAEHEBERRATEFE
MEREERARKREBEE -
ATFERRFEBRETRHZ
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REEEERMABEEEX
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74 S5 10 5 PR 2 6 31185 T3 D
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RAFBRRABARBEAF
EMFEAEREE HER
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BREOREERSGABERT
RAFEEBERD S :

Level 1  —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—E — HREBERBESK
active markets for identical assets or BEEERTS
liabilities FHRE CREE

)

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which B = — ERHAFEE
the lowest level input that is significant EMEAEEE
to the fair value measurement is EENXERER
observable, either directly or indirectly MABENEE

ok fEl 2 AT B R Y
fit (B £ 1l

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which F= — ERHAFEE
the lowest level input that is significant EMEAEEE
to the fair value measurement is EENXERER
unobservable W ABE AT

BIR e BRI
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between

(d)

(e)

levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

0)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

0)

(if)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

20206 FH RAIXEBEM(EZER)ERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P 705 ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

4. FEERTBREEE)

(e) FABER (£)
(b) (%E)

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The annual rates are as follows:

Office premises over the shorter of lease
terms or useful life
10% to 20%

10% to 33%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 25%, over the
shorter of lease terms or
useful life

Land and building 10% to 50%
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net

sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is

recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Leasing

A Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is
of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)

(9)

A

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019 (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use at cost,
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

less any accumulated
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leasing (continued)

A

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019 (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease,
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined,
incremental borrowing rate.

if that rate can be

the Group uses the Group’s

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)

(9)

A

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2019 (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

lease

Accounting as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

incurred
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leasing (continued)

B

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2019

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group,
legal title,
finance leases. At the inception of a finance

other than are accounted for as
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included
plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms

in property,

and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts
of a financing nature are accounted for as
finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by
the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under

leases.

the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Leasing (continued)

B Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2019 (continued)
Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Service concession arrangements

Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that (a) the
Group has an unconditional contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset from or at the direction
of the grantor for the construction services; and (b) the
grantor has little, if any, discretion to avoid payment,
usually because the agreement is enforceable by law.
The Group has an unconditional right to receive cash if
the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group
(a) specified or determinable amounts or (b) the
shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users
of the public service and specified or determinable
amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the
Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets the
specified quality of efficiency requirements. The financial
asset (receivable under a service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the
policy set out for loans and receivables under “Financial
assets” below.

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of the public service, which is not an
unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts
are contingent on the extent that the public uses the
service. The intangible asset (operating concession) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for

“Intangible assets (other than goodwill)” below.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Service concession arrangements (continued)
Consideration given by the grantor (continued)
If the Group is paid for the construction services partly
by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, in
which case, each component of the consideration is
accounted for separately and the consideration received
or receivable for both components shall be recognised
initially at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.

Construction or upgrade services

Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade
services are accounted for in accordance with the policy
set out for “Construction contracts” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Contractual obligations to restore the
infrastructure to a specific level of serviceability
The Group has contractual obligations which it must
fulfil as a condition of its licence, that is (a) to maintain
the kitchen waste treatment plants it operates to a
specified level of serviceability; and/or (b) to restore the
plants to a specified condition before they are handed
over to the grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangement. These contractual obligations to maintain
or restore the kitchen waste treatment plants, except for
upgrade element, are recognised and measured in
accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions”
below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent the rights to operate
kitchen waste treatment plants are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the
straight-line basis over the respective periods of the
operating concessions granted to the Group of 25 to
30 years.

Patents

Purchased patents are less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of

stated at cost

10 years.

Customer list

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of
5 years.

Technologies

Technologies are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful economic lives of 8 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Non-compete Agreement

Non-compete Agreement are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of
5 years.

()

()]

Trademark

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful economic lives of 26 years.

Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

FEGEHBHRBMEE)

()

()

B EE(FERIM) (E)

T iR Bl

5 15 5 1R AKCAS R AE DR (B
BRI - I A HERSF B
BEt A ERREFRAEH -

BT

7 A3 12 A AN R AE (o] Rk (B &5 1R 51
R 0 30 DA B AROE R26%F B fl 5
AEREEFERREE -

ERMTHR

() ZHEE
TRHEEMEEARE
AR ER D B E 5 U RR
B 51 W1t 4% X FE A0 (fi
BRI IFBEBRBRBAFE
FFEMBER)KRBRET
CREEEREENRZS
KAGFE - WEERNEE
AR ER D B E 5 U RR
MR ZZEFE -

MERERTAETHE
MEEEENX S B H
(B 7K & B # 3 B8 B ok i
EREENBH)ER -
EETABEREE K
15 35 5 2 18 B 5] € 79 HA
BARNEENEREE

m ==
BE-C

EEEAEARARNITET
ENEREENRERE
EBMEINAE R E
B BEREEZSER

161



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 705 % MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (continued)
(i)  Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or

loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest,
measured at fair value through OCI.

investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 R Y =

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

()]

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging

Financial assets with cash flows that are not

instruments.

solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as
debt
designated at fair value through profit or loss on
recognition if doing so eliminates, or

significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

described above, instruments may be

initial
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5 705 % MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j). Financial Instruments (continued)
(i)  Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’'s fair value
comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and
income are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI.
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group

exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 R Y =

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

()]

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for receivable from service concession
arrangement, trade receivables and contract assets
using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has applied the probability of based on
that of counterparties with similar credit rating,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
guantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience,
informed credit assessment and forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 705 % MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

(continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrate otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more logging
default criteria is more appropriate.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the

gross carrying amount.

(iif) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

Financial Instruments (continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit
or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 705 % MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met:
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains
or losses on them on a different basis; (i) the
liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or
(iii) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately

recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition,
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, except for the gains and losses arising
from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these

financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £202043/31H i F /&

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEEBHBREBEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)  Financial Instruments (continued) () =T HE)
(iii) Financial liabilities (continued) Giii) 2HEE(E)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit BiBEmIENFE
or loss (continued) FrEM A E(E)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHKAGTEN SR
=

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including RBERAGFENEHE
trade and other payables, borrowings, certain EBEE S R EMEN K
preference shares and the debt element of BH-BE -BETEERR
convertible loan note issued by the Group are AR R BT AT B K
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using ERPNEBES  Hig
the effective interest method. The related interest 1 A B BRI B 5 e S K
expense is recognised in profit or loss. AetE  HEMEZHER

B R -

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss WamskEE R ILERE
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as B DA K3 B SR Y

through the amortisation process. BamfER e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FH R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 202043 /31H i1 F &

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (continued)
(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a

shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

()

(vi)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with principles
of the accounting policy set out in note 4(j)ii);
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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172

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@G

Financial Instruments (continued)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

()

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are nonassessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill, if any, and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.
An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property is
carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on

subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is

investments in

able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except

when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to

an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income

item,

account and is released to the statement of profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the
construction of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying
amount of the government loans is determined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities” above.
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or
at a below-market is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the
loans and the proceeds received,
government grant and released to the statement of

rate of interest, which

is treated as a

profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

and constrained until

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For
a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group satisfied a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

— The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

—  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced.

—  The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group
recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the surveyors’
assessment of work performed and the costs incurred
up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition (continued)

When the Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement, the transaction price
will be allocated to each performance obligation by
reference to their relative stand-alone selling prices. If
the standalone selling prices are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus a
margin or adjusted market assessment approach,
depending on the availability of observable information.
In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of
a financing component if it is significant.

(a) Construction service revenue

The Group’s performance in respect of
construction services creates or enhances an asset
or work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs

for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a
service concession arrangement is estimated on a
cost plus basis with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margin at the date of the
agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.

(b) Service fee income
The Group recognised revenue when the related
services are rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the
legal title of the completed machineries and the
Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

(d) Industrial fluids system services income
The Group recognised revenue from industrial
fluids system services when the related services
are rendered.

Other income
Machinery rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
that
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

has transferred to a customer is not yet

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group
completes the infrastructure construction works under
such services contracts but yet certified by architects,
surveyors or representatives appointed by
customers, or (ii) the customers retain retention money
to secure the due performance of the contracts. Any

other

amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations
(including advances received from customers) exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the output
method then the Group recognises a contract liability

for the difference.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, ETEFHTBRBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Share-based payments (p) KMEHABERZFHRIE
The Company operates a share option scheme for the RAal&A —EHEBREE
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible EEMBAREEKIEEED
participants who contribute to the success of the ERNEER2EERHEER
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) and kB - REBEEE (BREESE)
consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the MEMEAROBERINH
form of share-based payments, whereby employees and FRIEF X BEEB - B BB
consultants render services as consideration for equity K B [ 12 £ AR 75 1F A AR A
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). TEMREBE(UEZEENR

1) -
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees g B R HEMREEEURSEH
and others providing similar services is measured by ATHTUEZEENRIN
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at R Th2RBREATERED
the date at which they are granted. The cost of equity- HEW A FE=Z - EES N
settled transactions with parties other than employees is IANTETURREENR S
measured directly at the fair value of the goods or B PK AN B B 1R P W ER & 4 2k AR
services received, unless that fair value cannot be BOATETZE  HEMATE
estimated reliably, in which case the fair value is MmoE T A A R 2 RATR
measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the HRATEMAFERETZ -

equity instruments granted.

The fair value of the share options granted is b iR R A FEHINE
determined by an external valuer using a binomial HEMAMAB-EAREEE -
model, further details of which are given in note 34 to i i A AN Y )
the financial statements. 734 ©

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in R EERNR 5B KA ER
employee benefit expense, together with a EES ez EERR
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in ARG G ERITH RN E
which the performance and/or service conditions are BERAATIHR - EHEBB
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity- Al - & 3RS B R 2R B LA B
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period HEENR P RFTHAX R
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the BEHEERSS RANEEH
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best EEEeRENRATAEHA
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will M EGET- RE—HE/E
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of mAMBRNERNSTE R
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in RE R R ERO R HAX
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning 2y o

and end of that period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date
but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an

fair value of awards,

associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

include a market or

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of each reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the period when the employees render the related
service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in the profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in

other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used.
All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period.
recognised
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve. Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net

Exchange differences arising, if any, are

in other comprehensive income and

investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other income and

accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

comprehensive
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment under cost model
o investments in subsidiaries
o intangible assets

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and

the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

(a)

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following

judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional currency of
each entity in the Group, judgement is required to
determine and consider the currency that mainly
influences sales prices of goods and services and of the
country/jurisdiction whose competitive forces and
regulations mainly determine the sales prices of goods
and services; the currency that mainly influences labour,
materials and other costs of providing goods or services;
the currency in which funds from financing activities are
generated; and the currency in which receipts from
operating activities are usually retained. The functional
currency of each entity in the Group is determined
based on management’s assessment of the primary
economic environment in which the entities operate.
When the indicators are mixed and the functional
currency is not obvious, management uses its
judgement to determine the functional currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the provision for income taxes. Determining
income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up

accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is

rules.

reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices

in respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial

year, are

described below.

Construction work and service contracts

The Group recognises revenue for construction work
and service contracts according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contracts of construction
work or service. The Group’s management estimates the
percentage of completion of construction work and
service based on the actual cost incurred over the total
budgeted cost, where corresponding contract revenue is
also estimated by management. Because of the nature
of the activity undertaken in construction and service
contracts, the date at which the activity is entered into
and the date when the activity is completed usually fall
into different accounting periods. The Group reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract revenue and
in the budget prepared for each
construction contract and service contract as the
contract progresses.

contract costs

5.
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(b)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Classification between operating concessions and
receivables under service concession
arrangements

As explained in note 4(h) to the financial statements, if
the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is
necessary to account separately for each component of
The consideration received or
receivable for both components shall be recognised
initially at their fair values.

the consideration.

The segregation of the consideration for a service
concession arrangement between the financial asset
component and the intangible asset component, if any,
requires the Group to make an estimate of a number of
factors, which include, inter alia, future guaranteed
receipts and non-guaranteed receipts,
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

and also to

Determination of fair value of contract revenue
in respect of the construction services rendered
Revenue from the construction of kitchen waste
treatment plants under the terms of a BOT contract is
estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to a
prevailing market rate of profit margin at the date of
the agreement applicable to similar construction services
rendered in a similar location, and is recognised on the
percentage-of-completion method,
reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to
the estimated total cost of the relevant contract.

measured by

5.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Determination of fair value of contract revenue
in respect of the construction services rendered
(continued)

The construction margin is determined based on the
gross profit margins of market comparables by
identifying relevant peer groups, which are listed on
various stock exchanges. Criteria for selection include:

(i) the peer firm must be in the field of the
construction of infrastructure, majoring in kitchen
waste treatment facilities in the PRC; and

(ii) information of the peer firm must be available and
from a reliable source.

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in provision of
services, or from a change in the market demand for
the product or service output of the assets, the
expected usage of the assets, the expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the assets,
legal or similar limits on the use of the assets and
Adjustment of depreciation/
amortisation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or

historical experience.
the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets are different
Useful
values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least

from previous estimation. lives and residual
at the end of each reporting period, based on any

changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management

recoverable. An

must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For

management purposes,

the Group is organised into

business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

Construction work segment engages in the provision of
foundation works, civil engineering works and general
building works in Hong Kong;

Sales of construction materials segment engages in the
trading of construction materials in Hong Kong, of
which the revenue from such operation is insignificant
during the year ended 31 March 2020;

Environmental protection segment engages in the
construction and operation of kitchen waste treatment
plants in the PRC and the engineering, procurement
and construction of kitchen waste and water treatment
business in the PRC; and

Industrial fluids system services segment engages in the
provision of industrial fluid system services in Nordic
area.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, fair value gains from the
Group’s financial instruments as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets mainly exclude cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude certain of other payables, bonds,
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at
the then prevailing market prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

Construction

6. WESWAR (&

#H F2020F3A31H L EFEE

Environmental

Industrial fluids

works protection system services Total
I%5E
BEIR R&R R BR TS @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Disaggregated by timing of RN BRERFD :
revenue recognition:
Point in time B 5 — 96,786 188,552 285,338
Over time e 5 fE 535,032 - - 535,032
Revenue from other sources H b FORKA — 16,798 — 16,798
Revenue and sales to external  FSNEREELH
customers WARHERE 535,032 113,584 188,552 837,168
Reconciliation: HhE -
Segment results D EE (13,661) (100,724) (166,938) (281,323)
Reconciliation: Bk
Interest income FEWA 504
Corporate and unallocated RARRDBEKAR
income and gains & 2,449
Corporate and unallocated ARRKRDERX
expenses (13,886)
Finance costs BB A (46,803)
Loss before tax BRI B 1R (339,059)
Segment assets SREE 278,273 822,698 171,312 1,272,283
Reconciliation: #HhE -
Corporate and unallocated assets 2 & & & 7 Bt & & 29,817

Total assets

AERE

1,302,100
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HLEIBEHR (&
(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3A31H LEE
Sales of Industrial
Construction  construction Environmental  fluids system
works materials protection services Total
Ik
BEIR EniE RiR RIERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TEL TEL TR
Segment liabilities HiEE 429,696 - 454,068 151,586 1,035,350
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and unallocated liabilities  RAFRIRAAEEE 112,525
Total liabilities BEATE 1,147,875
Other segment information: Hippipest:
Depreciation ik 27,499 - 6,248 10,725 44,472
Amortisation of operating concessions 4% & K FF i & § - - 16,430 - 16,430
Amortisation of other intangible assets Eft 7/ & & # 35 - - - 11,804 11,804
ECL on financial and contract assets &R REANEER
BHEERS 1319 - 36,608 (13) 37,914
Impairment of property, plant and %1% &R
equipment R E - - - 678 678
Impairment of goodwil BERE - - 1,304 138,594 139,898
Impairment of operating concession 48 &5 FF R B - - 52,399 - 52,399
Impairment of other intangible assets {1 & & & i & - - - 771 777
Gain in connection with potential ~ BEEIEERE
acquisitions in Indonesia e Bk 2 - - (29,349) - (29,349)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. FEZETEWERE(E)
(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2019 B E2019%F3A31HILEE
Sales of Industrial
Construction construction  Environmental  fluids system
works materials protection services Total
IZiE
BETR BMHE &R ZH k% &5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TETL TAT TAT TAT
Disaggregated by timing of revenue  ZRABREBHFS
recognition:
Point in time BEH = 58,406 84,194 156,106 298,706
Over time KE B 706,442 - — — 706,442
Revenue from other sources LR ON - - 16,581 — 16,581
Sales to external customers RNBEFIEL
HER 706,442 58,406 100,775 156,106 1,021,729
Intersegment sales APHMEER = 86,628 = = 86,628
706,442 145,034 100,775 156,106 1,108,357
Reconciliation: H
Elimination of intersegment sales HENBEEESE (86,628)
Revenue KA 1,021,729
Segment results PEE 9,705 1,031 (41,949) (3,721) (34,934)
Reconciliation: #k
Interest income MEKA 262
Fair value loss on derivative financial #7442 &I AATF(E
instruments B (10,357)
Corporate and unallocated income A A kA S EMAR
and gains e 4241
Corporate and unallocated expenses A E kA BHZ (12,010)
Finance costs HBHRA (62,375)
Loss before tax BRAES (115,173)
Segment assets PPEE 399,236 8,718 1,011,657 358,672 1,778,283
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and unallocated assets ~ AARADREE 38,745
Total assets AELAE 1817,028
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HLEIBEHR (&
(continued)
Sales of Industrial
Construction construction  Environmental  fluids system
works materials protection services Total
Ixhe
BEIR BHEE RiR ZHRE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT  TAT TR TER  TAR

Segment liabilities NBEMRE 674,600 250 356,931 164,219 1,196,000
Reconciliation: ik

Corporate and unallocated liabilities A FRIRAAEEE 138,619
Total liabilities RELH 1,334,619
Other segment information: Ry R s

Depreciation & 30,471 — 2,552 10,138 43161
Amortisation of operating concessions 4% % 45 & 1 % 3 — — 12,939 — 12,939
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ ft £ 7/ & & # 35 — = 559 10,442 11,001

ECL on financial and contract assets £ B R A KB EH)
BHEEHE 7,680 - (85) 256 7,851
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TENBEHE(Z
(continued)
Geographical information 1 38 & 4
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEIEBEFERIA
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Hong Kong e 535,032 764,848
Mainland China A b 113,584 98,588
Sweden I B 188,552 156,106
Other countries/regions HMER @ — 2,187
837,168 1,021,729
The revenue information above is based on the LR ABHANEFMNE AR
locations of the customers. T o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FFEEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Hong Kong B 119,454 145,091
Mainland China AR E A 300,112 390,426
Sweden T £ 96,945 241,632
Other countries/regions HABR = — 25,796
516,511 802,945
The non-current asset information above is based on the L RBEEE R ABEEN
locations of the assets and excludes financial assets. ELER THEHESREE-
Information about major customers TEEF&EH
Included in revenue from external customers represented sales REIFEFPHWAFBER—BE
to a customer amounting to approximately HK$83,764,000 F 1E I 8 $5 & %8 #83,764,000/% JT
(2019: HK$124,493,000) contributed over 10% to the total (20194F : 124,493,000/ 7T) ' A&

revenue of the Group. B R AERI0% °
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7. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 7.

WA~ H AU R W

NET R ER
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as WA Efb g A RBEFEH DN
follows: N
2019
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue from contracts REEFRSHMIEA
with customers
Construction works BETRE 535,032 706,442
Sales of construction materials EMEE — 58,406
Environmental protection RIR
— operational income — &EERA 96,786 84,194
Industrial fluids system services ITERERGRE 188,552 156,106
Subtotal NEE 820,370 1,005,148
Revenue from other sources Hfth SR UL A
Environmental protection RIR
— Financial income — BBKA 16,798 16,581
837,168 1,021,729
Timing of revenue recognition Wi \ B 5% B [
Goods or services transferred at RE—BHERDY
a point in time & sk AR 7% 285,338 298,706
Service transferred over time BiE I ] 48 5 Y AR 75 535,032 706,442
820,370 1,005,148
Other income H it hr A
Bank interest income AT A B A 504 262
Gain on disposal of equity interest & B IR R =
in Stand Ascent 29,349 —
Financial guarantee service fee income B #ER RS E U A 2,633 2,704
Machinery rental income #e2 e WA 683 3,583
Rental income HE2 A 475 133
Government grants TR AT 4 B 4,038 10,331
Fair value change on financial assets FRBE@ERATE
at FVTPL AENSREEDN
ISR — 1,991
Other construction income Hab g A — 392
Sales of trial equipment HEABEE — 123
Release of deferred income B BUR IE WA 599 1,192
Insurance claim REER=E 1,421 =
Rebate from support of research and e & H R 8 R
development program (I 160 —
Others H 393 986
40,255 21,697
Gains, net W23 % 8
Gain on disposal of property, plant and H&E¥ % « #EK
equipment Bl & 3,578 1,335
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i TN s — 21,120
3,578 22,455
43,833 44,152
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 7. WA~ H A\ RS

NET (continued) B8 (E)
The following table provides information about trade TREREEREZFPEANE S E
receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from WHIE - GHEERGHEENER -

contracts with customers.

31 March
2019
20194
3H31H
HK$
& TT
Trade and retention receivables H 5 e WRIE & FE IR
(note 22) RE 2 (fF7E22) 191,412 249,791
Contract assets (note 21(a)) & & E (M FE21()) 7.283 48,501
Contract liabilities (note 21(b)) & & & (M FE21(0)) 4,854 3,247
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to BREEFEEANEEREHEERR
consideration for work completed but not billed at the MEEENREAHE T ITEERTK
reporting date on revenue related to the provisions of AREZRENTRERKIRRENERNE
infrastructure construction. The contract assets are transferred o B REERZERNK A EGER
to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This HREFRERFIBE UEBERAEE
usually occurs when the Group provides the invoice to the MEFRAEZEEREA -
customers.
The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance EHNEBEFZHEMEPKIMEMNK
consideration received from customers out of which fEH B - H 9+ 43,247,000% 7t (2019
approximately HK$3,247,000 (2019: HK$14,228,000) has been F : 14,228,000 ) A T ITRTEL
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020 due i B2 R A & £2020963A318 IEF
to completion of some works. ErHA -
As at 31 March 2020, the aggregated amount of the R202063A318 » pEEEAEERE
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance EHETHBRBANRTNRFERE
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is B #) /5629,397,000%8 JT (20194 :
approximately HK$629,397,000 (2019: HK$389,498,000). This 389,498,000 7T) c Z & ¥ IE H & &
amount represents revenue expected to be recognised in the s T INRARESARER
future from partially-completed long-term construction BN o R B G T2 78 TR iR
contracts. The Group will recognise the expected revenue in RRFBEAWA - FEET TR GRRK12
future when or as the work is completed, which is expected Z36AANTI °

to occur in the next 12 to 36 months.
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8.

200

e ¥ gt ¥ — |
LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. K¥imiksE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEBEOBRBATE B DR (GE
(crediting): A)TFIE B BEZES:
2019
Notes HK$'000
k=2 T T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAD 33,433 63,915
Cost of construction works EETIRR A 482,743 662,288
Cost of engineering, RETE  HEREE
procurement and construction AR 7 A A
services rendered 32,952 18,922
Cost of kitchen waste e (it B BT hy IR AR 1B R S
treatment services rendered X . 52,506 40,380
Cost of industrial fluids system T 278 Z G A 50,820 30,354
Auditor’s remuneration % 8RN B 2 2,200 2,500
Depreciation £ 14
— Owned property, plantand — BEE%% * ®EZ X
equipment B 39,850 43,161
— Right-of-use-assets included — & A %18 B #)
within (note) i FA R A B (P 5E)
— Office premises — WREYE 4,114 —
— motor vehicles — 7= 508 —
Amortisation of operating 4 R T R B
concessions 16 16,430 12,939
Amortisation of other intangible = th £ 2 & & #
assets 17 11,804 11,001
Fair value loss/(gain) on FAEnRATETSE
financial assets at FVTPL MNemMEENATE
BB () 19 9,928 (1,991)
Minimum lease payments under & &HE FTHREEE
operating leases e — 7,848
Foreign exchange differences,  §IME = %8 % 58
net 511 10,527
Employee benefit expense EBEBARA (TERE
(excluding directors’ EEEHM (FTE10)):
remuneration (note 10)):
Wages, salaries, bonuses, T& %% fE4
allowances and benefits in B R B Y 5
kind 163,728 163,343
Equity-settled share option AR EE
expense i AR 1 A 2 5,048 6,904
Pension scheme contributions & K & 5t & 4 3
(defined contribution (R E HREED
schemes) 12,607 33,012
Other expenses, net HibF X% 181,383 203,259
Impairment of property, plant  #13% - # 23 & 3%
and equipment* BB * 14 678 —
Impairment of goodwill* 2R R E 15 139,898 —
Impairment of operating KRR RER A
concessions* 16 52,399 _
Impairment of other intangible 4 #& 2 & & R (E *
assets* 777 —
Fair value change on derivative #T4£ & @ T EM R F(E
financial instruments* i g * — 10,302
Legal and professional fee for REEBM AR R HE
resumption at trading* B — 9,370
193,752 19,672




8.

9.
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LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets which were
previously included in property, plant and equipment is also
identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-
of-use assets at 1 April 2019, the group as lessee is required to
recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
this approach, the comparative information has not been restated.
See note 2(a).

8. MPimiEE(£E)

M E

AEBERARATEEINBEARS
B IS w5 2E R B 1655 - W FHEE2019F4
A1B®F R E AR A B e AR R
EESEANBIIROEACERE
MEENFEREEE - LAt AY
¥ BELRIEOIRERELENDS
WEFEESE TSR AEREEE -
R2019F4 1B A ERFERAEEE
% ESEBWEARBEA)ABERERE
BEMFE: MIEDWAENREREA
HUERZBABBEEHEEEN
HAEHX - RBUAE  AEENES
LB E R - B2 2 °

* These balances are included in other expenses, net in the 3 ZERERTT AREBER AN E Mt FH
consolidated statement of profit or loss. O
FINANCE COSTS 9. MBRE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: B AR AT
2019
HK$'000
FET
Interest on amount due to a related &t — & B EE A 7
company RIEH T B 7,702 10,642
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and $RITEH B X R
other loans HiERHF L8 28,436 28,414
Interest on convertible bond Al R & H B F) B — 16,183
Interest element of lease liabilities HEBBENFERD 1,038 —
Interest on finance leases REAENF B — 362
Interest on bond EH K F B 1,661 1,805
Interest on other payables E A FE 5 FRIE A 2 7,966 4,969
46,803 62,375
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EE FHM

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

REEEHEXIMERAAESL
AR B & A AR F383(1))
©)  OROBEARETERR(REE
EMEERROIE2HBEENFAE
EHMMT

2019

HK$'000

FET

Fees B 2,476 1,540

Other emoluments: EME <

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and e JEA ERL R

benefits in kind WA = 3,598 4,133
Equity-settled share option expense VA RE 55 45 & & i Pk 4

i 1,425 2,713

Pension scheme contributions RIRE FT 8 54 99

5,077 6,945

7,553 8,485

During the previous year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the
share option scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the prior year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EE N (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHTEESE

Equity-settled

share option Total
Fees expense remuneration
DHEREHEN
we AR HERR X FibNaEE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET FHET
2020
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, EREAKLE

Raymond, MH, JP KEHE K FHL 345 — 345
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian 7 & 8 5% 4 345 — 345
Dr. Tong Ka Lok e 345 — 345

1,035 — 1,035
2019
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, BEATE -

Raymond, MH, JP KEBHE K FHL 240 151 391
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian 7 (& % 4 240 151 391
Dr. Tong Ka Lok = . 240 151 391

720 453 1,173
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRAWEENB LIFNTES
independent non-executive directors during the year B E A B & (20194F : £8) o

(2019: Nil).
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

10.

Salaries,
bonuses,

allowances
and benefits

Fees

in kind

e el

g
HK$'000
TER

2R
Bh#a
HKS$'000
FEL

EEHMNE
(b) BAEFREAGTES

Equity-settled Pension
share option scheme Total
expense contributions remuneration

D E Bk
BEEAX  HEH#X  HHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FiEL FigL Fign

2020

Executive directors; ~ H{TE S :

Mr. Zhu Yongjun REERE — 1,800 — 18 1,818
Ms. Qin Shulan E37Y 621 56 475 — 1,152
Mr. Cai Jianwen BERXEE 700 542 475 18 1,735
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun ZHe L AL
Nicholas — 1,200 475 18 1,693
Non-executive EHITES:
director:
Dr. Zhang Lihui RyUBEL 120 - — — 120
1,441 3,598 1,425 54 6,518
2019
Executive directors:  HTE S :
Mr. Zhu Yongjun REBEEAE — 1,800 151 18 1,969
Ms. Qin Shulan £ Y — 681 703 45 1,429
Mr. Cai Jianwen BEXEE 700 527 703 18 1,948
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun THELE
Nicholas — 1,125 703 18 1,846
Non-executive FHTES:
director:
Dr. Zhang Lihui RYBEL 120 — — — 120
820 4,133 2,260 99 7,312

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019:
Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or a chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2019: Nil).

FA AEETBENRENESH
B - fF R 00 A A SR SR 0 B 1 A 8B
Tk R RER M B (2019 « &) -

FA BETANBEHESIZ=IK
ABREXRERETMHFIMOLHE
(20194 : ) -
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. AR HES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two FRN AUGE=aHFEERBREMRNE
(2019: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set (2019%F : U R)EF - B E K FH B
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year BERLEXHFIOO- FRNEHB=F
of the remaining three (2019: one) highest paid employees (2019%F : — &) BEIEAR R RIEEINIE
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the EETBABNES FE SN M
Company are as follows: BT ¢
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and e fBA - FMK
benefits in kind B = 3,905 470
Equity-settled share option expense N EE M ERER — 829
Pension scheme contributions (defined iRk & &t 2| it 7%
contribution schemes) (REHZKETED 54 59
3,959 1,358
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FMN T A TARNNEEEIERSTT
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BRAEESFHEENAZKDT

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L=
1,500,000% 7T 3 1
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11.

12.

206

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no share options were
granted to the non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the prior year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

12.

LEmEHES (&

RELZE20205F3 8318 IHF[E - B3
EEFETBRAEBREHEERE
MASEBERENRBERBRE &
— SR B ER AN B T R R M 34 Y
WEFE ZFERENATEDIR
RHEBHET BERBRZRARE
RomE—FEHBRERMISED
AN EFEFRIESITHRAERS
T RERETGMEEERS -

FiRBiikR

REBRRANTESRIE

2019
HK$'000
FAT
Current — Hong Kong BNEf — &F
Charge for the year FAZH — —
Overprovision in prior years EFBREEME — (1,831)
Current — PRC BNER — &
Charge for the year FAXH — =
Overprovision in prior years TEHEBEREE — (234)
Current — Overseas BV ER — Bk
Charge for the year FAZH — 956
Underprovision in prior year TERETR 1,870 —
Deferred tax (note 32) i E B 78 (f 7532) (28,475) (14,766)
Total tax credit for the year FATHIEE B L5 (26,605) (15,875)
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The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$(295,679,000) (2019: HK$92,663,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
572,900,134 (2019: 565,661,770) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
2019 is the same as the basic loss per share as the impact of
the outstanding share options (2019: share options and
convertible notes) of the Company, where applicable, had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12. FRBBIIER (&
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax KRABBEEMETERBRAIEE
at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate to the tax credit at the BRAMBERRERRNEETRD X
Group's effective tax rate is as follows: AENNIBEEENERAT
2019
HK$'000
FAT
Loss before tax Bk 257 il 5 48 (339,059) (115,173)
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate %% /% E Fi £16.5%
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (20194F : 16.5% )
FEMEIR (55,945) (19,004)
Different tax rates enacted by specific 7 FE B K/ &A#E R %
countries/jurisdictions or local 5 MR B AR
authorities i & (9,187) (2,622)
Income not subject to tax 1578 2 B B9 I A (8,274) (7,036)
Expenses not deductible for tax IRk Aol 42,880 20,261
Tax losses utilised from previous PRBAEBHENRS
periods [ (11) (4,384)
Tax losses not recognised RERB T EE 2,200 6,775
Underprovision in prior year TEBREBEIR 1,870 —
Others Hity (138) (9,865)
Tax credit at the Group's effective tax EAEEEFRH X
rate SAEMBIRE R (26,605) (15,875)
13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. RBRAAT#ELE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY RAEANEBREE

BREANBEBSEIENREBNA AR
TRERAEANTERNEIA
(295,679,000)% 7T (20194 : 92,663,000
PETT) RE N B BT E @A N T 8
572,900,134% (20194 : 565,661,7708%)

g
C

AR AR AR ARTT BB ARHE (20194 -
BRERATRRER) (NER) HEHE
2020%F &2019F3A31H L FERNEFRK
EXABEARBEZE  WEZE2020
FN2019F3A31B L FENESRES
BIEEGREAREIEBER -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y  HRERFDE

Furniture,

fixtures and
Office  Plant and office Motor Land and
premises  machinery equipment  vehicles  building

RH
MAx RER TR
hE HRERKE BLEZRE RE ’¥ st
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Fign FiERL Tign &R  TERX & FiER

31 March 2020 202043A31H

At 31 March 2019 and at #201943A318 &

1 April 2019: R201954 818 :
Cost A — 350,561 14,274 22,544 1,194 388,573
Accumulated depreciation Z5tHE — (153,458) (6,012)  (11,275) (214)  (170,959)
Net carrying amount as FEFE
originally presented (MEREZ5) - 197,103 8,262 11,269 980 217,614
Initial application of NRERBE B
HKFRS 16 BEEBIE16% 12,196 - - - - 12,196
Restated net carrying REFE(EE5)
amount 12,19 197,103 8,262 11,269 980 229,810
At 1 April 2019, net of 1201964418
accumulated depreciation BB RN E 12,19 197,103 8,262 11,269 980 229,810
Additions WNE — 5,891 157 73 — 6,121
Disposals & - (1,578) (17) (884) - (2,479)
Depreciation provided during 4 ¥ & &
the year (4,114) (35,479) (3,241) (1,573) (65) (44,472
Impairment loss REEE (49) (569) — (40) (20) (678)
Exchange realignment i 5 38 % (323) (6,510) (146) 18 350 (6,611)

At 31 March 2020, net of R2020%3A318

accumulated depreciation EMBRAGHE 7,710 158,858 5,015 8,863 1,245 181,691
At 31 March 2020: 72020434318 :

Cost A 12,196 337,042 13,871 17,586 1441 382,136
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERRE

and impairment (4,486) (178,184) (8,856) (8,723) (196)  (200,445)

Net carrying amount REFE 7,710 158,858 5,015 8,863 1,245 181,691
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - HBRRB(E

(continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and office Motor Land and
machinery equipment vehicles building Total
R ffh
KEK
BERER BOERE FE THREF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TAET TR TAET
31 March 2019 2019%3A318
At 31 March 2018 and at R2018%F3A318 &

1 April 2018: 1201854418 :

Cost R 274,596 11,851 10,517 — 296,964

Accumulated depreciation 2 E (100,193) (4,705) (5,110) — (110,008)

Net carrying amount REFE 174,403 7,146 5,407 — 186,956
At 1 April 2018, net of R2018F4 818 -

accumulated depreciation EMBRRTHE 174,403 7,146 5,407 — 186,956
Additions RE 23,266 5,419 4,232 — 32,917
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BE B /B 8 ) (P 7238)

(note 38) 52,690 39 4,155 1,108 57,992
Disposals HE (10,676) — — — (10,676)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) & Hi B2 7] (M #39) (3,555) (1,322) (93) — (4,970)
Depreciation provided during FRHERE

the year (38,232) (2,743) (2,108) (78) (43,161)
Exchange realignment RS (793) (277) (324) (50) (1,444)
At 31 March 2019, net of M2019F3A318 -

accumulated depreciation EMkRESHE 197,103 8,262 11,269 980 217,614
At 31 March 2019: 7A2019%3A318 :

Cost A 350,561 14,274 22,544 1,194 388,573

Accumulated depreciation 2 E (153,458) (6,012) (11,275) (14) (170,959

Net carrying amount REFE 197,103 8,262 11,269 980 217,614

Note: B &

An impairment loss of approximately HK$678,000 was recognised on
property, plant and equipment due to Vimab ceased to be the subsidiary
on early April 2020. See Note 15 for the detail.

I AVimabR2020F4 A W1 T~ B AN B A &l -
MR E KERIEEIABREBEED
678,000/ JT ° #F1& R MI7E15 ©
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% M RERE(E
(continued)
Right-of-use assets included in the Group’s property, FEAEEEMYIE BB RRED
plant and equipment EREEE
Office premises Motor vehicles
WAEME RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Recognised at 1 April 2019 upon the M2019F4R1HEA BB
application of HKFRS 16 5 S RSB 165E B
’R 12,196 4,062
Depreciation e (4,114) (508)
Impairment loss VEREL SR (49) =
Exchange realignment b 5 & (323) —
At 31 March 2020 M20203A31H 7,710 3,554
As at 31 March 2020, the net carrying amount of the 202038318 » AEERREME
Group’s motor vehicles includes an amount of HK$3,554,000 [H % 88 B 353,554,000 T Ay £ A iE &
of right-of-use asset, of which the ownership would be E - BT R A M B A R AR
transferred to the Group by the end of the lease term with REEBEAEH -

minimal consideration.

15. GOODWILL 15. HE

HK$'000
FAT
Cost at 1 April 2018 #20184F4 A1 H MK 2 27,216
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U B BT 28 A &) (B9 5E38) 149,657
Exchange realignment PE 5, 38 & (7,175)
At 31 March 2019 7201943 H31H 169,698
Impairment during the year FARE (139,898)
Exchange realignment e X, 5 & (7,.237)
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H 22,563

At 31 March 2019: 7201943 A318 :
Cost DN 276,222
Accumulated impairment RETRE (106,524)
Net carrying amount AR R 169,698

At 31 March 2020: 7202043 A318 :
Cost (BN 268,985
Accumulated impairment ZERE (246,422)
Net carrying amount BREF 58 22,563
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GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (CGUs) for impairment
testing:

° Taiyuan Tianrun cash-generating unit (“Taiyuan Tianrun
CGU");

o Hefei Feifan cash-generating unit (“Hefei Feifan CGU")*;

o The Vimab Group cash-generating unit (“Vimab CGU")®

“ Goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2020.

@ Newly acquired during the year ended 31 March 2019 and goodwill was
fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2020.

15. W& (&)
7 i A
FREBEAHKENEENARET
SIS ELBEMAETRENR :

o RKRRXBREELENM

. BREFARSELER:

e VimabK B R & E £ ¥ fu
(TvimabBR & ELEfI])e

AEBREE202063A31B LEEEHK
A

© REZE2019F3A318 (L FEE W -
MEBRE 20206308318 LEES
R A °
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15.

212

GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

Taiyuan Tianrun CGU

5. & (£)

STRESREELEENMEENERMA
SEELT ¢

Hefei Feifan CGU Vimab CGU (note)

BIEER Vimab
HeELE( ReELEN HeEEEM (M)
2019 2019 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TR THIL
Carrying amount of goodwil AENEHER 22,563 24,034 - 1,389 — 144275

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
above CGUs for 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill.

The cash flow projections for the year ended 31 March 2019
were based on financial budgets covering a period approved
by senior management as follows:
Vimab CGU 5 years
The number of years used for Taiyuan Tianrun CGU and Hefei

Feifan CGU are based on its respective BOT contract period,
details of which are set out in note 16.

LR EEFMA A I E S E IR
BREREBFENAEBBEEEE

.
TE °

T8 Ll IR S &= A B 2020563 A
318 X&2019F3A31B W £ A & &
B AEBEHEBAZEBRSE - TXHE
iE IR JE R 1T R R R B R B T AR B
MBESRERAMKENSEEER

HE2019F3A31B L FENR &R
SBA T RER S R EE B RTit &E %
ETHHENGTSEEE RS

VimabIR & & & B AL 54
AARRERECELESBLRERIER

ReELBENERNFHEUNEAN
BOTE MM AER - HIFHNHMI&E16 -
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The cash flow projections beyond the 5 years periods are
extrapolated using a growth rate as follows:

15.

mE(F)
AEMEORSRETEAN KA TS
HEEHY

2019

Taiyuan Tianrun CGU ARRBEREESEESBN —% —%

Hefei Feifan CGU SEFNBEEEESN —% —%

Vimab CGU (note) VimabIi & &= £ &L N/A 1.8%
(B 5E) ~iEHR

Zero growth was assumed for Taiyuan Tianrun CGU, Hefei
Feifan CGU and Shenzhen Xinbao CGU based on utilisation of
maximum Kitchen Waste processing capacity.

The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections are as
follows:

REBER R AL B EIEENE
AE BRARXEREELEM -
BREFENBRSELESMIORIFER
CEEBUREREK -

HRARESREFRMREMT

2019

Taiyuan Tianrun CGU ARRBReEEEMQ 13.3% 13.4%

Hefei Feifan CGU GIEENBESEELENM 11.6% 12.7%

Vimab CGU (note) VimabiR & E 4 By N/A 16.9%
(B 5E) ~iEH

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risk
relating to the relevant units.

During the vyear, full impairment loss was recognised on
goodwill as the recoverable amount of Hefei CGU were
determined to be lower than their carrying amount. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,304,000 was
recognised on goodwill. See Note 16 for the detail.

FrABEIR R SBATA R - B REREAR
MEMCAENEERR -

FAN BHREEEALREEESEMD
ARE€ERETAENREEDSE -
HMERBEERRAZEREEBRE -BE
REEREEIEA A1,304,0007 7T °
EAEE A
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GOODWILL (continued)

Note:

Vimab Holding AB (”“Vimab”) had an outstanding borrowing of
SEK131,000,000 (approximately HK$101,509,000) from a creditor (the
“Fund”) which should be repaid on a one-off manner on 16 April 2021.
Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Fund can terminate the loan
agreement and demand immediate full repayment of the loan if any of the
following events occurs:

(i) Vimab is in delay with payment of interest or other payment for more
than two weeks;

(i) any pledge/collateral pledged for the Loan is significantly
deteriorated, and after 30 days from the notification by the Fund,
the Fund does not consider that an acceptable explanation and plan
of action have been corrected or presented by Vimab;

(iii) it is clear that Vimab will not be able to pay the remainder of the
entire loan together with interest and default interest; and/or

(iv) any of the terms of the loan agreement have not been complied
with, and after 30 days from the notification by the Fund, the Fund
considers the matter has not been remedied.

As security to the loan, Vimab pledged all the issued shares in each of
Vimab and its subsidiaries to the Fund (“Pledged Shares”). Pursuant to such
loan agreement, if Vimab fails to fulfill its obligations thereunder and being
alerted of the same, the Fund is entitled, without prior notice to Vimab, to
enforce the pledge and sell the Pledged Shares in the manner and under
the terms that the Fund deems appropriate and which are most
economically efficient to cover its costs and outstanding indebtedness
under the loan agreement.

Throughout the period from the commencement of the loan agreement up
to 31 March 2020, Vimab has complied with its obligation to pay the
interest according to the terms of the loan agreement. Nevertheless, the
Fund expressed concern on the liquidity of Vimab in late March 2020 and
requested the Company to finance Vimab within a short period of time.
Despite the Company attempted to negotiate with the Fund to resolve the
aforesaid concerns and sought for extension of time, the Fund served a
termination notice of the loan agreement to Vimab and demanded for
immediate full repayment of the outstanding indebtedness thereunder on
3 April 2020. On 7 April 2020, the Company was notified by Vimab that
the Fund informed Vimab that the Fund requested to transfer the Pledged
Shares to a company designated by the Fund and Vimab updated its
register of shareholder pursuant to the Fund’s request on 9 April 2020.

As such, the outstanding borrowing of SEK131,000,000 (approximately
HK$101,509,000) from the Fund was classified as current secured other
borrowings (Note 29) as of 31 March 2020, and the event also result in
the impairment recognised for goodwill, intangible assets (Note 17) and
property, plant and equipment (Note 14) related to Vimab.

5. & (&

M E -

Vimab Holding AB ([ Vimab |) 5 —£# Kk — 4%
BEREA(ZES]) HREREE131,000,000
I #8255 BA (#49101,509,000/8 7T) © 2 £ & &
MR2021F48160 — X BEE - REEX®
o WBEEUTERNSEN  ZESAKRIEER
M WERAE2HEEZER

(i) Vimab #8 /& F| B, 3 E th 5B A 5B B R
B2 8

(ii) HRRERG RO EMER R R
&2 B B % E D &R F30K
& ZE SR RVimablt & E k2 H
AR AR AR R TT B AT &

@iy VimabFR AN X Z E R B E LR
BERMNERERFE &%

(iv) EXBENETEIERRBES AR
FZETEEBEAIORR ZEERA
R FEAREALE -

ERZERNER  VimabERMZESERH
B HVimab & K B R R A 2 8 E B TR
(TEREM ) - REZE R fHVimabR
REETERATHEEEREISE  BIZAE
SHEREET ELBAVIMabWIERT - BT
ZEERRBEE RARELEREWEE K
e T T B AR R A E R E R 77 2R ER
MITER KRB EERERD -

R E X %% H A 22020938318 8 i
Vimab—ERBEERBZENEAEBTINEER
FEMEL AT ZELMN2020F38 T4
KNREVimabM R BN 1 - W B SR AR AR E
FEAAVImabEE - REARA R E M EZE
SHEEER ENMEE YFRERRRE @ &
H$ M2020F4 A3 R MVimabZ ) B 315 % &
KIPBE YEXRNBE2BEESE R BEE
THRMEEER - 202064878 - KA T
Vimab& Al - Z E & M EVimab * ZE S Bk
MEEAREEERRG - M MR2020F489
B VimabRIEZESHERFHAREER
ﬂﬂ o

F It - A202093A318 B RZESHKRE
i {8 B131,000,000% # 7% 85 (49101,509,000
B BARB B RBEMEE (M 529)
bR VB R EVimab AN EE B EE
(M 5E17) R 3 - 28 R R 1 (B k14) R
A °
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
The Group has entered into service concession arrangements
with certain governmental authorities in Mainland China on a
BOT basis in respect of the construction and operation of its
kitchen waste treatment business. These service concession
arrangements generally involve the Group as an operator in (i)
constructing kitchen waste treatment plants (the “Facilities”)
for those arrangement on a BOT basis; and (ii) operating and
maintaining the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability
on behalf of the relevant governmental authorities for periods
ranging from 25 to 30 years (2019: 25-30 years) (the “Service
Concession Periods”), and the Group will be paid for its
services over the relevant periods of the service concession
arrangements at prices stipulated through a pricing
mechanism. The Group is generally entitled to use all the
property, plant and equipment of the Facilities, however, the
relevant governmental authorities as grantors will retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the Facilities
at the end of the Service Concession Periods. Each of these
service concession arrangements is governed by a contract
and, where applicable, supplementary agreements entered into
between the Group and the relevant governmental authority
in Mainland China that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services
rendered by the Group, specific obligations imposed on the
Group to restore the Facilities to a specified level of
serviceability at the end of the Service Concession Periods,
and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.

16. R FtEH

AEBEERBRERCEER N RERE
¥ 15 LABOTH =\ B2 /R B (A #h & T BR AT
WRART L ZTERIGFETELHE - %5
RIS ELEE— S R AEEE
AEER  ()ABOTHER B S L HEE
EEENBREER([ZEXED: &
(i) 4% R $5 7€ AR %5 7K - X 28 48 B RS 4
B E REEZSRE  AH25%830
(20194 : 252304 ) ([ AR 75 45 7 1&
HR])  MAEEBRREISTER
HE 6 8 B BAR 1% 35 3 TE (B #5151 BF
BB S 5 EL AR A UK R FRIE - AN —
MERERZERENATE Y - #
23 MR tE AT MBI HERE1E B
BT A AR 75 45 5 HABR 45 R R
BERZEREEMARSERNER
EH SZERBEITELHEZIAE
B 2 B AR BT R R S A
WR(ER)MEREMRE &P
HHE(EPRIE)RNITEE  NEEM
RERBHOAEHD  AEBRRD
B EER AR AL SR EIRE
ZHRTERGKEMAENEEEE
LA R i 2 4l 43 9 22 3 o
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

A summary of the major terms of the principal service
concession arrangements is set out as follows:

Name of company

16. REFetE=H(2)

FTERBHFAELHENEIZERRAHE
HH AT ¢

Type of service

as operator Location Name of grantor concession arrangement  Service concession period
EBEEHY
AT & o Bh B¥ANEHE IRF ISR FR 75 45 2 #E A BR
Taiyuen Tianrun Taiyuen, Shaxin province, KR M AREE 4 BOT on kitchen waste 30 years from
the PRC B treatment 2013 to 2043
RKRXHE FEILFEE KRN ARTHAREFE & B A1 3% B2 32 §YBOT H12013%F #E 20434 |
BEIEF 304F
Loudi Fangsheng Loudi, Hunan province, — ZERTHH EEITH BOT on kitchen waste 30 years from
the PRC WER treatment 2017 to 2044
ERGE B A EET LR P EEITH & & 0y 3% B2 3B #9BOT 120174 8 220444 |E
WER 30
Hefei Feifan Hefei, Anhui province, ARTHTERER BOT on kitchen waste 25 years from
the PRC treatment 2013 to 2038
AR FEZRESED BETHTERER & BT A7 3% 52 32 HYBOT F120134F #€ £2038%F I
254
Hancheng Hancheng, Shanxi B TS EA BOT on kitchen waste 30 years from
province, the PRC & At treatment 2018 to 2047
B3 BIPR P & B T YT AL S A A & B0y 3% BE 3 H9BOT 20184 i £20474F IE
Bt &4t 304

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by
the Group, the Group are granted the rights to use the
property, plant and equipment of the Facilities and the related
land, which are generally registered under the names of the
relevant subsidiaries of the Group, during the Service
Concession Periods, but the Group is generally required to
surrender these assets to the grantors at a specified level of
serviceability at the end of the respective Service Concession
Periods.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s receivables under
services concession arrangements and operating concession of
HK$325,562,000 (2019: HK$331,057,000) and
HK$185,223,000 (2019: HK$256,491,000), respectively, were
pledged to the Group’s bank and other borrowings.

IRAB R & B 7T L0 AR 75 15 R AR 1 =
AEBEERRREFFFEHARAER
ZERMEV Y - HEs KR EIA R
Lt (—RAXEEBREKER A
MBRBRBEL) OERN  EARE—RA
A& AR TS5 7 7 AR 48 SRS 4R 45 7 IR
BRFEBZEEEXBETA -

AN £ [ 19 AR 75 45 B R 22 BE R IGEUE &
KEBRTEDNER S E D
325,562,0005 7T (20194F : 331,057,000
7 JT) &185,223,0007 7T (20194 :
256,491,000/ 7T) B B # T AN £ B MR
TREMEE -
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16. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS 16. IRFEESsFrERHE (&)

(continued)

As further explained in the accounting policy for “Service
concession arrangements” set out in note 4 to the financial
statements, the consideration paid by the Group for a service
concession arrangement is accounted for as an intangible
asset (operating concession) or a financial asset (receivable
under service concession arrangement) or a combination of
both, as appropriate. The following is the summarised
information of the intangible asset component (operating
concessions) and the financial asset component (receivables
under service concession arrangements) with respect to the
Group’s service concession arrangements:

AR AN B 75 R R B SR AR [ IR 7S 4 R
BZHE ST BORE — PR - R
SERRBFHAELFENNKEA
RINDENEE(REFTE) TR
BE (RIS AT < F BRI ) 3
EEAMER) - LT AREERE
HEL OB EEAKRBD (K
LRER) REREEAKB Y (R
TR B)MERBE

Operating Concessions EEYTATHE
2019
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April i Y=Rl= 346,244 356,704
Additions 17 3,895 17,493
Amortisation provided during FRNEERE
the year (16,430) (12,939)
Impairment loss R AE B 1B (52,399) =
Exchange realignment PE W& (20,838) (15,014)
At 31 March M3H31H 260,472 346,244
At 31 March: M3HA31H8 :
Cost B 7R 335,632 360,435
Accumulated impairment loss 2R EEE (50,821) =
Accumulated amortisation RET 8 (24,339) (14,191)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 260,472 346,244
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

Impairment assessment

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
operating concessions are allocated to the Hefei Feifan CGU,
representing an individual cash generating unit (“CGU"). The
recoverable amount of the Hefei Feifan CGU is determined
based on either fair value less costs of disposal or VIU
whichever is higher. The recoverable amount of the Hefei
Feifan CGU has been determined by VIU calculation based on
cash flow projections from formally approved budgets

and

covering a 19 years period, which is the remaining contractual
period of the BOT on kitchen waste treatment. Management
considered that the budgets should cover the remaining
contractual period of the BOT on kitchen waste treatment as
it reflects the production plan of this CGU.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of the assets
belonging to the Hefei Feifan CGU were amounting to
RMB116,367,000 while the recoverable amount of the Hefei
Feifan CGU, based on VIU calculation using cash flow
projections from formally approved budgets and capital
expenditure was RMB68,741,000, which was RMB47,626,000
less than the respective carrying amounts. As such, the
directors of the Company determined an impairment loss of
RMB1,191,000 (equivalent to HK$1,304,000) and
RMB46,435,000 (equivalent to HK$52,399,000), which were
allocated to goodwill (note 15) and operation concessions
respectively. Details of the key assumptions used in VIU are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

16.

RFHTHERHEE)

BB ST

RETRENS BEREESE
Do RERENREELEEM(—
BEBEIRTELEN) - RIEFELRE
EEBEMNAKESESAFERD
EXRAEFREEMETHNRSE -
BIEENRSELEFEUA A KE S
DREBERETEBRAAEREEFTE
EEE M ER K IEAR A AEMI9F
HA (BN 4 B 47 3% B2 BEBOTHI 82 T & A
H AR - ERERE  ARER
173 B IEBOTH 82 T A #) B R BR 1t 3R
CELBUMNEES HEFAR

CHA

R2020F3A31H  GEEANBEEE
ENETEENRESEAARKE
116,367,000 ' MEMEIENBEEE
BUREBERELCERNENTEERE
AESHWIRE nE B AEAEE
BEXABETNAKREBESEAARE
68,741,0007T * & 4H FE BR 1 € 58 K A
R #47,626,0007T - A it * & Q& #
EHEE R E BB AR191,0007T
(18 2 71,304,000/ 7T) & A R #
46,435,0007T (#H % #52,399,000/%
TT) DAl o BE =R B (M 5E15) k&
BT - FREEMABRBRRF
BER AR E M B RERM 15 -
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS  16. BR¥S45sFiE k(&)
(continued)
Receivables under service concession arrangements RIS EREERRIE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Receivables under service Pl 75 55 5T 4 %2 B FE SR IB
concession arrangements 346,864 352,184
Portion classified as current assets 43 %8 /& 7k 8 & & &9 28 5 (32,112) (33,188)
Non-current portion EREE D 314,752 318,996

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables

AR 75 s = 4 22 B IR W BORR B B B Y

under service concession arrangements are as follows: FEINT ¢
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
At beginning of year R EA) 1,974 1,478
Impairment losses, net VERIENTEi= D=t 497 496
Exchange realignment B 5, 3 B (136) —
At end of year RER 2,335 1,974
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SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

Receivables under service concession arrangements
(continued)

For receivable under service concession arrangements, the
Group applies the simplified approach in measuring ECL, that
is to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. The Group has applied loss-rate method for
calculating the ECL of receivables from service concession
arrangements. Under this method, impairment is calculated
using an estimated loss rate and multiplying it by the
outstanding balance at the end of the reporting period.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

16. RFFIHEFHERH(E)

BB 75 4% 5 HE R HE FE W RR 1A (42)

RIGFFATER R REMS - &
SEERBLLNTAFERREES
B TR REEHEREHEY
FEEERERAEEEL AKECDK
REBEERTAFERB A ELE

WRENTRREEER - RELT
o BETTRBEMRKAMGER
KRUREESEHTE -

TXHEIE A KBRS AT L 5

exposure on the Group’s receivable under service concession B RIBEE R R & H#
arrangements:
As at 31 March 2020 $22020%3H31H
Gross carrying amount MH 48 %8 (F &)
(HK$'000) 32,148 317,051 349,199
Expected credit losses BHEEBEEEE
allowance (HK$'000) (F#ExT) 36 2,299 2,335
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 0.11% 0.73%
As at 31 March 2019 $2019%3A31H
Loss rate Loss rate
— current  — Non-current
portion: portion HK Total
BiEE —
JE? BER — EmB I D
mEE D BB it
Gross carrying amount BREA%E(THT)
(HK$'000) 33,204 320,954 354,158
Expected credit losses BHEEEEEE
allowance (HK$'000) (FHT) 16 1,958 1,974
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEREX 0.05% 0.61%
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HhEBREE

Non-
compete
Patents Customer list Technologies  Trademark  Agreement Total
53 EFREE Bl iR FRFHE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL FTHL THT TR FTHL
31 March 2020 2020%3H31H
Cost at 1 April 2019, net of 20194418 )
accumulated amortisation A - Bk RET
B - 31,140 33,132 4,364 753 69,389
Amortisation provided during FREHREE
the year — (7,284) (4,177) (168) (175) (11,804)
Impairment loss REER - (320) (392) (57) ®) (777)
Exchange realignment EHAR - (2,185) (2,440) (346) (52) (5,023)
At 31 March 2020 72020434318 — 21,351 26,123 3,793 518 51,785
At 31 March 2020: #2020%3A318 :
Cost B AR - 34,313 33,733 4,142 830 73,018
Accumulated amortisation and BB RORE
impairment - (12,962) (7,610) (349) (312) (21,233)
Net carrying amount REEE — 21,351 26,123 3,793 518 51,785
31 March 2019 2019%3H31H
Cost at 1 April 2018, net of R2018E4B18 /)
accumulated amortisation B Bk 25
B 15,398 443 — — - 15,841
Addition NE 35 — — — — 35
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) 4 &t & 2 7] (¥ 5£38) — 39,139 38,466 4,724 946 83,275
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) & KB A Al (K #E39) (14,825) (415) — — — (15,240)
Amortisation provided during the — FR# B E
year (569) (6,437) (3,691) (149) (155) (11,001)
Exchange realignment ERAR (39) (1,590) (1,643) @11) (38) (3,521)
At 31 March 2019 #201943A31R — 31,140 33,132 4,364 753 69,389
At 31 March 2019: #201943A31A :
Cost A - 37,397 36,720 4,508 903 79,528
Accumulated amortisation and REBEHRORE
impairment — (6,257) (3,588) (144) (150) (10,139)
Net carrying amount REFE — 31,140 33,132 4,364 753 69,389
Note: W T

i RAVimabR2020F4 B 1T~ B B K B A 7 -
Ut EL i S A 2 T 5ROl (B 5 48 49777,0007%8
JC o 1B R M5 e

An impairment loss of approximately HK$777,000 was recognised on other
intangible assets due to Vimab ceasing to be the subsidiary on early April
2020. See Note 15 for the detail.
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18. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION ASSET/
CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

222

18. BANKEEE FEWNKE

2019
HK$'000
FBT
Contingent consideration asset FARBEE (HMisEa)

(note a) — 3,724
Consideration receivables (note b) &Y A (B (Fff5£b) 40,956 37,232
Impairment BB (23,349) =
Current portion it B H 17,607 37,232

Notes: Py -
(a) On 31 May 2018, the Group completed the Vimab Acquisition. (a) 72018458318 + A 5 [ 5 Ak Vimab

Further details of the Vimab Acquisition are included in note 38 to
the financial statements. Pursuant to the share purchase agreement,
the consideration for the Vimab Acquisition was to be satisfied as
to (i) approximately HK$23.0 million in cash; and (i) approximately
HK$147.5 million by way of the allotment and issue of 42,137,142
new Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of
HK$3.5 per Share. The Consideration Shares represented
approximately 7.36% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by them, and 19,488,428 new Shares out of the
Consideration Shares are subject to a lock-up period, which will be
released upon fulfilment of certain financial benchmarks by the
Vimab Group for the financial year ended (as the case may be) 31
December 2018 and 2019. Details of the release of lock-up
arrangement are as follows:

(i) 2018 financial year end

(a) if the audited 2018 EBITDA (under International
Financial Reporting Standards of Vimab as “2018
EBITDA"”) increases by not less than 10% as
compared with the audited 2017 EBITDA, 50% of
the locked shares be unlocked and released on the
15th business day after the issue of the audited
financial statements of the Vimab Group;

W FE = IE o B RIVimab B BIE M #E —
FFBHN AR B MK 38 - RIE
FE AR 1735 - Vimab i B8 IR (LB ()

#923,000,00078 7T AR £ )5 &

R (i)

147,500,000 7T LA 12 & IR A& 193.57%8 7T
BB 1T B AL 3% ] 8% 1742,137, 1428 3T AR
HIRERDDOHHFXEE - RER
MNHEEHRERARACRERR EX
MEBITRALNT36% @ mMRERH
719,488,428 F Ik D R B EH - 1§
MVimab%e B & =20184 K2019412
A3MB LV BEE(EBRME)HE
THBEZRERERR BREER
POFBOT :

(i) 2018 L EEFE 4 H

(a)

{20184 4% 25 #ZEBITDA
(1R #8 Vimab 9 B B Bf 75
& % B ”M20184F
EBITDA J) 820174 & 2
HZEBITDAEE & & 4 7
10% * BI50% % & % 5
#& Vimab& B K & =&
R R RE LB ES
EEEBEMRREE
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18. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION ASSET/
CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(i)

2018 financial year end (continued)

(b)

if the 2018 EBITDA divided by the 110% of the 2017
EBITDA falls on a range from 85.1% to 100%, it is
calculated as, on a pro rata basis, (2018 EBITDA/
(2017 EBITDA x 110%) — 85.1%)/(100% — 85.1%)
of 50% of the locked-up shares shall be unlocked
and released, and the sellers shall, within ten (10)
business days from the date when the 2018 EBITDA
is finalised, return to the Group the remaining
locked-up shares (or an amount equivalent to the
value at the issue price of such remaining locked-up
shares) in the following priority: (1) by cash in an
amount equivalent to the issue price of such
remaining locked-up shares; (2) if (1) is not available
and subject to the compliance of the relevant rules
and requirement by the Company, by returning such
remaining locked-up shares to the Company for
revocation and cancellation; or

if both (a) and (b) are not applicable, by returning
cash in an amount equivalent to the issue price of
such remaining locked-up shares or such remaining
locked-up shares to the Company for revocation and
cancellation.

18. BRNKEEE FEWNKE

(/”/én\%_
Bt : ()
(a) (%)

(i) 2018BA I SE LR (42)
(b) i$20184FEBITDARK: M
20174EEBITDAEI110%
A F85.1%%E100% °
Al 7Z50% 22 & I 1 /P 1%
(20184 EBITDA/ (2017
“EEBITDA x 110% )—
85.1%)/(100% —
85.1% ) &t & &Y tk I &
BREE MEHER
F20184FEBITDAE B &
Bz TO0)EZ %R
A LA 5B R B A
AEEREHTHEE
BHD(RZEHRTRE
BROBTENZTES
) (WRZEHTEE
BROBETEONSELE
AR & (M EEERS
(1) - BEESFARRE
% B &3 E AR R
T BBRARNRARRE
ZEH TSR LA
B Rk Bk

(9 fisj(a) B2 (b)35 A~ i@ 8 - Al
BBRNASREZETH
THEERNBETENS
ESBERBBRAARE
REZEHTEERD
VA S8 3H R s 8
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18. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION ASSET/
CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)

(i)

224

2019 financial year end

(a)

if the audited 2019 EBITDA (excluding revenue of
Vimab generated from any vendors and/or their
respective affiliate unless otherwise approved by the
board of the Purchaser, herein after referred to as
“2019 EBITDA") increases by 21% or more as
compared with the audited 2017 EBITDA, the
remaining 50% of the locked-up shares will be
unlocked and released on the 15th business day after
the issue of the audited financial statements of the
Vimab Group;

if the 2019 EBITDA divided by the 121% of the 2017
EBITDA falls on a range from 85.1% to 100%, it is
calculated as, on a pro rata basis, (the 2019 EBITDA/
(the 2017 EBITDA x 121%) — 85.1%)/(100% —
85.1%) of such 50% of the locked-up shares shall be
unlocked and released, and the Sellers shall, within
ten (10) business days from the date when the 2019
EBITDA is finalised, return to the Buyer the remaining
locked-up shares (or an amount equivalent to the
value at the issue price of such remaining locked-up
shares) in the following priority: (1) by cash in an
amount equivalent to the issue price of such
remaining locked-up shares; (2) if (1) is not available
and subject to the compliance of the relevant rules
and requirement by the Company, by returning such
remaining locked-up shares to the Company for
revocation and cancellation; or

18. BRNKEEE FEWNKE

(/”/én\%_
Bt : ()
(a) (%)

(i) 2019 iBIEEELEH
(a) 20194 4% 25 #ZEBITDA
(RIEBREFEZTE S
THE - TATBE
Vimab)R B £/ & 5 &
SREEEENHEA
AU A - AR X4 T8
[20194EBITDA ) &
20174 45 28 X EBITDA
£21%s A £ - BI&& T
50%% & IR 5 8§ R
Vimab s B &) 48 28 4% B
5 % L 18 F 158 &

X EERBEE

(b) 20194FEBITDARR 1A
20174EEBITDAE121%
N F85.1%ZE100% *
Bl 5%50% 2 & IR 17 1%
(20194 EBITDA/ (2017
fEEBITDA x 121% ) —
85.1%)/(100% —
85.1% ) 5t & &) Lt Il %
RERE &S ER
H120194EEBITDAE B &
Bz to)EL %R
A LA 51 OR HE R A
BEHRERTHRER
D(RZERTRER
MDETENEELE):
MIRZEHRTRERNG
BITENSESENUR
& QIR EEESRQ)
BfE#FARAREER
AIRBERRRBRT - &
BRAARARREZSH
T R AR &
FEHH ¢ 3k
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18. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION ASSET/
CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(i)

2019 financial year end (continued)

(0)

if both (a) and (b) are not applicable, by returning
cash in an amount equivalent to the issue price of
such remaining locked-up shares or such remaining
locked-up shares to the Company for revocation and
cancellation.

As at 31 May 2018, the acquisition date, the Group
has recognised a contingent consideration asset of
HK$8,717,000. As at 31 March 2019, the amount of
contingent consideration asset was decreased to
HK$3,724,000. For the year ended 31 March 2020,
the lock-up period was completed.

The audited 2018 EBITDA is yet to be available.
Based on best estimation with the available
information, the management assess the 2018
EBITDA would increase by more than 10% as
compared with audited 2017 EBITDA and fail to
meet the condition to return 50% of lock up share.

The 2019 EBITDA is approximately SEK14,956,000
which is less than the financial benchmark of
SEK35,352,000 as set out in the Share Purchase
Agreement. Accordingly, the parties to the Share
Purchase Agreement mutually agreed on such results
and not to perform a special audit as stipulated in
the Share Purchase Agreement.
recognised a consideration receivables of
approximately HK$3,724,000 for the year ended 31
March 2020. The sellers are in the process to return
the 2019 portion of Locked-Up Shares to the
Company for revocation and cancellation, and is yet

The Group has

to complete as at the date of this report.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair
value measurement of contingent consideration for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:

18??ﬁhéé/wﬁﬁﬁ

M (&)

(a) (%)
(i) 2019 BIERELEH (&)
(0 fidi(a) B(b)33 3@ AR - Rl
BBARSREZTHR
THEERMHBETENSE
ﬁ?%gjiﬁiﬁﬁzkﬂj
REZEHTEERD

LA 3088 T R 8K o

M2018F5A31H (Y 88
BH) AEEC R
SRR (B & EE8,717,000/8
e M201943A31
B iRREEESE
B3 2£3,724,0007 T °
» & F=202063A318
ILFE - BREHEE

20184F 45X 25 1ZEBITDA &
RENZ - IRIBIRB A5
B REH B R EME
& B E F F2018%F
EBITDAS 8220174 #& &
HZEBITDAE & #8 B
10% ' KR EKRE
50% 22 & IR 1 /9 15 14 o

20194FEBITDA%) 5
14,956,000% &t 5 BR -
RER TR SR
235,352,000 £2 72 BA
B E M BRI E
RIS HEHRESR
¥E AW ERERD
HEATETAET AR
R AKBEEREZE
202038318 It & &
" REKRKELD
3,724,000/ G ° B 7 IE
M AR AR E20194F 2B
2 HY 2R AR 15 DA 42 4R 8

R HERARER

# ZE201943H318 1k
R RARBATFE
HEMEATTBRER
ERABEDT :
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18. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION ASSET/ 18. RARKBEE TEWKE

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES (%)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) MaE - (&)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
(ii) 2019 financial year end (continued) (i) 2019 BMEEELEH(
(c) (continued) () (#&)
Discount rate 17% BB E17%

A significant increase/(decrease) in the profit of the
Vimab Group would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the contingent
consideration asset for the year ended 31 March
2019. A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount
rate would result in a significant (decrease)/increase
in the fair value of the contingent consideration
asset for the year ended 31 March 2019.

(b) On 14 December 2016, the Group completed the Clear Industry
Acquisition. As part of the sale and purchase agreement, the Group
is entitled to receive contingent consideration, which is based on
the amount of profit of the Clear Industry Group during the years
ended 31 March 2017, 2018 and 2019 (the “Guarantee Period”).

For the year ended 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2019, the Guaranteed Period was completed. Based
on the information available at that moment for the years ended
31 March 2017, 2018 and 2019 (excluding the profit attributable to
the business contracted by the other members of the Group with
the Clear Industry EPC Group), the profit guarantee in the Clear
Industry Acquisition could not be fulfilled. The Group has
recognised a consideration receivables of HK$37,232,000.

The special audit of the Clear Industry EPC Group as stipulated in
the Clear Industry Acquisition was completed during the year and
confused the performance guarantee was not met.

As at 31 March 2020, an impairment of HK$23,349,000 was
recognised on the consideration receivables, assuming that
HK$13,883,000 could be recovered from the realisation of
18,982,992 consideration shares returned by the vendor and offset
certain outstanding payables to the vendor.

226

#H Z201943A318 I+
£ E » Vimab& B % #
RIBE M CR D) 85
BARREBEENATF
BEXREE M CRD) o
#H E201943A318 It
FE B RKNE LT
(TR BERRAR
BEENRAFEKNE
CR ) /-

2016512148 + A % & 58 K Clear
IndustryliiE = IH - EREBEHHM —
B A% B A E KB E RClear
Industry5 B # £20174 - 20184 K&
20193 A31B L& E ([HERE ) /9%
MEBAEHRANRE -

B EF2019F3A31HILEE
M201943A31H  ERHEABR T4 - &
RE B A S E R B E2017F -
2018F K2019F3A318 IE F E K
Clear Industry 4 i 2= 78 & I 4R & (i BR
AEEHEMKE A A S # FClear
Industry EPCER B &) 3£ 75 F& {5 B9 % 7))
AEEXK - AEEBEHREKRNKE
37,232,000/ T °

Clear Industryl% 8 % 18 A 51| BClear
Industry EPCE B 8 R B B X E R F A
T RERBREMAREL -

M20206F3A31H - BREBEBRE IR
/18,982,992 K ERHD REHE T
A8 2 FE 5 B 75 78 P 4=l 13,883,000
BT - B HERIE WA (B E23,349,000
I ©
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18. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION ASSET/ 18. E‘Z’ﬁﬁf’éﬁ/ﬂgu&ﬁ{“
CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

/'/ ~

(continued)

Notes: (continued) B 5t : (48)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued) B E2019%F3A318 LLF & (4)
Movements in provision for impairment of contingent consideration FAREREBRFEEZHNOT :

are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
At beginning of year NG — =
Impairment loss recognised B iR E B 18 23,349 —
At end of year RE R 23,349 =
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. ERBESRAFETED
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET T T
Listed equity investment, at fair value EERARKRE
/NS I} 10,804 20,732
During the year ended 31 March 2020, loss amounted to REZE20206F3A318ILFE - GRAAK
approximately HK$9,928,000 in respect of Group's financial SEEBRESEATEFENERME
assets at fair value through profit or loss was recognised B M) 518 499,928,000/ T B A F A
during the year. R e
20. INVENTORIES 20. 5§
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FE T

Finished goods arising in environmental IR{R ¥ & TR
protection business and industrial RERGIEEN
fluids system services UK 40,612 39,366
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. EHEEREGWER
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (a) EHBEE

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

20205 20194

3A31H 3A31H

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHT T T

Related to construction contracts ERzE S84 4948 7,404 73,291
Impairment DERI=] (121) (24,790)

7,283 48,501
Contract assets represents the Group's right to receive BRNEERAEEGRE T IE
consideration for work completed but not yet billed WMAREEZMNITREKIRAE
because the rights are conditional upon the satisfaction B RE R - R A R AR B R R AF
by the customers on the construction work completed BEPHAEEMRTEXKELTR
by the Group and the work is pending for the RTIMBBRAAEE Mz
certification by the customers. The contract assets are BRIEFEPRA o &K
transferred to the trade receivables when the rights RERERBEREREERG
become unconditional, which is typically at the time the EPHAMTHKELETIRENRR
Group obtains the certification of the completed W) SHEEEREZS

construction work from the customers. FE U R IE o
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

Contract assets (continued)

The Group classifies these contract assets under current
assets because the Group expects to realise them in its
normal operating cycle.

The movements in provision for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

21. BHEEREHAREKE(E)

(a)

BHEE(E)
AEBEKZEANEELIEE
RBEERT DEAEERE

H146 7 B — MR AR R B PV B 3R
BHEE -

BREERERBNESNT

2019

HK$'000

T T

At beginning of year REA 24,790 19,817

Impairment losses AEEE — 4,973

Reversal of impairment losses B EUREEE (434) =
Write-off of impairment losses 8 R E & 18 (B 7))

(Note) (24,235) —

At end of year RER 121 24,790

Note: The Group has written-off a contract asset with a gross

carrying amount of approximately HK$24,235,000 which
resulted in a decrease in provision for impairment of
contract assets of approximately HK$24,235,000.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance of contract
assets at lifetime ECL. In view that contract assets have
substantially the same risk characteristic as the trade
debtors for the same types of contracts, the Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for the
trade debtors are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets. Credit-impaired contract
assets are assessed for ECL individually.

e AEEEHMEREEBAELNR
24,235,000 T A W& E -
BRANEEREBRBERLD
24,235,000/ 7T

7 o BB R BB B 7 s B
O B LT AR S BEEE
EERGBEANAENEAR
o ERRZANEERAS
A #1E 5 18 WOE BB A B
[ & b A8 A S TR Ut R
EE 5 R S T AR
HAWAERBERAD A
E-DHREERENSNE
EAEREREREEHRT
fi5 o
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. EHEERGSWER (&
LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Contract assets (continued) (a) EHBEE)
A summary of the Group’s exposure to credit risk for AEBHENEERAEAZINE
contract assets is as follows: ERBSmET
As at 31 March 2020 202034831
Not credit- Credit
impaired impaired
EEHE CSHREES
EERBE B{E
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 8R4 88 (4 7t) 7,404 — 7,404
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHA(E & 518
(F%7T) 121 — 121
Expected credit loss rate EHEEHEX 1.63% —
As at 31 March 2019 20193431
Not credit- Credit
impaired impaired Total
WHEHIE BHBEEE
EERE BB K
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) Bk E 42 88 (4 7T) 42,996 30,295 73,291
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHA{Z & 518
(F#7T) 555 24,235 24,790

Expected credit loss rate FHEEEBEX 1.29% 80%
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21 EHEEREGHER(E
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHE®R
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
20204 20194
3A31H 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Contract liabilities arising from: BT IE A E R
BHEE -
Construction works EETRE 2,871 3,247
Environmental protection RIR 1,983 —
4,854 3,247
Less: current portion R BN ER S (4,854) (3,247)
Non-current portion EREB D — =

HEWNABESHEBRTENA
BRI T

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:

Construction works
Where discrepancies arise between the progress

BEITE
EENREAEEY T TRE
Tz M —BHIREE A

payments and the Group’s assessment of the stage of

completion, contract liabilities can arise. AEAEGHNARE-
Environmental protection R IR
The Group receives deposits on sales of environmental 75 B 3t 8H B R AR R A WEUR

T ERRNBRERDAE K
liability until delivery of equipment. &

protection equipment, which remains as a contract
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

232

Contract liabilities (continued)

21. BHEEREHAREKE(E)

(b) &WEfRGE)

Movements in contract liabilities BHEEEE
HK$'000
FAT
Balance as at 1 April 2018 M2018F4 718 & 4 4 14,228
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of A4 AR R E T A
recognising revenue during the year that B A EE WA T E R
was included in the contract liabilities at the &% & &R L (H77)
beginning of the year (note 7) (14,228)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of — FE R i &k & &G &) F 46 51 18 5L
billing in advance of construction and WM B & DB &N
manufacturing activities 3,247
Balance as at 31 March 2019 and M2019F3A318 &
1 April 2019 2019F4 718 W 4 & 3,247
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of A4 AR R E T A
recognising revenue during the year that BB E WA T E R
was included in the contract liabilities at the &% & &R L (H77)
beginning of the year (note 7) (3,247)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R 2 & & )E B) 5 24 A 78 7€
billing in advance of construction and R mEBHEHNEEEM
manufacturing activities 2,871
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of — [& Bt 8 & & (R 5% & 78 5 W Z M
receipt in advance of sale of environmental  EEH A 4 & &1 1N
protection equipment 1,983
Balance at 31 March 2020 202043 A31H B 4 &4 4,854
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. ﬁgnsumrﬁmgu&

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FBT

Trade receivables & 5 W IR 167,177 196,722
Impairment RAE (25,136) (16,798)
142,041 179,924

Retention receivables EWRE S 52,282 70,780
Impairment RAE (2,911) (913)
49,371 69,867

191,412 249,791

Portion classified as current assets DEERBEENT D 171,679 215,801

Non-current portion EMB 19,733 33,990
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group generally allows a credit period of not exceeding
60 days to its customers. Interim applications for progress
payments on construction contracts are normally submitted on
a monthly basis and are normally settled within one month.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. The

22.

B 5 FE W SR IR & FE W
RER(E)

KB — BB RE S E T8 860
REVEEH - AHREL DT HE
O GE R $-0F 593 S )
P s B o 7 I 0 SR 9 R M I B
HIB MR RS R EH AR
RERE BREEERTHR M@
54505 o AR M B 8 KR

Group does not hold any collateral or other credit REWRE &R A ERERGK
enhancements over its trade and retention receivable EMmEERAM -BHEWRERE

balances. Trade and retention receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

Retention receivables held by customers arising from the
Group's construction work are settled within a period ranging
from one to two years after the completion of the
construction work, as stipulated in the construction contracts.

Retention receivables held by customers arising from the
Group’s sale of machineries business under environmental
protection segment are settled within one year after the
control of the asset transferred to the customer.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables (excluding retention

WREBERTEER -

EFARAREBEASENEETED
EWRE & HIRBESWMTARE
ETRTRE-—EMFREH -

EPMBARBEAEERED B T
BRHEEXEBHNRERWRES INEE
THRERETEFR—FAREH -

RBERARNE S RURFETERE

receivables) as at the end of the reporting period, based on FEUWARE &) BN 3= B H R 0Bk #&
the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows: BEORRTAT :

2019
HK$'000
FE T
Within 30 days 30K A 61,168 83,625
31 to 60 days 31260K 30,012 67,237
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 8,940 4,067
Over 90 days B 90K 41,921 24,995
142,041 179,924

The Group loss based on the

accounting policy stated in note 4(j)(ii).

recognised impairment

ARG AR AR P TEAG)() PR 51 B & AT BRUR
HRMERRE -
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. E5EWRIE & EW

(continued) REB&(E)
Movements in provision for impairment of trade and retention 2 S EWGIE R EBIRE @B EEE
receivables are as follows: WEHWT :
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET T T
At beginning of year REA] 17,711 15,330
Impairment losses, net BEEEFRE 10,157 2,596
Exchange realignment P& H % 179 (215)
At end of year RER 28,047 17,711
Ageing analysis of the trade and retention receivables that are WIMEREHERERSERENE S
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as FE MR TE I B WAR B & &Y BR B o5 AT 4R
follows: T 3
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Neither past due nor impaired NP £ 780 HA O R R B 107,542 211,484
1 to 30 days past due #1 #31 230K 30,012 6,838
31 to 90 days past due #1 #i31 290K 8,940 10,075
Over 90 days past due #0 H FE #8 90K 44,918 21,394

191,412 249,791




NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 3R M =

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 EWRIE R EW
(continued) REB=(E)
For trade receivables and retention receivables, the Group RESEKRRERERRBEEMS
applies simplified approach in measuring ECL,that is to AEBERBIEN A LT EEBMEE
recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each B8 - TR &3 E B KB 2
reporting date. The Group has applied the probability of HEEEERRABEBER -KXEEK
default based on that of counterparties with similar credit REENRBEANEFAMERANE
ratings, with adjustment to reflect current conditions and AR =E - WA B LR ™IS T AR
forecasts of future economic conditions through the use of B AR B AT AR R R R AR AR AR
financial market analysis. The calculation reflects the SURITERI o 5t 8 50 R BB E Nk 4
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and R EU¥EHEERNREEBARB
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the FEH - RN R RS MM
reporting date about past events, current conditions and MIERAAIRENEEREERIFE
forecasts of future economic conditions. B} o
ECLs estimated by grouping the receivables based on shared AEBRBERZIENEEEERR
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for BUHGESA  BUAGTEHREES
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the service type, B W ERIEA AT e ETTR RS
customer type and its geographical location. ECL rate is B ETRREER B EE
applied to the respective gross carrying amounts of the REMBNE -FEHHEEBIEXER
receivables. REWHRIES BRI REARE -
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TXHINEBEASEEE 5 REWRIER
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables: B3 B r &R
As at 31 March 2020 $22020%3H31H
(i)  Construction sector (i) BEEHE
Trade receivables B EWRIE
Within 91 days to Over
By invoice date BREERH 90 days 365 days 365 days Total
90K A 91FE365K iBiA365K #at
Average ECL rate % FHEREEBEEX%  1.63% 8.90% 100%
Gross carrying amount  BRE 4% (F 75 7T)
(HK$'000) 72,726 26,497 8,096 107,319
Expected credit losses BHEEEE (T
(HK$'000) 1,185 2,358 8,096 11,639

236
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22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. ESEWRIEREW

(continued) REB&£(E)
As at 31 March 2020 (continued) 120204£3H31H (&)
(ij) Environmental sector (i) REEHE
Trade receivables EoERHRE
Within 91 days to Over
By invoice date BREEAH 90 days 365 days 365 days Total
90AAN 91%E365K RiB365K st
Average ECL % FHREHEEBRY 3.33% 7.16%  66.50%
Gross carrying amount BRmEmAE (T
(HK$'000) 11,883 10,078 18,253 40,214
Expected credit losses HHEE®BE(TET)
(HK$'000) 396 722 12,137 13,255
(iii) Industrial fluid sector (i) T ¥75EeE
Trade receivables B ERE
Within 91 days to Over
By invoice date REEEH 90 days 365 days 365 days Total
90KA 91FE365K RiB365K #Et
Average ECL % FHRBEEERY 1% 2.43% 5.56%
Gross carrying amount  BRE A58 (T8 L)
(HK$'000) 17,264 2,014 366 19,644

Loss allowance (HK$'000) &5 K (T8 7T) 173 49 20 242
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22.

238

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 22. BHEWKFRIE R EYW
(continued) REBE=2(E)
As at 31 March 2019 $:2019%3H31H
(i) Construction sector () BHEEE
Trade receivables B S EWRIE
Within 91 days to Over
By invoice date BREEAH 90 days 365 days 365 days Total
90K A 915365k FBiB365K it
Average ECL rate % FHEHEEBEEE%  1.29% 1.29% 100%
Gross carrying amount BRI 458 (T8 L)
(HK$'000) 126,735 835 8,096 135,666
Expected credit losses BHEEEE(FTHT)
(HK$'000) 1,635 11 8,096 9,742
(i)  Environmental sector (i) RIEZEHE
Trade receivables B o rElRE
Within 91 days to Over
By invoice date BEZEAH 90 days 365 days 365 days Total
90K A 91%E365K HBiB365K #at
Average ECL % FHBRBEEEERE% 2.15% 5.06%  30.10%
Gross carrying amount  BRE 458 (T8 T)
(HK$'000) 10,998 6,678 20,683 38,359
Expected credit losses BHEEEE(THT)
(HK$'000) 237 338 6,225 6,800
(i) Industrial fluid sector (iii) TEEEHE
Trade receivables g S EWRIE
Within 91 days to Over
By invoice date BREZAH 90 days 365 days 365 days Total
90RAM 91%E365K HBiA365K 5t
Average ECL % 978 5 B 1B % 1% 15%  556%
Gross carrying amount  BRE %8 (T8 L)
(HK$'000) 19,261 3,165 271 22,697
Loss allowance (HK$'000) &8 &K (T4 7T) 193 48 15 256
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. ERRIE - EHERHEHM
RECEIVABLES i E ]

2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=2 FHT FE T
Prepayments TR RIB 36,507 54,106
Deposits paid in connection BLENE B e
with potential acquisitions in 2 &% 28
Indonesia, related expenses AR RERERK
paid on behalf and loan
advances (@) — 67,637
Deposits and other receivables 1% & K H fth j& W 7k 18 108,790 111,918
Impairment BB (b) (7.528) (15,929)
137,769 217,732
Current portion included in FTATBRFRIE - Ze Rk
prepayments, deposits and H i JlE U FRIE Y
other receivables BB (95,462) (183,819)

Non-current portion JERE D 42,307 33,913




NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 705 % MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

240

(a)

A.

Deposits paid in connection with potential
acquisitions in Indonesia, related expenses
paid on behalf and loan advances

As disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 22 January 2016, 23 March
2016, 6 April 2016, 14 April 2016, 30 May
2016, 21 June 2016, 21 September 2016, 24
April 2017, 20 October 2017 and 6 July 2018,
the Group entered into a series of agreements in
relation to potential acquisitions of a 49% equity
interest in PT. Dempo Sumber Energi (“DSE”) and
a 80% equity interest in PT. Sumatera
Pembangkit Mandiri (“SPM”) and subsequent
potential acquisition of additional 5% equity
interest in SPM. DSE and SPM are limited liability
companies incorporated in Indonesia and are
principally engaged in the development of
hydropower stations in Indonesia.

In addition to the acquisition deposits, the Group
paid certain expenses on behalf of DSE and
advanced loans to DSE, SPM, Mr. Xu Peng (“Mr.
Xu”) and Mr. Muhammad Yamin Kahar (“Mr.
Muhammad”). Mr. Xu and Mr. Muhammad were
beneficial shareholders of DSE and SPM.

As the collateral to secure the repayment of
acquisition deposits and the advanced expenses
and loans, 28,420 Class A shares of DSE
(representing 49% of the equity interest in DSE)
and 800 ordinary shares of SPM (representing
80% of the equity interest in SPM) were
transferred to the Stand Ascent Limited (“Stand
Ascent”), a wholly owned subsidiary indirectly
held by the Company. The Group also appointed
4 out of 6 directors of DSE and 5 out of 7
directors of SPM. The Group’s nominated
directors in DSE and SPM resigned during the year

ended 31 March 2019 and 2020, respectively.

23.

—_

i |
F&

a

~

~

S

&

A

5%
i 2%

BH-RE&ERkHM
B ()

FENE B IS
gfftks - 2K
HEARAIRERER
BN AR 7 B 8 A20164F
1H228 - 201643 A23
B 2016%F4H6H - 2016
F4H148 - 201645830
H 2016%6H21H8 -
20169 H21H ~ 20174
48248 -~ 2017910820
H K&2018F7A6H &) A
FT i % - N & B B BPT.
Dempo Sumber Energi
([ DSE |) B949%B% #& « PT.
Sumatera Pembangkit
Mandiri ([SPM 1)  &180%
% #E DA K E 1% 7] 68 UL BB
SPM 3 9N5% A% # /) &
W EIEFI Y —&E R
% o DSERSPMA 1A EN B
HMEZBBER AR - E
TEHEZERKNDESE

R EEIRZ SN A&
B B KDSEX fF & T A
% - I MDSE * SPM * %
s & £ % & £ &
Muhammad Yamin Kahar
% 4 ([ Muhammad %t 4 1)
BN ER - BREER
Muhammad 4t 4 ADSE &
SPMHA) & 2= A% R ©

EvERAR(EN] -
HARRMEREENEZE
B B A 7)) M 8 £28 420
f&DSE A& 7 (FHE R
DSE 49%f% ##) &800A%
SPME i % (8 & R SPM
80% [k 1) ' tE B IE =
HES UMY RERR
REREROERSR - K
SEINE Z(EDSE 6% =
= H A48 KSPM 7R =
FEHAP5H - REEMDSE
K SPMIE & ) & = 5 R R
#H £2019F &202043A
M EFERMT-



23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits paid in connection with potential @ A

acquisitions in Indonesia, related expenses

paid on behalf and loan advances

(a)

A.

On 20 October 2017, the sale and purchase
agreement for DSE was terminated and a deed of
termination and indemnification “DSE RNE&E B - RS & DSEM
Termination Deed”) was entered into between the

Group, Mr. Xu, DSE and Mr. Muhammad.

On disposal of Stand Ascent (as details in part B
immediately below), the total aggregate amount
paid/advanced
transactions mentioned above (collectively as
“Payments”) was approximately HK$70,269,000 & H#497570,269,0007%8 T
(31 March 2019: approximately HK$67,637,000).
The Group have
provision of HK$15,854,000 during the vyear
ended 31 March 2018. No further impairment
provision made against the Payments during the
year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. As at the
date of the Disposal,
impairment provision of HK$15,854,000, the
carrying amount of the Payments was of
approximately HK$54,415,000 (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$51,783,000).

relation to the series of

recognised an

after netting off the

2020F F R AIXEEER)ERATF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P 705 ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

23. ERRIE-ZERHE A

FEW =R IE (%)

. BENRE S
Eftiks  ERAH
G
(#)

M2017F10A208 -
DSEE B W & B & 1k -

Muhammad 7t & 5] 37 £% |-
K 58 {8 22 4% ([ DSE#R 1E 22
Bl e

REEER(FHBEHERT
XBER) By - h b SR At
BEZXGEXNBEBM
BEMBAIZENEA]D

(2019 3 A31H

impairment #767,637,000/8 1) ° AN &

B % & £2018%3A31H
I FERRBRERE
15,854,000/ T ° 1A & &=
20204 K%201943A31H
IEFE BERZEIE
ARBERE - RNEE
£ IE A B RN MR
15,854,000/% 7T Ji {8 # 1#
% ZERENREASHE
49 754,415,000 T
(20193 A31H : &
51,783,000 7T) °
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

242

(a)

B.

Disposal of interests in Stand Ascent

The Group entered into (i) a disposal agreement
with &2 EMEERE R A7 (“Fujian Jiahe”) and
(i) the second supplemental deed to the disposal
agreement on 29 June 2018 and 15 August 2019
respectively (collectively “Disposal Agreement”) to
dispose of 100% equity interest in Stand Ascent
(which held 49% equity interest in DSE and 85%
in SPM) at an aggregate
of HK$50,932,000. The
represented (i) US$2,205,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$17,199,000)

equity interest
consideration

consideration

(based on the value of the 49% equity interest in
DSE); and (ii) US$4,324,800 (equivalent to
approximately HK$33,733,000) (based on the
value of the 85% equity interest in SPM).

As at 31 March 2019 and up to the date before
disposal, the Group have received an aggregate
amount of HK$83,764,000 from the buyer in the
Disposal Agreement and its beneficial controlling
shareholder (the “Money Received”).

23. AR -ZERHE A

FEWr =R IE (&)
(a) B. HESEEIEH

K& & 5 R 1R201856 A
29H K201948AH15H £
BEEMERE R A T
([BEEMD TGS
g R (i) HE R E =
DETERLE (GBEAEILE
Wl UMEHE B
EDSE 49%f% #E K SPM
85% % 1) H100% A% #2 -
& X B A50,932,000/%8
7T ° R {8 B #(i)2,205,000
x (B F R #H
17,199,000/ 7T )( #&DSE
A%KREMEEFE)
F2.(i1)4,324,800E Tt (4 %
R 4933,733,000/ JT)(E
HSPM  85% % 1 #) (& (&
FTE) o

MR2019%F3A31H K& &
HERM—HBLE AEEE
MEHEHENEFREE
= AR IR R U E A H
83,764,000/ 7t ([ E W 3
1H]) °



(a)

(b)

B.

20206 FH RAIXEBEM(EZER)ERAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  23. FEftRIE - k& R H
RECEIVABLES (continued) FEW SR IE (42)
Disposal of interests in Stand Ascent (@) B. HEBIHEZLE)
(continued)
On 15 August 2019, the Group entered into a 20198 H15H » A~ £
settlement agreement (the “Settlement EREELERENRE
Agreement”) in relation to the settlement of (MK &) 5T S2 A0 A% 153 =&
consideration for the Disposal Agreement (the (TAN R 175 =% 1) o AR H5% A0 fig
“Consideration”). According to the Settlement i REKAREE5
Agreement, the Consideration will be settled by ERAEERNESTRAEE
the amount due by the Group to the buyer and SRR RIBEE -
its beneficial controlling shareholder for the RIAETTEMERRE W
Money Received. The amount of Money Received RIEB N B -
in excess of the consideration was agreed to be
waived.
On 17 September 2019, Fujian lJiahe provided a M20195F9H178 - &8 &
confirmation to the Group in respect of the EMEAMAREERLE
completion of the Disposal Agreement, pursuant M & Fik - R
to which the Company’s obligations under the ANARHEREE TR E
Disposal Agreement has been fulfilled and BERBITWHER - REZE
discharged. During the year ended 31 March 2020F3H318 I & & -
2020, the Group has recognised a gain on REBERAHEE LR
disposal of the equity interests in Stand Ascent of B UL #29,349,000%
HK$29,349,000. JC °
The movements in provision for impairment of (b) H h & IR IR R B B
other receivables are as follows: BEMOT
2019
HK$'000
FHET
At beginning of year REA 15,929 15,934
Impairment loss REEE 7,528 —
Written off upon disposal H B B B (15,854) =
Exchange realignment ME 3, 38 B (75) (5)
At end of year RER 7,528 15,929

The individually impaired deposits and other
receivables relate to debtors that were in default
in interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

B HRERRENES R
HEWFHIAES HIER
B R,/ R MR E
BAGH FHETLKD
BB M IR -
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24.

244

LOAN RECEIVABLES

4. FEWGER

2019
HK$'000

FHBT

Loan receivables JE U B 3R 13,087 18,215
Impairment A (10,179) (13,960)
2,908 4,255

Loan receivables bear interest at a rate of 0.83% per month
(2019: 0.67% per month) and are either repayable on
demand or within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Except for loan receivables of HK$2,571,000
(2019: HK$2,740,000), which are secured by certain equity
interests of the borrower or its subsidiary, the remaining
balances are unsecured.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the management of the
Group believed that the credit risk of certain loan receivables
has significantly increased and full recovery was not excepted,
further ECL was made for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Included in the Group’s loan receivables as at 31 March 2020
and 2019 are loans to a company (the “Tianjin Company”)
which was principally engaged in the sludge treatment
business in Tianjin, the PRC, with an aggregate outstanding
loan principal RMB8,307,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,091,000)).

U E F IR F = & A0.83/E (20194 :
FH067E):TE ' AERERINHE
BiR 181218 A WE & ° B&2,571,0007%
JC (20194F : 2,740,000/ 70) M EWE
FRIAFE R A S E B A B A B T AR
TERIN - AT R R EEA -

120204 K%2019%3H31H * & & H
EEEMERG ETREREZNEER
BEEEE N EEEXEEHIKE I
RE E2020F3A31B L FE#HE—
FTIRTEHAE B R I8 -

720204 K%2019%3H31H ' & & H
MEKREZRBER T —BRA(XZE
RADMER - RERAREZEHREH
REMRESEREBER - KEEE
RA S 5 A ARS8,307,0007T (48
£ 12 499,091,000/ 7T) °



20206 F R RIXEEE(ZER)ERAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 R Y =

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Tianjin Company was in default in interest and/or loan
principal payments. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group received from the Tianjin Company an aggregate
amount of RMB2,650,000 and RMB1,225,000 for the
repayment of part of the loan receivables and the related
interest, respectively. The Group initiated litigation claims
against the Tianjin Company in relation to the default of the
loan receivables and the related interest.

On 16 May 2018, the Group obtained a court order from the
Binhai New Area People’s Court of Tianjin Municipality (the
“Tianjin Court”) to freeze and deduct the remaining balance
of the loan receivables from the bank accounts of the Tianjin
Company. However, there was no available balance in the
bank accounts of the Tianjin Company. On 30 May 2018, the
Group also obtained from the Tianjin Court a dormant seizure
order on the land and building of the Tianjin Company but
they were subject to legal charges initiated by other parties.

As at 31 March 2018, a full impairment of RMB11,975,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,090,000) was recognised
for the aggregate outstanding loan and interest receivables
from the Tianjin Company, assuming that no amount could be
recovered from the litigations and the valuation of the 20%
equity interest in the Tianjin Company held as security for the
loans was nil.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the loan receivable of
HK$4,139,000 was partially repaid during the year and
therefore this provision for impairment in respect of the
repaid amount was reversed.

Movements in provision for impairment of loan receivables are
as follows:

24,

FEWERR (&)
KEQNRMERFE R, HERAE
o MEE2018F3831H EFE - &K
SEMAREQATDHRBMEEARE
2,650,0007T & A R #1,225,0007T 5
AEREWRERRABTEMNHSE
3R o AN B B gk HE R E B AR
FEMREZRBRHFAPR -

201858168 » KEBES R ES
EEFE ARER ([REER]) BE
RS REREQRAMNRTELY
W EWE R R &R A
i+ K3EA B AR 1T BR P AR 3 £ 7] A
48 o 201845308  ANEBE IR
KFBQ B T R AEF RIS RKE A
NWEERLADS  EZSLHWRETF
HZEMATIREAEZBERE -

R2018F3A31H  AEBBRERFALE
FRETEMEE BEREEREKRD
RERFRO%BENEHERT LB
RREQAAMKREZERBEREFE
MEERE R 2 BURE AR 11,975,000
7T (FE 1 4914,090,00078 7T) °

REE2020F3A31HIEFE  EWE
X4,139,0008 T E R FAZBHEE
MEEERENRERBDER -

EWEFRERENES T

2019

HK$'000

T T

At beginning of year REA) 13,960 14,945
Reversal of impairment, net EJEID RS (3,019) =
Exchange realignment PE 5, 38 & (762) (985)
At end of year RER 10,179 13,960
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25. BALANCES WITH DIRECTORS AND A 25. MEER —EREBAT
RELATED COMPANY 2 [ ) 45 B
At 31 March 2020, the balances with directors and a related MR2020F3A31H @ B EN —BEEH A
company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on Al X I8217,345,000/%8 7T (20194 :
demand, except for an amount of HK$217,345,000 (2019: 384,643,000/ 7T) A1 F R ERE R E
384,643,000) payable to a related company which is REIEHN HEER -—HBEBARZ
repayable after 1 year and carried with interest rate at 3%. MEOERREER REREAREX
E3& -
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. RERBEZEEY
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash and bank balances & RIRIT R 29,817 38,745
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBLFEY 29,817 38,745
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily FHRRIBITHESERRITHNEAT
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with A E - FEF ERIF S o R1T
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. R URNE B R AT B3 BN R ¥ R

LB ERTT
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27. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 27. B S FE 3R IE B FE £+

22

B

x B

2019

HK$'000

FET

Trade payables B 5 B RIE 138,397 171,503
Retention payables ERRE < 36,266 51,076
174,663 222,579

Classified as current liabilities DEAERDEE 166,990 201,602
Non-current portion EmB I D 7,673 20,977

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms ranging from 30 to 180 days.

Retention payables held by the Group arose from the Group's
construction work and are settled with subcontractors within
a period ranging from one to two years after the completion
of the contract work by the subcontractors, as stipulated in
the subcontracting contracts.

Retention payables held by the Group arising from the
construction of plant operated under BOT are settled with
contractors within a period ranging from one to two years
after the completion of the construction work.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables (excluding retention
payables) as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

BORNFBBTFTE  —RRNF
302 180KRM IR A5 ©

AEERMBAEREASENERTRE
MENRE S TR H A KHMRTAR
DHABMTER SN TIRER —EMFAE
DHEEE -

AEEMBERAAZREBOTEE
MEENENRESDREETRES
KE—EMFREDHAEEE

RBERARNESEN KA ERE
BNFRES)EREZAHNKRED
T

2019

HK$'000

FH&T

Within 30 days 30K A 37,444 54,023
31-60 days 31E60K 27,038 56,612
61-90 days 61£290K 15,361 13,317
Over 90 days B 1BmI0K 58,554 47,551
138,397 171,503
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28.

248

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HithFEtFRIA K FEsH & A

2019
HK$'000
FAET
Current portion RENER 5

Other payables H b fE 5 3RIE 188,857 209,610
Accruals FEET & H 32,601 15,620
Deferred income iR IE YA 581 619
222,039 225,849

Non-current portion FERENE
Deferred income i IE YA 13,998 15,529
13,998 15,529

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of 30 days, except for (i) an amount of HK$6,000,000
(2019: nil) payable to a related company which is repayable
within 1 year and carried with interest rate at 6%; and (ii)
during the year end 31 March 2019, the convertible bond
were classified as other payables upon the Company’s shares
suspended trading for more than 30 business days. As at 31
March 2020, the principal and accrued interest outstanding is
approximately US$6.2 million (2019: US$5.6 million)
(equivalent to HK$49.0 million (2019: HK$44.4 million)).

Deferred income

Deferred income represents subsidies received from
government authorities in respect of the construction of
kitchen waste treatment facilities in Mainland China and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the straight
line method over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets.

BRG)E f — RO B8 B A A M R\
6,000,000/ 7T (20194 : 4£) 78 M4
RNEBRIEFRCET B RINREBE
20193A31BLEFE BEE AR A
A& 17 1= he BB B30ME & ¥ B » AT &
HFEDEAEMBEMNKIEIN  HiJE
NRBETTE - FHHR A30K -
MR2020F3A318  REEA S KER
A B 4 /A6,200,000% 7T (20194 :
5,600,000 7T.) (48 5 749,000,000/
7C (20194 : 44,400,000/ 7T)) °

3B 3E U N\

IR WA HE BRI o B P 2 0 A BT AL
% B2 1 5% bt B R AT 4 B W B A 5 B
TREEEEMNFERAERFHARR
BEREEBRGERAER -
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. ;tRRITREMEES
BORROWINGS

2019
Effective Effective
interest interest
e bl e e rate (%) Maturity  HK$'000
BRA % BRI =
(%)  Z#H FTERT (%)  ZI#A FHET
Current wE
Finance lease payables ERRmERERE — — —  2.75-4.33 2019-2020 3,579
Portions of bank loans due for ROTERFR—FRE Bz
repayment within one year or on EXEENDS — BER
demand — secured (note b) (MfzEDb) 4.75-5.6 2020-2021 12,367 2.05-4.82 2019-2020 42,228
Bank loans due for repayment within 7 —F N E| #iskiz 2k EEH
one year or on demand — RITER — BER
unsecured 3.45-6.6 2020-2021 443 5.67 2019 3,497
Other borrowing for repayment R—FREPREZEREED
within one year or on demand HitfgE — HEA
— secured (note ©) (Bt &Ec) 4.98-11.5 2021 238,121 5.88 2019 47,284
Other borrowing — unsecured Hifg s — mER 3.95-5.75 2021 3,102 — — —
254,033 96,588
Non-current k)]
Finance lease payables ERRERENRE — — - 4.33 2020-2021 2,614
Portion of bank loan due for RITERFR—F%RE 5
repayment after one year EENEHD — FHEM
— secured (note b) (i &Eb) 4.75 2022 8,426 4.82 2020-2025 123,435
Portion of bank loan due for RITERFR—FREH
repayment after one year EENBD — EEA
— unsecured 3.45 2024 1,018
Other borrowing — secured (note ¢) Hftifs & — HEM (fiiztc)  4.98-5.88 2021-2025 125,219 5.88 2019-2025 128,048
Other borrowing — unsecured Hifg g — ®EH — — — — 2020 2,732
134,663 256,829
388,696 353,417

Notes: B &

(a) Included in the above interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of (a) M2020F3A318 * A& E Eitst S8 4R
the Group as at 31 March 2020 were term loans with a carrying ThREMEETRERESER
amount of HK$110,000,000 (2019: HK$16,176,000). The loan 110,000,000 Jt (20194 :
agreements contained a repayment on demand clause giving the 16,176,000% 7T) B A HE X - B
banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time and HEARERHEBGE BTFRITE
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total PRFRER - BERERER - Bt - 5tk
amount was classified as “on demand”. MEBMESNME  BERXRESER

MRE% -
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) (continued)
Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause and based
on the maturity term on this term loan, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are repayable:

S BSRITR R ()

B eE  (48)

(a)

(&)

MAFREERERGRXOTE &
IRt B MERO B HER - AEE K
RITREMEEEENT

2019

HK$'000

FH&T

Within one year —FR 214,033 90,088

In the second year F_F 76,139 48,718
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FZFERF

(BEEREMEF) 98,524 193,323

Beyond five years hF& — 21,288

388,696 353,417

(i)

(iii)

(ii)

250

A bank loan of HK$15,321,000 was secured by the pledge
of certain of kitchen waste treatment concession rights
(comprising operating concessions and receivables under
service concession arrangements) in an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$125,766,000 (2019: HK$202,494,000).

A bank loan of HK$5,472,000 was secured by the pledge of
a property of a family member of a director at a value of
HK$9,193,000.

A bank loans amounting to HK$ nil were secured by the
pledge of certain time deposits of Mr. Chu Shu Cheong
(2019: HK$6,669,000).

An other borrowing of HK$137,432,000 was secured by the
pledge of certain of kitchen waste treatment concession
rights (comprising operating concessions and receivables
under service concession arrangements) in an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$374,229,000 (2019:
HK$385,054,000).

An other borrowing of HK$60,000,000 and HK$50,000,000
was secured by construction plant of HK$225,748,000 and
share capital of certain subsidiaries of the Group (2019: HK$
nil).

(b)

(o)

(i)

(iii)

(i)

15,321,0007% 7T &9 R 17 & 3k BA
ff T 42 %8 /125,766,000 7T
(20194 : 202,494,0005% 7T) Ky
ETEFNRERRFTE(BE
T R RIS AT R
JFE W FRIE) B HR AR A -

5,472,000/ T K $R 1T B FRIA —
ZEEN—RBREKE —HE
{89,193,000/% 7T K ¥ % &0 &4 4§
YEE 4 o

TAETHRITERARE S %
£ E T T H1F 3R E R EIR
8 (20194 : 6,669,000/ 7T) °

137,432,000/ 7T /) H fth {8 & LA
fik T 42 58 /374,229,000% 7T
(20194 : 385,054,000/ JT) Ay
ETEBNREREE(RE
KERTERRB TR
FEWRIE) KO B A EHE R o

60,000,000 7t k50,000,000
785 7T 19 E b & B 14 225,748,000
BTHEERERAEEET
B /B A A) &9 AR 7S 1E 5 #80 (2019
FEHT) e
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. stRERITREMES (Z
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued) MiaE - ()
(© (continued) (c) (48)
(iii) An other borrowing of HK$101,509,000 was secured by the (iii) M2019%F 202043H318 -
pledge of shares of subsidiaries of Group as at 31 March 101,509,000 7T 89 H fib fi& B LA
2019 and 2020. REBETHBARBKRGDHNE
RIEEA -
(iv) An other borrowing of HK$14,399,000 was secured by the (iv) 720194 K202093A31H
pledge of machinery of as at 31 March 2019 and 2020. 14,399,000/ 7T #) K i 8 & A
HE A ) B AR R o
In addition, certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are hoh - AEEE T RTREMEE T
guaranteed by the Company, certain of its subsidiaries, New AAAR - HEETHBRF - —HBAR
Concepts Holdings (International) Limited, a related company SEXZERABRBELEEGN
controlled by Mr. Chu Shu Cheong, a key management personnel 8 Bt A AINew Concepts Holdings
of the Group, Mr. Chu Shu Cheong and Mr. Zhu Yongjun. (International) Limited * K & %6 4 &
KEFEREER-
(d)  The Group's bank and other borrowings are denominated in the (d) AEENRITREMEEATIEE
following currencies: A

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&ET

Hong Kong dollars BT 110,000 12,693
RMB AR 165,435 213,387
SEK I 42 72 BA 113,261 127,337

388,696 353,417
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30. BONDS 30. &%
2019
HK$'000
FHET
Bonds payables J& 11 & 55 25,500 25,500

The bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are calculated as follows:

RERE M BRRARAEROEFIZIA
X s

2019

HK$'000

FAT

At beginning of the year RE A 25,500 —

Issued during the year FRNET — 51,209

Repayment during the year FRNER — (25,709)

At end of the year R E R 25,500 25,500
Less: Current portion due within 1 year & : 145 A 2 Hi &9 7% &

=152) 25,500 —

Non-current portion EmB I D — 25,500

The bonds bear interest ranging from 6.5% (2019: 4% to
6.5%) per annum with maturity up to 3 years, and is
guaranteed by the chairman of the Board, an executive
director and an indirect substantial shareholder of the
Company.

The Company may, at any time before the maturity date
redeem the bonds (in whole or in part) of the total principal
amount of such bonds and together with payment of interests
accrued up to the date of such redemption by serving at
least 10 day’s prior written notice to the holders of the
bonds.

As at the year ended 31 March 2020, the bonds were

classified as current liabilities as an immediate repayment
clause has been triggered.

252

& %5 1% F K| R6.5% (20194 : 4% &
6.5% )5t B R3FANHH - AARQ T
ESOER WTESKEEZER
RER -

ZA/N B H3 B AT BE B 1718 25 B0 5
ﬁ/\L RLVIORELAEEAHN &
FRES (2B NA2AHER
OZEEs EEXNEBEE=6RED
BEIER RS -

REE2020F3A31H IEFE - AR E
BRI ERIEX WESF D BARS
=R
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PROVISION

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by
the Group, the Group has contractual obligations to maintain
kitchen waste treatment under its operation to a specified
level of serviceability and/or to restore the facilities to a
specified condition before they are handed over to the
grantors at the end of the Service concession periods. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the facilities,
except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 37, i.e., the best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The future
expenditure on these maintenance and restoration costs is
collectively referred to as “major overhaul”. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where
appropriate.

31.

B im

RIBAN R B R SL0 IRAG A5 AR 17 %
AEBBAHNBEHREELCENERH
B 3 B 3R A TE B0 AT R R AR K
R/ RS AT R R A RE - 7
BRBETET ARG RIEEESHE
MR BE o B A T AR T RSN - MK
EERENEHEETNRBEE G
ENFEIVRERB R E  DERHE
HREBTREREBAAN T HOKE
et - BEAZSHEREERENR
KxtmBRIKE] AEEEFHE
B W EE R RIS AR B

2019

HK$'000

T T

At 1 April MR4R1H 31,909 16,195
Provision for the year FRNEE 16,245 16,850
Exchange realignment PE b5 58 & (2,442) (1,136)
At 31 March M3H31H 45,712 31,909
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32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32. EEHIEETE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRELEHBEBEENEEHNOT -
as follows:
Temporary
differences
Depreciation related to Losses available
allowances in service Expected credit  for offsetting Other
excess of related concession  Provision for loss of financial ~ against future intangible
depreciation revenue major overhauls assets taxable profits assets  Others Total
@BEEn ARRE RIS
HENFE  REERAD SHAEN RRESEH it
itk UHEH XEHG HEHEEBR HHANER BREE E4) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TEL FET T TEL TEr FEx TEn
At 31 March 2018 and M201853A318
1 April 2018 at originally presented 201854418
(BRRERS) 25,074 45,709 (4,049) = (19,731) — (107) 46,896
Initial application of NpERESHHRE
HKFRS 9 B B9 = = - (6,030) = = = (6,030)
As restated AE| 25,074 45,709 (4,049) (6,030) (19,731) - (107) 40,866
Acquisition of subsidiary LB B 22 ) (B E38)
(note 38) 6,870 - - - - 16,480 15,490 38,840
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the statement of FRERBHEXME/
profit or loss during the year GARZR)H
EEHE (6,019 (954) (2,218) (1,302) 1,721 (2,095) (9,905 (14,766)
Exchange realignment ERRE (69) (4,351) 448 - - (749) 216)  (4,937)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 #201963A318 &
201944818 25,856 40,404 (5,819) (7,332) (12,004) 13,636 5,262 60,003
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the statement of 4R EREXNK/
profit or loss during the year GtABRER)H
BRI (4,568) (17,016) (4,061) 3,390 (2,521) (1,388)  (2311) (28475
Exchange realignment Ex@E (591) 1,020 (1,548) (100) — 2,036) (1,625 (4,880

At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A318 20,697 24,408 (11,428) (4,042) (14,525) 10,212 1,326 26,648
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

At 31 March 2020, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$87,477,000 (2019: HK$84,463,000), subject to
the agreement by the respective taxation authorities, that
were available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also had tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$109,103,000 (2019: HK$93,034,000) that will expire in
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets had not been recognised in respect of the
losses of HK$108,549,700 (2019: HK$111,975,000) due to
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is
5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
certain unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

32.

EERIEEEZ)
EEHIEAE

MR2020F3A31H  AEBRBEBELE
i 7% &5 4887,477,0005 JT (20194 :
84,463,000/ 7T) - AI PR BRI 3 =
XEBR QA KR RERBEF - E
EFEUGEHEREESE - ANEET
A H B A b 2 A B 7S 5 #8109, 103,000
7 7T (20194F : 93,034,000/ JT) * A
B RRERTEF - BRAFA
fE M o FR R B DA TR R 2R B 5R i i A
KOJR B I £ 5L108,549,7007% T
(2019%F : 111,975,000/ 7T ) H /&5 18 t&
RIELERIBEE -

BIRP B BEREEE R E A
RS INE R E M INBR & & B R K
B B A WI0%TENF - % 48 E B
200841 A3 1H & 4 & - # B $20074F
12A318 &8 & F - i & A H ok
BEIEEEMEREERE 2R B RE
&4 - AR E A SRK M B IR R - &K
EEMERHEAE5%810% AL
ANEBARLR B EAME N B R
A5k B2008F1 B1BRELN AR D
K B AR S K A FE AN R

20204 K2019F3A31H ' A &
I 4 5t E 5 AR B At K 2 /O B B A R
§) & T oK BE M 2 I FE 1< /Y 78 70 756 i 3R
REBIE - ZEERE % SHEBRA
PARABER A RS R DIk ZFE&F -

7R 73 ) [ B A BROIK A AL 3 4 B 7
AAERER -
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. Ig&
Shares B% 15
2019
HK$'000
FAET
Authorised: VETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000% & &
HK$0.1 each E{E0.15 T /Y
& A A 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE:
572,900,134 (2019: 572,900,134) 572,900,134(%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (20194 :
572,900,1344%)
HREE0. 178 T K
T 57,290 57,290

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share

capital is as follows:

AABEHTRANSEHHIIMT

Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares

LEREE i 38 B E (E
Notes HK$'000
B £ F&T
Issued and fully paid: BEBITRAR
At 1 April 2018 M2018F471H 530,262,992 53,026
Issue of shares as part of the TN IEAER
consideration for a business EHBONRE
combination (note 38) (Mg 7E38) (a) 42,137,142 4,214
Share options exercised B AT 8RB ik (b) 500,000 50
At 31 March 2019, #2019%£3H318 -
1 April 2019 and 2019F4A1H &
31 March 2020 2020%E3H31H 572,900,134 57,290
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

(a)

(b)

On 31 May 2018, 42,137,142 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each were allotted and issued at a price of HK$3.89 per
share to the vendors as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of 100%

(note 38).

equity interest in Vimab

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the subscription
rights attaching to 500,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$2.58 per share
(note 34), resulting in the issue of 500,000 shares for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$1,290,000. An amount of HK$237,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to

the financial statements.

33.

& =]

B (&)

(@) M2018F5A31H HETEH K
B H%3.897 TT 1Y (B A8 E Bic 35 J2 3%
1742,137,1420% & % E (B0.1%
THEBER - ERKEVImabE
O AR AE RO 2B o KB (HT7E38) ©

(b) MEZE2019F3A8318IEFE -
500,00017 B A% # Fi7 B 72 B8 42 1%
R (B T A2.587 T E 1T F (M
FE34) 38 By 3 97500,0008% A%
B BRESRECRNERFX)
751,290,0007 7T ° 7 BE A% 4 &
17 {E B - 237,000 7T A B8 A% 1
HEESREROHER-

RERE

AR AR R A A 8 AR IR &t 8%
17RO R A A FE B BN A B B R P
i34 e
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34.

258

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, consultants of the
Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-
controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The
Scheme became effective on 26 August 2014 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any

granted to a substantial shareholder or an
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

34.

S B HE ST &

RN A E P — IH R 8 ([&Z &5
2 B EREANEBEKDEEELD
ERMAERSHEERERE RO
W ZAEMNEERSHERIEAR
AES(BREBYIENTES) A&
EEMEES  AEBBAA BEAE
ERHEMIRBOEER A5E
BE ARARERARARMKEAR A
B R FEFE AR AR 2R » X 5T &1 R 20144
8H26H £ - BRIFWMBUHESEE] - B
BIAS A R a% BB RT10FE A K o

BRAFRBEZ A ERHA R RITRE
BREETERARBORMNKE -
RZTBBEBHASENAR AR EMME
i H) B B 1T 10% B) B 58 - %=t &l
MERAERSEERVEM2{E A H
BATTEBRERSATREETHEE R
DB - ERRAR B ER
EBTRME1% - M —FREBEBR
ZRERERE  IZARBRRAS £
HRAS B R AHLE

MARBESE ZERTRABHKEE
% B sk 1% A (E ] B AR R
O ERSEUIFERNTESHNS AN
AE o BB AN - R ER1218 A HA R R
RAREBRENIBILIEHITE E K
BENEABEARDOBRERR
ARRREMEREGEZETRMO
0.1% ' KB A (ER AR A RKMH R EF
B HA /9 U B 5T &) #8 485,000,000
BT BIZERIRE RS FREKRES
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
7 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, commences after a vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of the
share options; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

34,

MBS El (2)
REHBRENZENATNEZEL R HE
STRARER  ERRARAZSMNE
HIETHREARE - ER D ERE
WITEHRESET RNE—HBH
BB RTEREBEREZEZLHEH
BEH0FRH F4

BRENTEEHESETE  B16E
PRUTHEFNERE  IRBK
RELDHRBMETARERMEA
RAERDERTE (DR ERELH B
AR ERXS BB RRERRT
BARBBROOFHRTE - Rin
ZHRBMARRE RPEE -

BREYEETHEARRRS IR
BRERAE ERROER -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. BERRHESTEI (&
The following share options under the Scheme were FR - ZEEI T RITENBRENT -

outstanding during the year:

2020 2019
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
In#EE niEFH
TEE BREHE TRE BREHAE
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRET T3 BRE T T4
At beginning of year R EA 1.90 69,484 2.58 18,884
Granted during the year  FR&EH — — 1.65 51,100
Exercised during the year 4R 77{E — — 2.58 (500)
Forfeit during the year F R 1.65 (2,712) — —
Lapsed during the year FAKMK 2.58 (18,384) — —
At end of year RER 1.65 48,388 1.90 69,484
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for R & 2020938318 L F E 1T E
share options exercised during the year ended 31 March BREETEEEOMETERER
2020 was nil (2019: HK$3.89 per share). = (20197 : B #%3.898 7T) °
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EHARRITENERENITEE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as RATEHET
follows:
2020 20204
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
fERERE TEE* TEH
‘000 HK$ per share
T4 BRER
28,620 1.65 5 March 2019 to 4 March 2021
2019%3A5H £202143H4H
19,768 1.65 5 March 2019 to 4 March 2022
2019%3H5H £2022%3A4H

48,388
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. FERRHERTEI (&
2019 20194
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BB 2 TRE* 177
‘000 HK$ per share
T FRBT
18,384 2.58 24 October 2016 to 23 October 2019
2016 10H24H 2019910231
30,120 1.65 5 March 2019 to 4 March 2021
201943 A5H £20214F3A4H
20,980 1.65 5 March 2019 to 4 March 2022

201943 A5H 220224563 A4H

69,484

& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * BRENITEES SN AR EITA

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the & - kAR A B RR A H B E h 5R L E E)

Company’s share capital. R & o
On 5 March 2019, the Company granted share options to 201953 A5H » A RA AR #& B8 B 7
certain Directors, employees and consultant to subscribe for a ElmETES EERERRLE
total of 51,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the R UARBARAARAFREG
share capital of the Company under the Share Option 51,100,0008% & A% E {B0.107% 7T & &
Scheme. The exercise price of each option is HK$1.65 per BR-BOERENTEERER
share with validity period of 2 years from the respective 16587 BERHABEZENEEBH
vesting dates. 30,120,000 options will vest immediately on the FBEF A HI24F © 30,120,00017 B A% # &
5 March 2019 and remaining 20,980,000 options will vest 1 20193858 BN B 5% B H #%
year after such date of grant. 20,980,00017 & A% # & % H B 23 1%

1EHE -

The fair value of the share options granted on 5 March 2019 201953 A5 & H #9246 R3F 17
for 2 years and 3 years exercise period were HK$9,100,000 B R A T {E 5 5 A9,100,000/%
(HK$0.30197) and HK$6,990,000 (HK$0.33320) respectively, of 7€ (0.30197/% JT) %6,990,000/8 7T
which the Group recognised a share option expense of (0.33320%7T) * AEBEEREZE2019
HK$9,617,000 and HK$6,473,000 during the year ended 31 F3H318 k202038318 IE FE
March 2019 and 31 March 2020, respectively. R R R X 9 519,617,000% 7T &

6,473,000/ JT ©

261



NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 705 % MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & 2020 3/H31H i1 F/&

34.

262

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured with reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair values of the share
options is measured based on binomial lattice option pricing
model. Lives of the options are incorporated into the model.

34.

Rz #EsT 8l (42)

bA B i 7 AR SR B B8 R 75 40 28
FET2 BRI A T B
£ o BN AT EDRE=E
=16 % B (B AL EL B B o BB AR AR
EHIE AR -

Options granted on

Options granted on
5 March 2019
(vest immediately)

5 March 2019
(vest 1 year after
grant date)

$2019%3A58 & H

$201953A58 & H B B AR 4 (1R HH

B RS % #E (BN BS 35 /8) BEAE1ERE)

Grant date share price HHEARRE HK$1.61 HK$1.61
1.618 7T 1.618 7T

Exercise price TE(E HK$1.65 HK$1.65
1.65%8 7T 1.65%8 7T

Expected life T8 5T 4 HA 2 years 3 years
2% 3F

Expected volatility T8 B R 1R 35.47% 30.83%
Expected dividend vyield (%) T8 BRI A% B (%) 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 45 2 B2 A1) (%) 1.536% 1.580%

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
(by reference to the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility by reference to publicly available information.
Expected dividends were based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised total expenses of HK$9,617,000 and
HK$6,473,000 in respect of the equity-settled share-based
payment transactions in 2019 and 2020.

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

volatility is

8 H R 18 DA SRR R (45 2 IR BB A i
MEFORGEDR) BER  XRER
B AT 15 B B 3L 2R SOK 18 9 1 (7] TR
BEHAE HHRENBERER
Eit - THBAREKRNEGH AT HQF
BRHFEEERTE -

AR5 B FR20195F K 20205 Ht A #E 25 45
BURMDAERGRAORZERE X
%5 519,617,0007 7T £2.6,473,00075
JT

o

BEAAEREFHI - EERE AR
B TRERN - 8 HIKIE R RE LK
BARTAREBNRER  FARLBK
RERBER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

500,000 share options exercised during the year ended 31
March 2019 resulted in the issue of 500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company and new share capital of HK$50,000 and
share premium of HK$1,477,000 (before issue expenses), as
further detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 112 to
113 of the financial statements.

(@) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the share capital of New
Concepts Engineering Development Limited and New
Concepts Foundation Limited acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation in August 2014.

(b) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payments in note 4(p) to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are

exercised, or be transferred to accumulated loss should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

(c) Exchange fluctuation reserve
Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
currency exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations.

34. FRRRHESHEI (42

35.

AEATERYEZECREBERE
M HEMBAE -

® & Z=201943A31H I & E -
500,00017 BE IS HEETT S AN A Al 31T
500,000/% A A &) EiBAR - LA R FTIE AR
850,000/ 7T & % 19 4 (81,477,000
T (HBRFEITR IR - #E—FFBR
AN B 75 R 3% BT 5E338 o

fiE &
AEBEAFERBAFENHESSE
LEBAEHR AT BHREKEFE252113
BRGERSEHRED -

(a) HHfEE
BHHREEIEA R A R201448 A
BEEEEHAKENAFXITRE
ERERARRAIEMESR
AR

(b) FEMRHERE

BREREEERRRAME R
MY EEA(p) A BL LA BR 0 A BT 2
R FRIR R A B & 5T BORAE —
Tt ERBEORITEER
BER QTR - % RIB SR A8 BE
BREETEREBREERM G
18 R 2k 7 48 A 8 B B AR
RN BB ERGFER -

() ERKEHE
XK HEEREREEIIBR
BHBERERAELENRAINEG
BN ZH -
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36. LEASES 36. HE
HKFRS 16 was adopted 1 April 2019 without restatement of REBR2019F4 A1 B EH N A B B 75
comparative figures. For an explanation of the transitional WEERFE165 - WEEFF LR
requirements that were applied as at 1 April 2019, see Note T o HRIN2019F48 1B ERA M B E
2(a). The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date #27E B R al BBT 5E2(a) © 20 Y E4(g)A
of initial application, 1 April 2019, as disclosed in note 4(g)A. FrikEE - R #Nsa e A B H1 (201944 A

TR RERZFETBE-

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HEEH(EBRENNME
The Group leases a number of buildings in the jurisdictions REEREEMERZRRERET
from which it operates. In those jurisdictions the periodic rent BF RzFaiER YEHEER
of property leases is fixed over the lease term. As at 31 HEANEE HE S EE - 12020634
March 2020, the rent for the office premises are fixed with 31F - MAEMENHESR2E105H
lease term ranging from 2 to 10 years. HEAREE -
Leases liabilities HEAaE
Future lease payments are due as follows: AREERNKO N EBHERAT
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
=REE
LRE A 2 A
31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 2020 2020
20204 20204 20204
3A31H 3A31H 3A31H
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$"000
31 March 2020 2020%3A31H TFHET TFHET TFHET
Not later than one year TER —F 6,369 709 5,660
Later than one year and not  ER —F M TERMWF
later than two year 3,823 337 3,486
Later than two years and not B M F M TNER A F
later than five years 2,361 260 2,101

12,553 1,306 11,247
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36. LEASES (continued) 36. HHE (&)
Leases liabilities (continued) HEaRE#E)

Minimum

lease
payments Interest Present value

=EAE
(N A B RE
1 April 2019 1 April 2019 1 April 2019
20194 20194 20194
4H1H 4H1H 4H1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 April 2019 20194718 FAT FAT FET
Not later than one year TER—F 9,144 1,075 8,069

Later than one year and not &R — 4 i TN iE 7 Ml F
later than two year 6,458 726 5,732
Later than two years and not (B M F f T ER 7 F
later than five years 6,350 640 5,710
21,952 2,441 19,511
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: REBENANWIRESHOT :

31 March 2020 1 April 2019
2020%3H31H 201954 A1H
HK$000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Current liabilities mEaE 5,660 8,069
Non-current liabilities FRBBEE 5,587 11,442
11,247 19,511

2020

HK$°000
FTERT

Short term lease expense REEERX 5,798
Low value lease expense KEBHEERX 27
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36. LEASES (continued) 36. & (&
Operating leases — lessee HEHRE — RHEA
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum MR2019F3A31H @ BEF AT HHELS
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling HE AEERRRERENKERE
due as follows: BB ERE R AT ¢
2019
HK$'000
T T
Within one year —FR 9,371
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZFTF(BEEEMTF) 10,520
19,891
At 31 March 2019, the Group leases certain of its motor 2019563 A31H - AEEF XA
vehicles for its business. These leases are classified as finance ETARE-REHENSHERREM
leases and have remaining lease terms ranging from one to g HRTHENFT—Z=%F-

three years.
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36. LEASES (continued) 36. HE (&)
Operating leases — lessee (continued) HEHRE — RHEANE)
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments MR2019F3A31H @ @EHE NHRK
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: REEENRAERERENT :
Present
value of minimum
Minimum lease lease
payments payments
RERE REEE
DE NRRE
2019 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Amounts payable: ARTIIHREENSTE
Within one year —FR 3,715 3,579
In the second year FF 1,403 1,339
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEERF
(BEERMF) 1,286 1,275
Total minimum finance lease payments RERERENTK
FEES] 6,404 6,193
Future finance charges R 2 1)
Total net finance lease payables BN FRERENRERE 6,193
Portion classified as current liabilities (note 29) SEAREBEEMN
#o (Ff529) (3,579)

Non-current portion (note 29) EME L (KT5E29) 2,614
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. BBEXFEERERD
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING E2EMBAT
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- REEEFERNFERESOMEA
controlling interests are set out below: AR T :

Percentage of equity interest held by  JE4% % # &5 F7 #5 B% 42

non-controlling interests: B
Hefei Feifan A IEIER 40% 40%
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRVR Ll g A R B W AR
information of the above subsidiaries since the acquisition. HHEERBE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss for the year allocated to non- 9 B 2 FE 1258 AR 1 7 Y
controlling interests: FAERE:
Hefei Feifan aRFER (23,142) (569)
Accumulated balances of non- FERERNRE A
controlling interests at the reporting K RET &8
date:

Hefei Feifan AHBFER 35,206 61,409
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. BAEEXFEERESDN
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING F2EMBAT (&)
INTERESTS (continued)

2020 20204
Hefei Feifan
SEIFER
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue A 7,526
Total expenses, net 4R FEE (65,382)
Loss for the year FRNERE (57.856)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREEK=EE (65,508)
Current assets mENE E 51,431
Non-current assets ERBEE 130,476
Current liabilities mEEE (82,707)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (11,185)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEBMANREREFH (6,054)
Net cash flows from investing activities RETDHEENR S REFHE 175
Net cash flows from financing activities MEFELENE S RE FH 4,178

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent RekReFEWR D FHE (1,701)
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. MAEXFEREDRN
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING EE2EMBAT (E)
INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TR £ bt S A B & B %S & R
information of the above subsidiaries. 2o
2019 20194
Hefei Feifan
EREIEN
HK$'000
FE T
Revenue A 16,949
Total expenses, net 4 TR (18,371)
Loss for the year FREE (1,422)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREE W =LA (12,349)
Current assets mENE E 47,680
Non-current assets EREBEE 202,791
Current liabilities nB B & (71,849)
Non-current liabilities MBI EE (25,099)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEETHMANREREFHE (3,246)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETBMANREREFHE (2,887)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEGHELENBERNEFH 7,480

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent ReRBSZFEYIEMFRE 1,347
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
In order to develop and expand the Group's kitchen waste
treatment and industrial fluids system services business, the
Group entered into the following transactions during the
years ended 31 March 2019:

For the year ended 31 March 2019

(a)

On 3 May 2018, First Bravo Development Limited
(“FBD"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share purchase agreement with P.H.M.
Holding (“PHM") and Friction Invest AB as vendors, and
Henrik Melinder (“Melinder”) and Christer Larsoon
(“Christer”) as guarantors, to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Vimab Holding AB (“Vimab”). Vimab is
a company incorporated in Sweden and, together
with its operating subsidiaries (the “Vimab Group”), is
engaged in provision of high-tech industrial services in
valve services and maintenance, tank cleaning and other
equipment services. The acquisition was completed on
31 May 2018.

38. ¥ &1
B R T 4% 78 7R & B 19 B B A 3K R 1
DTERBEGREES  ~A&EE
RE E2019F3 8318 IF FE#E 17
TR5:

HF2019%F3A31B 1L FEE

(a)

M2018F5A3H AR R 2 &
M B A  &lFirst Bravo
Development Limited ([ FBD |)
#ip H.M. Holding ([PHM ) X
Friction Invest AB({fE &= 7)) &
Henrik Melinder ([ Melinder |) &
Christer Larsoon ([ Christer |)
(EBERA)RIL —HERH
% AU BEVimab Holding AB
([Vimab]) & & E B 1T BR 4N ©
Vimab £ — i 72 B B2 53 i Ak 32 A9
ANACERELERB QA
([ Vimab& B J) #t H12 4L 7P AR
BERRE BEEREAREMRE
BRE =B TR - W
B £ 1B 2 M2018F5H318 &
ﬁ o

Notes
Pt 5
Property, plant and equipment M e KRR 14 57,992
Other intangible assets HEtmEEEE 17 83,275
Inventories rE 20,390
Trade receivables g 5 W R IE 31,753
Prepayments and other receivables T8 7 3R I8 e H Ath 8 U k1A 11,403
Cash and bank balances B e RIRITHE 47,455
Trade payables 2 5 RIA (8,445)
Other payables and accruals HhERNRIERETEA (23,561)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 32 (38,840)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 8 R1T R E Mg E (152,838)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value  AJ# BRI FEEAFELAE 28,584
Goodwill on acquisition I B B A P B 15 149,657
Total consideration #RAE 178,241
Satisfied by: ANV
Cash e 23,044
Issue of 42,137,142 ordinary shares of the 2%£71742,137,142fX A& A ]
Company T @ AR 163,914
Consideration receivables FE Y R AB 18 (8,717)
178,241

271
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

272

(a)

(continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Vimab as at the dates of acquisitions were as follows:

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the dates of acquisitions amounted to
HK$31,753,000 and HK$11,403,000, respectively. The
gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and
other receivables were HK$31,753,000 and
HK$11,403,000, respectively, which are expected to be
collectible.

The acquisition-related costs were not material, and
have been expensed and are included in administrative
expenses.

Goodwill arose in the acquisitions of Vimab because the
considerations paid for the acquisitions effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected
synergies from combining the respective operations of
Vimab and the Group. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they do
not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

38. ¥ 8 2)
H F2019FE3A31HILEE (&)
(@) (&)
Vimab 7] 5 71| & = & & &R WS
HEWAFERT :

B 5 &k E M ERFIENKE B
HH) R FEH B &31,753,0007%
JC N 11,403,0008 L - E 5 K H
tEWRIBESNSES BB
31,753,000/ 7T %11,403,000/%
7T TREAR g E -

WHEHBKALTEXR AC
XA ATHRAX

HRENEBEREER LB
BlVimab B 7R £ B & §f & B 1) 1]
MRk s A eS8 K
BVimabEAHE - AN ZEX
BY TR EABRNELEERN
RIEH WAL EEFE DR
R -EAHECERABTEN
HRASH -

W fEVimab#) 3R £ it £ 2 1 10

acquisitions of Vimab is as follows: I
Cash consideration ReNRE (23,044)
Cash and bank balances acquired FritBE 30 & K aR1T 4 8% 47,455
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in & A& & & 8 Fr A &9
cash flows used in investing activities Heneniiek
ReZFEMRANFRE 24,411
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

38. ¥ 8 (&
H F20194£3H31B ILLEE (&)

(a)

(continued)

Since the acquisitions, the contributions to the Group’s
revenue and results for the year ended 31 March 2019
were as follows:

(a)

Vimab Vimab

(&)

B YRS AR - IRBIE201943 A
BNALEFEABAEE TR
AREROELEWT :

Profit for the
period ended 31
March 2019 since

Revenue acquisition

BB LIREE
2019%3H318 Lt
i [ 84 itz F1)
HK$’000

FHET

A
HK$’000
FHERT

156,106 4,019

Had the combinations of Vimab taken place at the
beginning of the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue
of the Group and loss of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 would have been HK$1,054,324,000
and HK$102,530,000, respectively.

fiiVimab &) & 0f 7 8 2201943
A3HIEFEEF#T A&E
E & =2019F3A31HILFEHX
AR BBEB SR A
1,054,324,000/% i &
102,530,00058 7T °
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEMB AT
On 23 July 2018, the Group disposed of Major Bravo Limited M2018F7H238 » AEBEHER SR
and its subsidiary Memsys Water Technologies GmbH 2% #8815 48 $5 & AYMajor Bravo Limited
(German) (“Major Bravo Group”), which is engaged in the X H K B 2 "Memsys Water
sales of membrane distillation modules. Technologies GmbH (German) ([ Major

Bravos &) -

On 28 February 2019, the Group disposed of its subsidiary 20192 A28H » AEBEHEHRF
Shenzhen Xinbao, which is engaged in the kitchen waste A b 45 2 2 BT vy 3R B BE R B0 BT A
treatment plant in Mainland China. AURYIFNE -
The net assets of Major Bravo Group and Shenzhen Xinbao at Major Bravofs B KR JIFTE RN L& B
the date of disposal were as follows: e FEEMT
Major Bravo Shenzhen
Group Xinbao
Major Bravo
£H RN E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Property, plant and M - HES R ER
equipment 14 3,271 1,699
Intangible assets mEAE 17 15,240 —
Inventories FE 1,338 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i j& Uy 7k 18 482 4,085
Cash and cash equivalents H&E&RREEEY 55 4
Amount due to the Group  JE 1 78 5 B 30H (37,097) (2,127)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M FERRIE (2,161) (2,161)
(18,872) 1,500
Wavier of amount due to e RN AN B RIE
the Group 37,097 —
Gain on disposal of el = RN R R e
subsidiaries 7 13,820 7,300
Total consideration R E 32,045 8,800
Satisfied by: Y REAFR
Cash Re 32,045 8,800
Total FERE 32,045 8,800
Net cash inflow arising on  HEEAMIRESHRAFE
disposal:
Cash consideration ReNRE 32,045 8,800
Cash and bank balances Fr &R & RIRTT 4 84
disposed of 55 4

31,990 8,796
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40. GERERERM:E

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities REFTHELENERES
Due to
Due to a related Bank and  Finance lease Lease
directors company other loans payable liabilities Bond
e —
EHES NG| RITK ERRE
A HIE Hin &R HEHE HEEE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHx FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 April 2019 201954718 4,640 384,643 347,224 6,193 — 25,500
Changes from financing cash flows: HERERELD:
New bank and other borrowings MERTREMES — — 135,472 = - -
Repayment of bank and other ERBTREMEE
borrowings — — (81,380) — — —
Capital element of lease liabilities HERBERZNERD S
payments — — — — (8,809) —
Interest element of lease liabilities HEABERRNFSHH
payments — — — — (1,038) —
Interest paid BRFE — (7,702) (28,436) — — (1,661)
Decrease in amount due to a related FES — B A A 3R
company b — (167,298) - = - -
Increase in amount due to directors R EZRIEE M 4,656 = = = = =
Total change from financing cash flow BEBREREL LS 4,656 (175,000) 25,656 — (9,847) (1,661)
Other change: Hin &8 :
Initial application of HKFRS 16 NEERB B BRE
AR E16% — — — (6,193) 19,511 —
Finance cost B AR — 7,702 28,436 — 1,038 1,661
Foreign exchange movement SNEZE) = - (12,620) = 545 =
At 31 March 2020 #202063A318 9,296 217,345 388,696 - 11,247 25,500
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. FEBHERBERME(&F
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities MEETBHELENEEREH(E)
(continued)
Due to a Bank and Finance
Due to related other lease  Convertible
directors company loans payables bond Bonds
A —
ENEE BEBAA BTk BEBERAE A #2 fi%
HIE FIE  HMER HERE &EH &%

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THET FHET TR TR THET

At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 818 — 384301 260,003 11,038 23,329 —
Changes from financing cash REBRCRELY
flows 4,640 (10,300)  (47,149) (5,004) — 25,500
Increase arising from acquisition of & U B — & Fff B 2 &) M1
a subsidiary (note 38) 3 hn (P 3£38) — — 152,838 — — —
Interest expense F BB — 10,642 28,414 362 16,183 1,805
Transfer to other payables B4 7 H ) FE 4 5R08 — — — — (39,195) —
Interest paid EAREARS — — (23,894) (203) (1,264) (1,805)
Foreign exchange movement HINIE Z &) — = (22,988) — 947 —
At 31 March 2019 ®2019%3A31H 4,640 384,643 347,224 6,193 — 25,500
41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. KRB E
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not R EEIR - I 8RR BF % R N EE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: REBNIABENT :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TH&T
Indemnities given to financial MAEBAERRE
institutions for performance bonds & B AR K
issued in relation to construction r) B 75 4R A Y

contracts undertaken by the Group o (E IR 68,373 76,017




42.

43.
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

The Group acted as a guarantor for an external borrowings
made by an independent third party amounting up to
RMB153,986,000, details of which are set out
Company’s announcement dated 14 July 2017.

in the

The directors of the Group are of the opinion that such
guarantee will not result in any outflow of resources of, nor
will any loss be incurred by, the Group.

Management of the Group estimated the fair value of the
financial immaterial, financial
guarantee contract was not recognised as financial liabilities as
at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

guarantee contracts as

COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

42.

43.

MBREREL
REEET—RBBYLE=HIEHH—
S FEE & Z ARME153,986,0007T
MERA FBIARARRRBHA
201797 14B B At »

AEEEERR  ZERTEEHAK
SEREERNEEEMER -

M202083A318 K2019F3H31H -
AEBEEBEMBAVBEREONA
FEWNE K - B4R ER
A REBAE-

3
AEBRBEHRE U TEARE :

2019
HK$'000
FET

New service concession arrangements  BABOTJ5 =\ 5] 32 A9
on BOT basis AR 75 5 R 2 45,261 41,725
45,261 41,725

277
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the balances and transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

44,

FAHE 53X 5
(a)

BR AR BE IS R H A B8 0 & AY
EREZZHIN AEEBRFA
HEER S ETATERRS

2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT FA&T
Related companies*: el NI
Short-term lease SHAE 3,805 3,746
Interest expenses B 7,702 10,641
e The related companies are controlled by Mr. Chu Shu & ZEWBARBAARAEEE

Cheong, a key management personnel of the Company.

The above transactions were entered into based on
terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group
Remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group, including directors’ remuneration as disclosed in
note 10 to the financial statements, is as follows:

(b)

BABRKE R ERS -

PR B TIREAAT NI EE
15 E BO R BT ©

FREXEEBASHWHME
AEEIZEBABNTM(E

BUHBREMTIORENES
o)W

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Short term employee benefits EHREERA 8,594 8,674
Post-employment benefits BRI 90 212

Equity-settled share option expense A #E &5 4 & 1) B3 A% 1
B 2 1,425 3,089

Total compensation paid to key ENEZEEEAER

management personnel HELRE 10,109 11,975
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. EREI S £ TR

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERR SHEEeRIANEES
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as AT -

follows:

2020 20204F

Financial assets SHEE

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit

or loss Amortised cost
ZEREk
BRAEE
Eig i)
SRIEE 184 % A @t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER

Trade and retention receivables & 5 & W7 18 &

ERE & — 191,412 191,412
Receivables under service AR 75 5 v i 2 Bk
concession arrangements & W R 8 — 346,864 346,864

Financial assets included in SFARE R
deposits and other receivables — E i & 4 7B £

SREE — 101,262 101,262
Loan receivables JEWE — 2,908 2,908
Consideration receivables WK E — 17,607 17,607
Financial assets at FVTPL FRBRELATEFED

TREE 10,804 — 10,804
Cash and cash equivalents HAeRkB2ZEY — 29,817 29,817

10,804 689,870 700,674
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. EREI S £ TR
(continued) (&)
Financial liabilities ERER

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
— designated
as such upon Financial
initial liabilities at
recognition amortised cost
BBEGR
AFEFEN
SRIaE — % 8 85 A A
12 0 %5 52 B FTER
EEBISE LRBRE st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
FHET FERT FHET

Trade and retention payables & 5 J& {3 3018 &

ERRES — 174,663 174,663

Financial liabilities included in &t A £ b & 5 5 B K&

other payables and EEtERAT

accruals ERAE — 220,162 220,162
Due to directors FENEERIR — 9,296 9,296
Due to a related company & —FE B A 7508 — 217,345 217,345

Interest-bearing bank and  FFEMRITREMEE
other borrowings — 388,696 388,696
Bonds &% — 25,500 25,500
— 1,035,662 1,035,662
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. IZERE ST A

(continued) (&)
2019 20194F
Financial assets EHEE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit
or loss Amortised cost Total
/NS |
FFEM
CREE KA Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
Trade and retention receivables & 5 & U 318 &%
ERRE & — 249,791 249,791
Receivables under service AR AT i 2
concession arrangements JE W KR — 352,184 352,184
Financial assets included in FAEE R
deposits and other receivables  E i & 4 7 B &)
EREE — 163,626 163,626
Loan receivables B4 & 3R — 4,255 4,255
Consideration receivables EWRRE — 37,232 37,232
Contingent consideration asset s ARBEE 3,724 — 3,724
Financial assets at FVTPL BREREATENEN
PREE 20,732 — 20,732
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY — 38,745 38,745

24,456 845,833 870,289
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. ZHEE oM E£m T E
(continued) (&)

Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or loss
— designated
as such upon Financial
initial liabilities at
recognition  amortised cost Total
FEiBiERR
ATEFEN
TRAE — bice 1N
T F) 48 TE R B T2
EE RIS ol =R “a st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FA T FHET
Trade and retention payables & 5 J& {3 3018 &
ENRE S — 222,579 222,579
Financial liabilities included in &t A E b /& (< 218 &
other payables and EEtERAT
accruals ERAE — 234,920 234,920
Due to directors FE & = R — 4,640 4,640
Due to a related company  fE{t — R RAEE A &) 5E — 384,643 384,643
Interest-bearing bank and AERRITREMEER
other borrowings — 353,417 353,417
Bonds (62 — 25,500 25,500
— 1,225,699 1,225,699
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposit,
receivables, trade and retention payables, loan receivables,

trade and retention
amounts due from directors, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, and the current portions of
receivables under service concession arrangements, financial
assets included in deposits and other receivables, amounts
due to a related company, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portions of receivables

under service concession arrangements, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due to a related company, and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate for
a similar convertible bond with consideration of the Group’s

own non-performance risk.

46.
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D ATAENRIE  He R EMER
RENEHMEE BN —RAEAQR
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AEHERR -
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46.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The fair value of listed equity investment is based on quoted
market price. The fair value of contingent consideration asset
has been estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to make estimates about the expected future cash
The directors believe that the estimated fair value
resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the

flows.

related change in fair value, which is recorded in profit or
loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

represents the derivative
component of the convertible bond, is measured using a

Derivative financial instrument,
valuation technique similar to option pricing models, using
present value calculations. The model incorporates various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amount of the derivative
component of the convertible bond is the same as its fair
value.

46.
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. €T AMAF{EHERAF

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EREB#E)

Fair value hierarchy AFERE

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRITAEEEHIT AN D FE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: 22 ¢

Assets measured at fair value: L FETENEE

As at 31 March 2020 R2020F3H31H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHAEER

Quoted

prices in  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

ERTSE EXTHE EXTTER
MEE BARE  BANE
(%—18) (E=B) (F=E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Financial assets at FVTPL BRESEATEFEN
SREE 10,804 — — 10,804

10,804 - - 10,804
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. €T EMNAFEHRAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEREE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFERB(E

Assets measured at fair value: (continued) O FEGTENEE : (&)
As at 31 March 2019 R2019%F3H31H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHEER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RS BATER EATTEER
H 5 (E BAHE BAZE
(E—F8) (5=E) (=) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET TET
Contingent consideration asset IAREBEEE — — 3,724 3,724
Financial assets at FVTPL ERBREATEFEN
TREE 20,732 — — 20,732
20,732 — 3,724 24,456

ER - E=ENATFEIEHRBN

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows: T s
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFHET T T
Contingent consideration asset: FAREBEE :
At 1 April R4HF18 3,724 61,644
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 38) U 5% BT B8 A &)
(P 5£38) — 8,717
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in the M IBZE KRR
statement of profit or loss AFE(EE)
W & — (25,285)
Exchange realignment recognised in A EL At 2 TH U 25 B SR
other comprehensive income ME X, 38 B — (4,120)
Less: transfer to consideration B BEREREKKE
receivables (3,724) (37,232)
At 31 March M3A31H — 3,724
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. £ THEMAFEHRAF

47.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2019

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

EREB(E)

AFEREB(E)
BAFETEMNER:
R2019F3H31H

FR E=EAAFEIENSHN
T~

2019
HK$'000
T T
Derivative financial instrument: PTESHBIA:

At 1 April R4F1H — 14,983

Fair value gain recognised in the B 2 K B AR
statement of profit or loss AN E:S — (14,983)
At 31 March M3H31H — —

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments,
derivatives, comprise cash and cash equivalents and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. The main purpose of
is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and

other than

these financial instruments
liabilities such as financial asset at fair value through profit
and loss, trade and retention receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables, pledged
deposit, trade and retention payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and amounts due to
a related company, which mainly arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees the
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

47.
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&) o

HEEREEREBRBRERBUR
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SMBRAESRREFEYM N RS
RITKEMBEE -ZF2RMTANE
ERBENIRARELEESRE - A&H
BERMZBEeBREERERE  flE
BEGSEATEAENEREE &
ZEBKRIARERRE S - RIEHT
R EWSR - st ARS REAME
WHRENEHMEE BEER CF
AEX BEHRENREAREMNFRE
T FFARMENFRIBEREFTERK
CRABRBAREN—HBB QAR
B IEREAKEZEERES -

AEEERTAMEENTIZARS
MERR - INERR  FEERR KRR
BECRR EETERARIHEEH
EESRBRAOBER  BHRLT -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge against its
interest rate risk. The Group mitigates this risk by closely
monitoring the movements in interest rates and reviewing its
available credit facilities and their utilisation regularly.

At the end of the reporting period, if the interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/lower,
which was considered reasonably possible by management,
with all other variables held constant, the loss before tax for
the year would have been increased/decreased by
HK$3,616,000 (2019: loss before tax for the year would have
been increased/decreased by HK$787,000) as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, PRC and Sweden
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in
HK$, Renminbi (“RMB”) and Swedish Krona (“SEK"”), which
are the functional currencies of respective group companies.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arise
from certain financial instruments which are denominated in
United States Dollar (“USD"), which are currencies other than
the functional currency.

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the
assets and liabilities denominated in United States dollars is
considered to be minimal. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge against its foreign currency
risk. The Group mitigates this risk by closely monitoring the
movements in foreign exchange rates.

47.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group mainly transacts with creditworthy third parties.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise contingent consideration asset,
included in deposits and other receivables, loan receivables,
pledged deposit and cash and cash equivalents, arises from

financial assets

default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 15% (2019: 16%) and 39%
(2019: 41%) of the Group's trade and retention receivables
were due from the Group's largest debtor and the five largest
debtors, respectively.

A detail analysis on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade and retention receivable, contract assets
and receivables under service concession arrangements are set
out in note 22, note 21 and note 16 respectively.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of
funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
by considering the maturities of both its financial liabilities
and financial assets.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
and other borrowings. The Group aims to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirements.

47.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. UBEBREEBEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEEE(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RBERR AEENERABEER
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BRIARBBRIENEE AR ENAT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2020

No fixed

terms of

repayment/on

Total demand/

Carrying  undiscounted less than
amount cash flow 1year  1to 5 years

BEE

anm/

AERRE BREX/
RELE REGE —FM -E1§ BlRiE
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS000
FET FTET FET FET FTET

Trade and retention payables BHRNFER

ERREE 174,663 174,663 174,663 - -

Financial liabilities included in AR TRER
other payables and accruals EiERNERARE 220,162 236,014 173,575 62,439 —
Due to directors ERESFA 9,296 9,296 9,296 - -
Due to a related company e — A @R AHE 217,345 237,083 6,520 230,563 -

Interest-bearing bank and other ~ FFE BT REMEE
borrowings 388,696 430,117 268,801 161,316 -
Bonds &% 25,500 27,548 1,657 25,891 -
1,035,662 1,114,721 634,512 480,209 —
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BHREEEBEERERBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) mENEEEE(Z)
2019
No fixed
terms of
repayment/
Total on demand/
Carrying undiscounted less than Beyond
amount cash flow 1 year 1105 years 5 years
mEE
EnE/
AEREE BE%R/
] MELE —£R -0 HARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Trade and retention BHRMNAER
payables ERRE S 201,602 222,579 222,579 = =

Financial liabilities included & AE A EN AR
in other payables and B ERNERER

accruals 220,162 235,993 235,993 — —
Due to directors ERNESHE 4,640 4,640 4,640 - -
Due to a related company fEff —RIEIE A AR 384,643 396,182 11,539 384,643 =
Interest-bearing bank and & SBITREMEE
other borrowings 353,417 406,574 110,337 273,545 22,692
Bonds %) 25,500 29872 1,658 28214 -
1,189,964 1,295,840 586,746 686,402 22,692
Note: B 5
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors did not believe that the BELREX HEETRAZSERTER
loans would be called in their entirety within 12 months from the end of WMERARBI2EAAKEZEEHN BREZ
the reporting period, and they considered that the loans would be repaid FERBRBERGEMEEEAHEE -
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements. FRATHEZRE : AEER A B REABE
This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of the Group EAHOMBRRI TEEENSEHREE
at the date of approval of the financial statements; the lack of events of BREERINAEEIHER -

default; and the fact that the Group had made all previously scheduled
repayments on time.
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47.
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Iy
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BB REEEREERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REEEEME(E)
Note: (continued) Miax « (&)
In accordance with the terms of the loans which contained a repayment on RBMEAR  RBRAEREREEEXNE
demand clause, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of the RIER  ZEEREREGHN R R REBENE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments and BHERIETEERERERRXNEZE)
ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause, was as follows: AT
Within 1 year
or on demand 1 to 5 years Total
—ERHBRER —EAEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBIT FHBIT FHBIT
As at 31 March 2020 7202043 A318 77,629 40.723 118,352
As at 31 March 2019 M201943A31H 16,768 313 17,081
Capital management BXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and strives to maintain a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Capital of the Group comprises all
shareholders’ equity.

components of

AEEEAEEMNTIZRABRRRER
SEFELENRN LHFRED
BARLE  DEERRFREMHDR R
REMER AT RAES

REBERTHBRN REELERLE
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BRAMBEE BRIEFHEEY -

SENEABHEBRESAN A

o

D



2020F F R AIXEEER)ERATF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P 705 ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & E2020%3H31H it F/Z

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BB REEEREHERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Capital management (continued) BXREME(E)
The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of EETFTHBAERERE - NIRRT
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the EESEZRESRANEREE RN
risks associated with class of capital. Based on AR BEESHNEZ ~A5E
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its T EEBRTHRAREITHEREER
overall capital structure through new share issue as well as EEBTFEHEEBERERE - N20204F
issue of new debts or repayment of existing debts. The net M2019F3 A3 A M ER FREEE =
debts-to-equity ratios as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were as =T
follows:
2019
HK$'000
T T
Total debts BERBEE
Lease liabilities HEABE 11,247 =
Borrowings BE 388,696 353,417
Bonds B% 25,500 25,500
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReERESEEY (29,817) (38,745)
Net debts & 75 % 58 395,626 340,172
Equity attributable to owners of the BERNADAER AN
Company 7 7 110,304 418,399
Net debts-to-equity ratio B R A X 358.6% 81.3%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to AR A SE AR KB A RS AEMA
externally imposed capital requirements. SNFHE N H) B AR E R Al o
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48.

KAFHMBRR R

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

7R TR 3745 SR Y B 7 R R
m

2019
HK$'000
FBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEERARIMKRE 390 390
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 390 390
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE - Re REM
receivables FE U FRIE 2,828 269
Due from subsidiaries JE W BT /B A Rl 5K 18 399,889 797,906
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 46 331
Total current assets MBEERE 402,763 798,506
CURRENT LIABILITIES HRENEE
Other payables and accruals H b e RIE R ERTE A 88,135 81,328
Due to subsidiaries R E NG 165,008 185,942
Bonds BEH 25,500 —
Total current liabilities mE A EERE 278,643 267,270
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 124,120 531,236
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEHEEBREHER
LIABILITIES 124,510 531,626
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES RHEE
Bonds B — 25,500
Total non-current liabilities JEmB B EBERE — 25,500
Net assets BEFE 124,510 506,126
EQUITY i
Share capital [N 57,290 57,290
Reserves (note) 515 (P 5E) 67,220 448,836
Total equity g G 124,510 506,126
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48. A XTI BIKREK (&

Note: B 5%
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREERENT -
Share
premium Share option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
1% 3 itd (B AR MR RithsiE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
(note 34)
(Bt 3£34)
At 1 April 2018 201854818

Loss and total comprehensive income £ A& 18 & 2 U4 25
for the year #agE — — (42,105) (42,105)
Issue of shares BT RAD 159,700 — — 159,700
Exercise of share options 17155 B8 Ak 1,477 (237) — 1,240
Issue of share options BT — 9,617 — 9,617
At 31 March 2019 #2019%3H31H 525,970 18,322 (95,456) 448,836

Loss and total comprehensive income £ A& 18 & 2 U4 25
for the year #ag — — (388,089) (388,089)
Amortisation of share options B i 4 0 — 6,473 — 6,473
Lapsed of share options B AR 2K 3 — (8,705) 8,705 —
Forfeit of share option Y8 UK B R #E — (857) 857 —
At 31 March 2020 #2020%E3H318 525,970 15,233 (473,983) 67,220
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49. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
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(a)

Enforcement of the pledge over the shares in
Vimab

Vimab was indebted to a fund (the “Fund”) in the
principal of SEK131,000,000 (approximately
HK$101,509,000) pursuant to a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) entered into between Vimab (as
borrower) and the Fund (as lender).

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the indebtedness
should have been repaid in full on 16 April 2021, and
such indebtedness was secured (the “Pledge”) by all the
issued shares of Vimab (the “Pledged Shares”).
According to the Loan Agreement, the Fund has the
right to call for immediate full repayment.

The Fund enforced the Pledge and transferred all the
Pledged Shares to a company designated by the Fund
on or around 7 April 2020 without any instrument
entered by the holding company of Vimab and the
Company.

As such, Vimab ceased to be the subsidiary subsequent
to such enforcement of Pledged Shares, details of which
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29
April 2020 and 26 May 2020.

On 27 July 2020, the parties have compromised on
settling all disputes and claims between them relating to
the Loan Agreement and/or the enforcement of the
pledge over the pledged Shares and entered into a
discharge agreement (the “Discharge Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group undertook that, among
others, not to make any claims on the designated
company’s ownership of the Pledged Shares, and/or the
enforcement of the pledge of the Pledged Shares. On
the other hand, the Fund undertook and confirmed that
the obligations and/or liabilities of the Group in
connection with or in relation to the Loan Agreement
and any letter of comfort will cease and terminate. The
Discharge Agreement will not exempt, waive or relieve
the Fund from its obligation to repay any surplus from
the enforcement of the pledge of Pledged Shares to the
Group as the original pledgor of the Shares, details of
which are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 July 2020.
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49. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(b)

Settlement agreement of Clear Industry

The parties to the Clear Industry Acquisition entered
into a settlement agreement on 28 May 2020 pursuant
to which the Group conditionally agreed to return the
shares of Clear Industry to the Qinggin, representing
51% of the total issued share capital of Clear Industry.

On the other
agreement, Qinggin will, within 6 months from the date

hand, pursuant to the settlement

of the said settlement agreement (or other dates as
agreed by the parties
consideration shares issued by the Company to any

in writing), dispose the
transferee(s) who is not the Company, the Purchaser or
any of their connected persons, and arrange the
transferee(s) to deposit the relevant proceeds to the
bank account designated by the Group.

Qinggin will also refund, subject to offsetting other
outstanding balance owed by the Group to Clear
Industry as to be verified and confirmed by the relevant
parties a total of RMB36,000,000 in cash in 5 tranches
within 18 months from the date of such settlement
agreement. Upon payment of the refund in full, all
obligation to pay the Suzhou Commitment
compensation under the Clear Industry Acquisition shall
be deemed as fulfilled.

Details of which are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 28 May 2020 and 29 July 2020,
and such settlement agreement was completed on 31
July 2020.
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49. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(c)

298

Memorandum of understanding of Beijing TDR
Environ-Tech Co., Ltd (“TDR")

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27
April 2017 and the 2018 and 2019 annual reports, the
Company entered into a non-legally binding framework
agreement with Shanghai Fuji Investment Co., Ltd.*
BRI BB A7, the previous owner of TDR on 27
April 2017 pursuant to which the Company intended to
acquire the entire equity in TDR. Such
framework agreement lapsed in October 2017 and the
previous owner transferred the entire equity interest in
TDR to the current owner in January 2018. The
Company has been in discussion with the current owner

interest

for a strategic participation in the Target Company.

The Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding dated 22 July 2020 with an affiliate of
the TDR current owner pursuant to which the Company
(or through its designated parties) intended to about
18% equity interest in TDR. Details of which are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2020.
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49. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(d) Entering of placing agreement and subscription
agreements
The Company entered into a placing agreement dated
10 June 2020 with a placing agent pursuant to which
such placing agent has conditionally agreed to place up
to 57,290,113 new Shares, at a price of HK$0.202 per
placing share.

The Company also entered into subscription agreements
dated 15 June 2020 with 3 subscribers pursuant to
which such placing agent has conditionally agreed to
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of 49,768,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.221 per subscription share.
Such subscription was completed on 26 June 2020.

Both the placing agreement and subscription
agreements were completed and 50,922,000 placing
shares and 49,768,000 subscription shares were issued
under the general mandate passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 16 August
2019.

Net proceeds from the placing agreement and
subscription agreements are expected to be
approximately HK$22 million.

50. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

51.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm
to the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 7 August 2020.
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\hc ekl Year ended  Year ended  Year ended  Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CEPIPIES S BE2019F HZ2018F  HE2017F B E20168
S eiElle s 3A31B 1 3A31B1E 383181 3A318IE
FE FE FE FE FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET FiET TAET FAET
RESULTS ES
Revenue YA 837,168 1,021,729 928,457 1,239,809 1,411,799
(Loss)/profit before income tax BTG R A (BR) /
i A (339,059) (115,173) (268,336) 93,178 61,878
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEREe/ (%) 26,605 15,875 22,959 (36,252) (12,163)
(Loss)profit for the year FR(BB),/ & (312,454) (99,298) (245,377) 56,926 49,715
Profit/(loss) for the year FRETF/(BE)
attributable to: EBN:
— Owners of the Company — RREHEABA (295,679) (92,663) (224,790) 47,610 49,715
— Non-controlling interests — FERER (16,775) (6,635) (20,587) 9,316 —
(312,454) (99,298) (245,377) 56,926 49,715
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEBE 1,302,100 1,817,028 1,638,876 1,438,281 863,597
Total liabilities AL (1,147,875)  (1,334,619)  (1,156,805) (936,768) (652,305)
Net assets BEFE 154,225 482,409 482,071 501,513 211,292
Equity attributable to: EaEER:
— Owners of the Company — ARAEE A 110,304 418,399 405,837 483,796 211,292
— Non-controlling interests — FERER 43,921 64,010 76,234 17,717 —
154,225 482,409 482,071 501,513 211,292
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